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At Compass we are passionate about food.

This passion drives us to ensure we are at
the forefront of our industry.

Our global scale allows us to identify market
trends and to innovate accordingly — ensuring
we provide great quality food services to
millions of people around the world.

Through our Performance, and Purpose
strategy we are focused on delivering value
to all our stakeholders.



Consistent performance

UNDERLYING UNDERLYING UNDERLYING
REVENUE OPERATING PROFIT OPERATING MARGIN
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Throughout the Strategic Report, and consistent with prior years, underlying and other alternative performance measures are used to describe the Group’s
performance. These are not recognised under IFRS or other generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Executive Committee of the Group manages
and assesses the performance of the business on these measures and believes they are more representative of ongoing trading, facilitate meaningful year on
year comparisons and hence provide more useful information to shareholders. Underlying and other alternative performance measures are defined in the
glossary of terms on pages 246 and 247. A summary of the adjustments from statutory to underlying results is shown in note 34 on page 208 and further detailed
in the consolidated income statement (page 138), reconciliation of free cash flow (page 143), note 2 segmental reporting (pages 161 to 164) and note 35
organic revenue and organic profit (page 210).

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.
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STATUTORY
REVENUE

£24,878m

S 17,590
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P 22,872
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STATUTORY
OPERATING PROFIT

£1601m
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GLOBAL LOST TIME INCIDENT
FREQUENCY RATE

-387%

(since 2015)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

GLOBAL FOOD SAFETY
INCIDENT RATE

-35%

(since 2015)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

GREENHOUSE GAS
INTENSITY RATIO?

9.1

6.7
6.7

6.0
S 63
I !

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2. The scope and methodology of our reporting has changed this year; therefore data is not comparable on a like for like basis.
For more information about our disclosure on global GHG emissions for the financial year ended 30 September 2019, see page 60.
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OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

We are the industry leader
with a strategic focus on food

Food service is our core competence. Our scale and focus on execution mean that we can provide our
We are the industry leader and create value
for our clients and consumers by providing

them with a range of dining solutions that are  We have a global footprint and manage the business in
three geographic regions. This gives us balanced exposure
to developed markets in North America and Europe as well as

emerging markets with exciting long term growth prospects.

clients and consumers with the best value in terms of quality
and cost as well as the most exciting and innovative solutions.

innovative, healthy and sustainable.

4 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019
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Number of countries
we operate in

53,000 600,000 9.9 billion

Number of client Number of colleagues Number of meals

locations we work in

served per year

NORTH AMERICA

Underlying revenue

£15,694m

(2018 £13,718m)

EUROPE

Underlying revenue

£9,854m

(2018 £5,762m)

REST OF WORLD

Underlying revenue

£3,604m

)’ (2018 £3,667m)

62.4%

of Group total

23.3%

of Group total

&

14.3%

of Group total

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.
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OUR MARKET POSITION

Significant structural

growth opportunity remains

We estimate that the addressable global food services market is
currently worth in excess of £200 billion. We are the leading global
food provider with around a 10% market share by sales. Approximately
75% of the market is serviced by regional players or in-house
providers, which means there is a significant structural growth

opportunity for us.

GLOBAL FOOD SERVICES MARKET C. £200BN

Large
players

Compass

Self s

Numbers relating to market size and penetration rates are based on
management estimates and a range of external data.

The market for food services continues to offer significant growth
potential as we deliver a strong proposition across our core
sectors and regions.

Compass provides outsourced food services around the world
in a market worth over £200 billion. The five sectors in which we
operate continue to offer substantial opportunities for growth.

Food service remains at the core of the Compass offer.
Business & Industry accounts for around 40% of this value,
and this important sector continues to offer attractive growth
opportunities. In more developed markets, where outsourcing
rates are routinely in excess of 60%, our combination of scale,
efficiencies and best-in-class service delivery supports
continued revenue growth. In emerging markets, outsourcing
rates are still only around 10%, providing a significant
opportunity for future growth.

The Healthcare & Seniors and Education sectors also continue
to grow, with less than half of the addressable global market
currently outsourced. In Education, our expertise in nutrition
means we are able to provide delicious food which supports
learning at every stage of the education journey. In Healthcare,
we work directly with healthcare providers to improve patient

6 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

operated

Regional
players

experiences and outcomes. At the same time, our hospital retail
proposition makes life more comfortable for visitors.

Sports & Leisure is a highly outsourced sector in which we
benefit from our strong reputation across key markets.

The Defence, Offshore & Remote sector offers opportunities to
build lasting strategic relationships with large local and
international operators. Creating strong client relationships
allows us to respond better to the complex needs of supporting
their people. In addition to nutrition and physical wellbeing, our
solutions focus on the social, emotional and environmental
needs of people working away from home.

Supplementing our core food offer with targeted support
services is attractive in certain markets and sectors, such as
Healthcare & Seniors and Defence, Offshore & Remote. In these
sectors, we are recognised for fulfilling the needs of clients who
require services with uncompromising quality.

In the markets and regions in which Compass operates, we
continue to build our business and reputation by focusing on our
key strategic pillars of Performance, People and Purpose.



OUR SECTORS

Specialist sector knowledge

IS key to meeting clients’ needs

The global food services market is large and disparate. That is why we
structure our business to match the sectors in which our clients operate so
that we get a deep understanding of their challenges. In this way, we can
create innovative, bespoke offers that meet their specific requirements and,
in doing so, truly differentiate ourselves.

DEFENCE, OFFSHORE & REMOTE

Through our established health and safety culture,
we are a market leader in providing food and some
support services to major companies in the oil,
gas, mining and construction industries. For our
defence sector clients we support their operations
outside areas of conflict.

ESS

‘Support Services Wardwide

SPORTS & LEISURE

Operating at some of the world’s
most prestigious sporting and leisure
venues, exhibition centres, visitor
attractions and major events, we
have an enviable reputation for
providing outstanding hospitality and
true service excellence.

Lovy

% of Group
underlying
revenue

EDUCATION

From kindergarten to college, we provide
fun, nutritious dining solutions that help
support academic achievement at the
highest levels. We educate young people
on how to have a happy, safe and healthy
lifestyle whilst contributing to a
sustainable world.

e ,
Chart\/\'(/e/lls H|k

EON AFFETIT

BUSINESS & INDUSTRY

We help our clients drive productivity and
engagement in the workplace by providing
nutritious, well balanced food during the working
day. We work with clients to build their employee
propositions to attract and retain the best people.

8 Restaurant

]
Eurest Rssociates

’
Hlk EOM &FPETIT

HEALTHCARE & SENIORS

We are specialists in helping hospitals in
the public and private sectors on their
journey of managing efficiency and
enhancing quality across a range of food
and some support services. We have an
increasing presence in the growing
senior living sector.

mediresj

morrison
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Continued strong performance

Paul Walsh
Chairman

A YEAR OF STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH

In 2019, Compass has continued to create value and delivered
strong organic revenue growth of 6.4%, ahead of our target
range of 4-6%. This was driven by a strong performance in North
America and an acceleration in growth in Rest of World. Europe
growth was good, although the first half performance was diluted
by the more challenging macro environment in the second half.
We maintained our strong Group margin at 7.4%. Details of

our operational and financial performance can be found on
pages 2 to 40.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our colleagues
throughout Compass for their continued hard work and
commitment over the last year. Once again, we owe our success
to them. It is their passion for food and excellent customer
service that drive the business forward.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

As a result of our strong performance, the Board is
recommending a 5.9% increase in the final dividend for the year
to 26.9 pence per share (2018: 25.4 pence per share). This
results in a total dividend for the year of 40.0 pence per share
(2018: 37.7 pence per share), an increase of 6.1%. The final
dividend will be paid on 24 February 2020 to shareholders on
the register on 17 January 2020.

8 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

STRATEGY

The Group has a clear and successful strategy which is focused
on our core competence — food. We continue to drive our
financial performance by delivering great food to clients and
consumers combined with a rigorous focus on execution. Our
strategy places Performance, People and Purpose as our main
priorities as we continue to seek to create long term value for all
our stakeholders by improving the quality and sustainability of
our business.

Our 2019 performance reaffirms the Board’s confidence in our
strategy and business model which are central to our long term
success (see pages 12 to 15).

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

We have a strong commitment to corporate responsibility

and continue to build on this strength by working more
proactively with our clients and consumers. For example, on this
year's Stop Food Waste Day, thousands of our people in 38
countries engaged with our customers to raise awareness of
ways to minimise food waste.

Our people are critical to our ability to achieve our goalsin a
responsible and sustainable manner. We recognise that they
are key to delivering excellent food service and we are focused
on developing career paths and providing flexibility for those
who want to work in different roles across different sectors or
countries. We have exceptional leaders and are proud of

what we have achieved to date in our gender diversity.
Although there is more to do, as at the year end we had

36% female representation on the Compass Group Board

and 38% on the Executive Committee.

See pages 48 to 63 and www.compass-group.com for more
about our People and Corporate Responsibility activities.

GOVERNANCE AND THE BOARD

Companies today are judged by their integrity and
trustworthiness as much as by their financial performance. One
of my key responsibilities as Chairman is to set the tone for
Compass and ensure good governance (see pages 64 to 127). In
this | have been extremely well supported by the members of the
Board. With their diverse backgrounds, they bring balance and a
wealth of skills and experience to our organisation that
complements the talents of our executive team. As part of our
ongoing review of Board membership, we ensure that an
appropriate number of independent non-executive directors is
maintained through orderly succession without compromising
the effectiveness of the Board and its committees.

In April 2019, Karen Witts was appointed to the Compass Board
as Group Chief Financial Officer. Karen, who joined us from
Kingfisher PLC, has financial and operational expertise that is
highly complementary to our team and brings with her a wealth
of experience in retail and technology.
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| would like to thank all Board members for their valuable

contributions as we continue to maintain oversight of the POSITION IN FTSE 100 INDEX AS AT
strategic, operational and compliance risks across the Group, 30 SEPTEMBER 2019

define our path to success and uphold the high standards

expected of us. ]_6

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK (2018: 20)
Compass has had another strong year. Organic revenue growth
was 6.4%, ahead of our target range, thanks to excellent growth

in North America and an improving performance in Rest of COMPASS SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
World. There was good growth in our European business with VS FTSE 100 OVER LAST 3 YEARS (%)
strong performances in UK Defence and Sports & Leisure

. K Def Last 12months N 22.7%
offsetting weak volumes in Business & Industry. The Group o
margin during 2019 was maintained despite this more 24_ ]./o -1.4%

challenging trading environment in Europe.
Last24months G 32.2%
We are making good strategic progress through disciplined focus 31 7%

0.5%
on our Performance, People and Purpose priorities and have
continued to reshape our portfolio. Disposal proceeds have been Last 36 months P 34.6%
reinvested in bolt-on acquisitions to further strengthen our food 27 2°
. . L /o 7.4%
service offer and subsector approach, and in June we
announced the proposed acquisition of Fazer Food Services, a
[ Compass FTSE 100

leading food service business in the Nordics, which is a strong
strategic fit with Compass.

Despite this good performance, we are not immune to the macro COMPASS SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
environment. Deteriorating business and consumer confidence VS FTSE 100 INDEX (£)

in Europe has impacted our Business & Industry volumes, new
business activity and margin. Given these trends, we are taking 2018 2019
prompt action in Europe and certain Rest of World markets to 2

adjust our cost base. As well as offsetting short term margin
pressures, by taking this action from a position of strength, we 20 W
will be better placed to capitalise on future growth opportunities. /\IJ

Our expectations for the Group in 2020 are positive although we 18 /W\\,\\/V

remain cautious on the macro environment in Europe. The f'\'\
pipeline of new contracts in North America is strong and Rest of 16 \\r\/F v \»/\,V

World is growing well, although we are seeing some hesitation in
decision making in Europe. Thanks to the Group’s geographic

14

and sectoral diversity, we are nevertheless confident of Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju  Aug Sep
continued progress. As such, we expect organic growth to be
around the mid-point of our 4-6% range whilst maintaining our B Compass FTSE 100 (rebased)

strong margin' as we mitigate the expected volume pressures
through our cost actions.

In the longer term, we remain excited about the significant
structural growth opportunities globally, the potential for
further revenue and profit growth, combined with further
returns to shareholders.

Paul Walsh
Chairman

26 November 2019

1. PrelIFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Group on 1 October 2019.
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INNOVATION
IN OUR FOOD OFFER

Food service is a dynamic business that must
continually evolve to keep pace with shifting
behaviours, tastes and needs. Consumer
habits are changing fast; we stay tuned in via
our trends and insights platform and we are
focused on delivering the best experience for
our clients and consumers through
technology, the use of artificial intelligence
and innovative food offers.

One of the key trends currently shaping our
industry is plant-based diets. Inspired by
improving their health as well as doing
something positive for the planet, consumers
are increasingly embracing plant-based
meals. Our culinary teams develop delicious
and nutritious dishes that will appeal to both
meat eaters and vegetarians, without
compromising flavour or texture. Oat protein
is an alternative protein source we are using
across our recipe portfolio. Its versatility,
taste and texture allows us to develop new
flexitarian and vegan dishes influenced by
on trend cuisines whilst offering a sustainable
choice for our consumers.

=




OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

A differentiated approach

A BUSINESS MODEL FOR GROWTH

Our people
and culture

We drive growth by focusing on our clients. We sectorise and
sub-sectorise our business to better understand the client’s
needs which allows us to create bespoke and innovative
solutions. We supplement our organic growth by making small
and medium sized acquisitions that add innovation, capability
and sector or market expertise in our existing markets.

We focus on operational execution and generate efficiencies by
utilising our scale as a market leader, optimising our supply
chain and diligently managing our food and labour costs through

in the market.

our Management and Performance (MAP) framework.

Strong cash generation enables us to reinvest in the customer
proposition and capitalise on the significant growth opportunities

Our organic revenue growth, the scale it creates and our focus
on cost and efficiencies give us a clear competitive advantage.
We can provide our clients and consumers with the best value in
terms of quality and cost and this, combined with sectorisation,
helps drive long term sustainable organic revenue growth.

Our people lie at the heart of our business. Our aim is to nurture
an engaged and highly capable workforce to win new business,
manage our units efficiently and effectively, and deliver the
healthiest, most innovative food solutions in a way that provides
an exceptional experience to our clients and consumers.

A STRATEGY FOR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

FOCUS
ON FOOD

TARGETED
APPROACH TO
SUPPORT SERVICES

Our priorities

Food is our focus and our core
competence. We take a pragmatic
and targeted approach to other
support services, developing
strategies on a country by

country basis.

The desire for focus means we are
also willing to exit countries which do
not fit our long term aspirations.

12 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

PRIORITISE
ORGANIC GROWTH

SELECT BOLT-ON
ACQUISITIONS

To drive growth

Our preference is to grow organically
given that it yields the highest
returns and leverages the significant
structural growth opportunity in the
global food services market.

However, we also seek to invest in
small to medium sized acquisitions,
but only if they are attractive targets
that have the right cultural fit and
further strengthen our portfolio.

BEST-IN-CLASS
EXECUTION, QUALITY
AND INNOVATION

And deliver for clients

We are committed to providing
the best quality and value to
our clients with best-in-class
execution. We have increased
our focus on innovation in our
core food business to bring
more variety and excitement
to our offer as well as to
improve our operations.



.. ) _:_u. .._'_-"*._ ..
Clare Hunt

Group Director of Strategy and M&A

WHAT AREAS OF THE BUSINESS DO YOU
FOCUS ON?
We focus on how we can optimise our business
model to be more efficient and drive growth.
In particular, we look at how we can implement
a more systematic approach to the ‘3 little Ps’
of pricing, purchasing and productivity across
the Group.

WHAT OTHER OPPORTUNITIES DO YOU SEE?
There’s so much going on in the food industry — it's
fascinating. For example, we're looking a lot at
online delivery at the moment, as well as working
with some really innovative suppliers on ingredients
and food preparation.

WHERE DOES M&A FIT?
We're always on the lookout for acquisitions that
can bring us great management teams and new
capabilities. That could be presence in a new
sub-sector, for example, or something that
enhances our current offer.

Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019 13
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

Long term stakeholder

Our strategy is to focus on food, and
our model for creating value remains
unchanged. Its longevity is down to
its simplicity and proven success.

Food is our focus and our core competence. We believe we can
capture the longer term opportunities across the industry whilst
delivering value to all our stakeholders. We do this by focusing
on our three key strategic pillars.

The Performance pillar is focused on ensuring best-in-class
execution across the entire Group. Our Management and
Performance (MAP) framework remains the foundation of
Compass’ performance. We are now codifying and sharing best
practices across all our countries — with particular focus on

value

pricing and customer experience (MAPs 1&2), purchasing
(MAP 3) and productivity (MAPs 4&5) initiatives.

Our People pillar is focused on ensuring we have a dedicated
and motivated workforce. Our 600,000 colleagues around the
world are at the heart of our business and we believe the way we
organise, engage and develop them is a critical competitive
advantage (see pages 46 to 51 for more detail).

Finally, we believe that leading with purpose is the way to fulfil the
true potential of the organisation. Under our Purpose pillar we
support initiatives across the Group which improve the health and
wellbeing of our people and consumers, are beneficial for the
environment and are better for the communities with whom we
engage (see pages 52 to 63 for more detail).

| 1 J

PERFORMANCE

PURPOSE

)

v

Delivering better quality, more sustainable long term growth

mApP

We use the Management and Performance (MAP) framework across the business.

MAP 1: Client sales and marketing

MAP 1 is about winning new business and retaining our
existing clients. We invest in sales and retention and are
increasingly sectorising and sub-sectorising the business
around the world to allow us to get closer to our customers.

MAP 2: Consumer sales and marketing

Like for like revenue consists of both volume and price. We
are focused on attracting and satisfying our customer base
with strong consumer propositions.

MAP 3: Cost of food

Food makes up around one third of our costs. In addition to
the benefits of our scale in food procurement, we are able to
manage food costs through careful menu planning and by
rationalising the number of products we buy and the
suppliers we buy them from.

14 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

MAP 4: In unit costs

In unit costs are made up predominantly of labour. We focus
on getting the right people in the right place at the right time.
By using labour scheduling techniques and improving
productivity, we are able to deliver the optimum level of
service in the most efficient way.

MAP 5: Above unit overheads

Having reduced the percentage of above unit overheads
considerably since MAP was first introduced in 2006 by
creating a simpler organisational model with fewer layers of
management and less bureaucracy, we now strive to leverage
those gains by maintaining overheads low whilst we continue
to grow revenue.



WHO WE CREATE VALUE FOR

We have a wide range of stakeholders that includes clients, consumers, colleagues, suppliers and shareholders as well as the
communities in which we operate. We seek to create value for all our stakeholders and aim to engage with them and take into
account their feedback to ensure (where possible) that we all benefit from Compass’ success.

L formance

CLIENTS & CONSUMERS

We have a diverse range of clients and an even wider range of
consumers in terms of the employees, students, patients and
sports fans that come to our restaurants and cafés at our
client sites.

Across this extraordinarily diverse base, we are conscious of the
need to offer all of our clients and consumers ‘value’ in price,
quality and experience. We also work closely with them to
promote and drive a nutritional health and wellness agenda that
suits the needs of their specific organisation and paves the way
for healthier, more balanced lifestyles.

INVESTORS

We create long term value for our investors by focusing on our
core food business and delivering sustainable profit growth and
strong cash generation.

Having invested to support the long term growth prospects of the
business (through capital expenditure up to 3.5% of sales and
bolt-on M&A which achieve our returns criteria), we reward our
shareholders with an ordinary dividend that grows in line with
constant currency earnings. In addition, we seek to maintain net
debt/EBITDA around 1.5x! over time, and consequently return
any surplus capital to shareholders via share buybacks or
special dividends.

We are a people-powered business. Our 600,000 colleagues
are fundamental to delivering high quality food and service and
to maintaining our reputation.

Through our People initiatives we are seeking to provide our
colleagues with an inclusive and stimulating work environment
— one where they can develop and progress, have a good
work-life balance and realise job satisfaction.

During 2019, we launched our set of three Compass
Commitments — Respect, Growth, Teamwork — which define
what our people can expect when they work for us.

We also launched a global development programme for unit
managers, Leadership in Action, which focuses on creating
positive working environments in units and helping managers
lead their teams more effectively.

See our People report on pages 46 to 51 for more information
about these initiatives.

wrppose

Our Purpose pillar and the initiatives we pursue are focused on
two cornerstones: safety as care and a renewed commitment
to sustainability.

CONSUMERS & COLLEAGUES

Caring for each other allows us to strengthen our performance

in occupational and food safety. This caring attitude, coupled
with internal and external initiatives to tackle issues such as
mental health awareness, increasingly deliver value to both our
colleagues and our consumers. We also have an opportunity to
support these stakeholders in achieving healthier, more
balanced lifestyles. The depth of expertise in the business allows
us to educate our consumers about health and wellness and,
through healthy menu offerings, encourage them to make better
nutritional choices.

SUPPLIERS

Our supply chain integrity requirements ensure we are
supporting suppliers who share our values. We collaborate with
our partners throughout the entire supply chain to deliver
sustainable, scalable and secure solutions for food and its
production. We source our food and non-food productsin a
sustainable manner.

ENVIRONMENT

We are championing initiatives that help the environment. In
2017, Compass founded Stop Food Waste Day — an annual
global awareness programme which in 2019 reached 89 million
on social media and an estimated 10 million people through
food waste engagement activities. We are considering other new
initiatives around packaging and plastics that are better for the
environment and are seeking to persuade our consumers to
adopt more sustainable behaviours, including plant-forward
meals which are not only good from a nutritional perspective but
are better for the environment.

COMMUNITIES

Our success depends on the support and inclusion of the vibrant
local communities which surround us. We look to give back by
getting involved with community projects and initiatives that
benefit the local area.

See our CR report on pages 52 to 63 for more information about
our Purpose initiatives.

1. PrelIFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Group on 1 October 2019. The Group expects between £950 million—£1,050 million of additional debt

on its balance sheet on adoption.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Engaging with our stakeholders

The success of our strategy is reliant on the support and
commitment of all our stakeholders. Having stakeholders who
believe in our brand and share our values is therefore very
important to us. We believe that together we are stronger, and
that by working together we can achieve our common goal. That
is why we are committed to maintaining strong, positive
relationships with our stakeholders, built on a foundation of

As a geographically and culturally diverse
business with around 600,000 colleagues in
45 countries, we have a global and diverse
community of stakeholders, each with

their own interests in and expectations of

the Company' mutual respect, trust and understanding.
More detail about how we engage with our stakeholders can be
found throughout the Report.
1 < O
Our people Our communities Our clients Our consumers
c Colleagues who work in The people who live in the local The businesses and The people to whom we serve
._g our business. communities around our sites organisations for which we food and drink and provide
% and operations. provide services around support services.
9 the world.
[
[a]

® engagement and teamwork
® providing opportunities for

® fair employment and equal
opportunities

® working within defined
sectors, creating bespoke,

® delicious, safe and
healthy food

) development and growth ® |ocal causes and issues innovative solutions to match ~ ® staying ahead of changing
9 ® creating a respectful specific market and client consumer lifestyles and
b environment requirements habits which impact how
g ® health and wellbeing ® health, wellbeing and focused people want to eat and drink
3 sustainable CR initiatives ® making sure that our food and
< ® technology and analytical beverage offer is sustainable
innovation to support and good for the planet
consumer solutions
Our people are at the heart of To build trust by operating By understanding what is We exist to serve people with
& our business and key to our responsibly and sustainably, and important to our clients, we nutritious food and drink, which
S ongoing success. We want our addressing issues that are ensure that our solutions are helps them learn better, work
S people to thrive in a fair and material to our communities. tailored to support their better and recover better. We
'1;) inclusive work environment. To provide training opportunities individual business objectives. want our consumers to thrive
> and support to local people and we create the environments
§ currently not in education, to help them do that, at all
training or employment. life stages.
There are many ways we We operate many local We aim to have open and We believe that engagementis a
engage, including engagement employment programmes to transparent relationships which  constant conversation with our
surveys, town hall meetings, recruit and develop local people  are based on honesty and consumers, listening carefully to
o Speak Up reports, internal social ~ to work in our sites. We partner respect. We build relationships how we can improve our service
1 media channels and with local charities and at all levels of our client and find new ways to delight. We
'é" consultative bodies. organisations to raise awareness  organisations, sharing market use a variety of methods
g and funds to help local causes. trends and insight, developing including formal surveys, social
S strategic and operational plans, listening, comment cards,
E against which we regularly workshops and observation. We
I

report. We hold independent
client surveys which measure
satisfaction levels.

combine analytical tools and
common sense to get to
actionable insights into our
consumers’ preferences.
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Sapna Sood

Group Director International Clients &

Market Development

Our suppliers

WHAT MAKES COMPASS DIFFERENT IN THE EYES OF CLIENTS?

INTERNATIONAL CLIENTS?
A key trend for our clients is the focus on enhancing the employee

We are unique in the marketplace in terms of our focus on food and multi
sector operations. We are fortunate to serve a wide range of clients in our
Business & Industry, Healthcare & Seniors, Education, Sports & Leisure and
Defence, Offshore & Remote sectors. This means that we get valuable
insight into consumer needs at multiple different life stages, seeing first
hand what food habits each generation will take into the workplace. This
helps us partner with our clients to build future-proof solutions. It also means
we can translate insights and best practice between sectors, for example
taking learnings from our work on mental health with Offshore clients and
applying these to our Business & Industry clients who are increasingly
focused on health and wellbeing in the workplace.

WHAT EMERGING TRENDS DO YOU SEE AMONGST YOUR

experience, delivering value to their employees and guests on a daily basis

with growing emphasis on supporting their health and wellbeing. The other
key focus is the use of technology to enhance the daily consumer journey
and support operational excellence.

(S

Our shareholders

QQ
Hl =N
NGOs

i

Governments & regulators

Our trusted partners who source,
produce and deliver products
and services.

Individuals or institutions that own
shares in Compass Group PLC.

Non-governmental organisations
(NGOs) which support us with
knowledge and expertise on key
social, environmental and
economic issues.

Regional and national government
bodies and agencies who
implement and enforce applicable
laws across our industry.

food safety and authenticity
workplace health and safety
supply chain integrity
human rights

® financial performance
and strategy
competitive positioning
outlook

ethical business practice
sound governance

and leadership

human rights
climate change
animal welfare
social issues

® consumer health and public
health policies
® food safety
® workplace health and safety
® human rights and
climate change
® compliance with laws
and regulations

To develop mutually beneficial
and lasting partnerships aimed at
addressing shared challenges in
responsible and sustainable
sourcing, and to communicate our
supply chain standards,
expectations and commitments.

As owners of the business we rely
on the support of our
shareholders, and their opinions
are extremely important to us. The
views of our major shareholders
are reported to, and discussed by,
the Compass Group Board on a
regular basis.

To develop meaningful and
robust action plans on the key
social, environmental and
economic issues that we can
positively impact.

To communicate our views to
those who have the responsibility
for implementing policy, laws
and regulations relevant to

our business.

Through a series of
communications, interactions
and formal reviews. In some of
our larger markets we also host
regular multi-stakeholder
supplier conferences.

We have ongoing dialogue with
our investors through one-to-one
and group meetings, webcasts,
conference calls and at our AGM.
The Group Investor Relations and
Corporate Affairs Director has day
to day responsibility for investor
relations and the Group CEO and
Group CFO dedicate significant
time to engaging with our major
shareholders. During 2019 we
also conducted an investor survey.

Through a series of
communications, interactions and
regular meetings, industry forums
and conferences.

Through a series of industry
consultations, forums and
conferences.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Optimising our performance

Dominic Blakemore
Group Chief Executive Officer

2019 RESULTS

| am pleased to report that Compass had another strong year.
My priority continues to be to drive the business forward and

deliver the financial performance and value creation that our
stakeholders have come to expect from Compass.

Revenue for the Group grew by 6.4% on an organic basis, as we
continue to expand within the £200 billion global food services
market. New business wins were 7.9% driven by strong MAP 1
(client sales and marketing) performance in all regions. Our
retention rate was maintained at 94.8% as a result of our
ongoing focus and investment in service and quality. Like for like
revenue grew by 3.7% reflecting sensible price increases and
strong volume growth in Sports & Leisure, partially offset by
weak Business & Industry volumes in Europe. On a statutory
basis, revenue increased by 8.8%, including the positive impact
from foreign currency translation.

Underlying operating profit increased by 4.7% (£84 million) on a
constant currency basis. Operating profit margin remained at
7.4% despite the more challenging trading environment in
Europe. We continue to work hard to drive efficiencies across the
business to offset cost pressures including the higher
mobilisation costs from increased new business wins. We have
maintained our focus on MAP 3 (cost of food) with ongoing
initiatives such as supplier and product rationalisation, improved
menu planning and food waste reduction programmes.

Optimising MAP 4 (labour and in unit costs) and MAP 5 (above
unit overheads) with initiatives around better labour scheduling,
workforce management, work design, training and retention
have become ever more important, particularly in markets such
as Europe and the USA where labour inflation persists.

18 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

On a statutory basis, operating profit decreased by 5.4% as the
impact of cost action charges offset higher profits and benefits
of foreign exchange.

As a result of the business’ continued strong earnings growth
and cash flow generation, we propose an annual dividend of
40.0 pence per share, up 6.1% on the prior year.

Taking appropriate cost actions

We are seeing good performances across most of the Group,
however we are not immune to macroeconomic challenges.
Although our European business is in good shape, delivering
organic revenue growth of 4.1%, as previously indicated we have
been seeing pressures in the region, particularly in some of our
largest markets. These pressures have been increasing during
the year, impacting volumes in our Business & Industry sector,
and consequently are having a significant impact on our
European margin. Consumer confidence continues to decline
and a number of key clients, notably in manufacturing,
automotive and financial services, have reduced their
headcount in recent months.

Given this trading backdrop, we are taking prompt action to
ensure we have the right sized labour model for the future. This
will protect the profitability of the business and further
strengthen our strong operational position, enabling us to
continue to capitalise on the attractive growth opportunities we
see in Europe. Although the vast majority of these actions are
focused on Europe, they have also been extended to a limited
number of countries in Rest of World.

These cost actions will result in a total non-underlying charge for
the Group of around £300 million, of which £190 million has
beenincurred in FY19, with the remainder expected to be
incurred in FY20. Approximately £160 million of the total charge
is cash, with £29 million having been spent in FY19. This mostly
relates to removing some MAP 4 (in unit labour) and some MAP
5 (overhead) costs, and has around a two year payback. The
FY19 charge also includes a one-off non-cash charge of

£120 million in respect of a change in the expected profitability
of some of those contracts that have been affected by the recent
deterioration in business and consumer confidence and that are
now considered to be structurally loss making and where asset
impairments have been taken. The run-rate for annual savings
resulting from the cost actions is expected to be c. £90 million
as we exit this year and have already been factored into the
2020 guidance.

GROUP STRATEGY

Our refreshed strategy, announced 18 months ago, ensures that
we further improve the long term quality and sustainability of our
financial results.

We remain focused on food, our core competency. The global
food services market is estimated to be more than £200 billion.
We see a large and exciting structural growth opportunity, with
only about 50% of the market currently outsourced, of which
approximately one third is in the hands of small and regional
players. We have a good track record in winning first time
outsourcing contracts.



The large and disparate nature of the food services market
makes it challenging to offer clients a one size fits all solution.
Therefore, we segment the market into various sectors and
subsectors using our portfolio of B2B brands. This allows us to
get close to our clients, understand their needs and create
different and exciting offers that meet their requirements and
differentiate us from the competition.

We are the largest player in the global market. As we continue to
grow and increase our scale, we further extend our competitive
advantage and our position as the most efficient provider. This
allows us to offer our clients and consumers the most exciting
and innovative solutions, as well as the best value. The ability to
innovate is important to ensure we meet our clients’ and
consumers’ rapidly evolving tastes and needs, and our
decentralised structure means we are well placed to pilot
concepts in local markets before expanding across the Group
where appropriate.

By stepping up the intensity with which we manage the
business and with a disciplined focus on Performance,
People and Purpose as our main strategic priorities, we are
well placed to continue to create sustainable long term value
for all of our stakeholders.

PERFORMANCE

Portfolio

To continue to drive our performance we are actively managing
our portfolio of businesses. Targeted and disciplined bolt-on
acquisitions are an effective way to strengthen our capabilities,
broaden our offering and increase our scale. M&A has also
proven to be an extraordinary source of talent. During 2019 we
invested £478 million, principally in North America. There
remains a good pipeline of bolt-on opportunities across

the Group.

We have continued to make progress on our disposal
programme and during the year completed several disposals
that bring cumulative revenues now disposed or exited to c. 3%
of Group revenue at an average margin of c. 4%. As previously
indicated, the overall programme of up to £1.2 billion revenues
is expected to be margin neutral. The programme will complete
during 2020.

MAP culture

For over 10 years, we have used our Management and
Performance (MAP) framework to drive performance across

the business. It is a simple framework that we all use to help us
focus on a common set of business drivers, whether it is winning
new business in the right sectors with the right terms (MAP 1),
increasing our consumer participation and spend (MAP 2),
reducing our food costs (MAP 3), our labour costs (MAP 4) or
our overheads (MAP 5).

Under the refreshed strategy we are codifying best practices and
developing tools and templates to help us execute with more
intensity and consistency across the Group. Our areas of focus
are pricing, purchasing and productivity. We have begun with
our larger markets and are rolling out initiatives depending on
the maturity of their functions. We will continue to use MAP to
ensure we have a disciplined focus on execution.

These initiatives are often supported through technology and
digital capability — both in terms of driving efficiencies and
optimising performance and also in developing products and
services which improve the consumer experience. Our digital
strategy is implemented locally in the most cost effective and
relevant way for each market. We are making investment into
systems and processes that will ultimately unlock more
efficiencies and leverage scale across the business in the
long term.

PEOPLE

People are our biggest source of competitive advantage. They
are the key to delivering excellent food service to our clients and
consumers together with strong financial results. We are in the
process of further enhancing our employee proposition to ensure
we have an engaged, high performing, and fulfilled workforce
that truly reflects the diversity of the societies we live in and the
communities we serve.

Our objective is to create an exceptional people business that is
inclusive, engaged and committed to developing our people and
providing them with the safest and fairest environment in which
to work. We are launching initiatives and improving our
processes to ensure we can:

e attract and develop the best leaders

e recruit, retain and develop the highest quality unit managers
in the industry

¢ have the best and most inclusive work places in the world with
a fully engaged workforce, and

e have a diverse workforce that mirrors the communities in
which we operate

For example, in May we launched our unit manager
development programme and to date around 2,000 unit
managers have participated in the tailored offsite programme.
We also launched the Compass Commitments of Respect,
Growth and Teamwork — what people can expect when they
are part of our business. In October, we conducted a global
engagement survey to help us to identify areas where we
need to take action to ensure people are experiencing

our Commitments.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW (CONTINUED)

PURPOSE

Our purpose is first and foremost a social purpose, the
foundation of which is a safety culture built around caring for our
people and our consumers — delivering personal and food
safety. We are integrating our sustainability strategy into the
business focused on:

e increasing the role of health and wellbeing in our
value proposition

e taking targeted actions where we can make the greatest
environmental difference, and

e driving positive outcomes beyond our business to make the
world a better place, such as our continued work with our
suppliers to source products responsibly and our commitment
to enrich local communities

We already have a strong commitment to corporate
responsibility. We are now building on this existing strength
and working more proactively with our clients and consumers
in those areas. For example, this year’s Stop Food Waste Day,
which Compass USA founded in 2017, extended across

38 countries with awareness about the campaign reaching
89 million people on social media.

CASH, BALANCE SHEET AND RETURNS

TO SHAREHOLDERS

Excellent cash flow generation, a strong balance sheet and
returns to shareholders continue to be an integral part of our
business model. Our priorities for how we use our cash remain
unchanged. We will continue to: (i) invest in the business to
support organic growth where we see opportunities with good
returns; (ii) grow the dividend in line with underlying constant
currency earnings per share; (iii) pursue M&A opportunities;
our preference is for small to medium sized bolt-on acquisitions,
where we look for returns greater than the cost of capital by
the end of year two; (iv) maintain strong investment grade
credit ratings by returning any surplus cash to shareholders
to target net debt to EBITDA of around 1.5x?.

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK

Compass has had another strong year. Organic revenue growth
was 6.4%, ahead of our target range, thanks to excellent growth
in North America and an improving performance in Rest of
World. There was good growth in our European business with
strong performances in UK Defence and Sports & Leisure
offsetting weak volumes in Business & Industry. The Group
margin during 2019 was maintained despite this more
challenging trading environment in Europe.

We are making good strategic progress through disciplined focus
on our Performance, People and Purpose priorities and have
continued to reshape our portfolio. Disposal proceeds have been
reinvested in bolt-on acquisitions to further strengthen our food
service offer and subsector approach, and in June we
announced the proposed acquisition of Fazer Food Services, a
leading food service business in the Nordics, which is a strong
strategic fit with Compass.

Despite this good performance, we are not immune to the macro
environment. Deteriorating business and consumer confidence
in Europe has impacted our Business & Industry volumes, new
business activity and margin. Given these trends, we are taking
prompt action in Europe and certain Rest of World markets to
adjust our cost base. As well as offsetting short term margin
pressures, by taking this action from a position of strength, we
will be better placed to capitalise on future growth opportunities.

Our expectations for the Group in 2020 are positive although
we remain cautious on the macro environment in Europe. The
pipeline of new contracts in North America is strong and Rest of
World is growing well, although we are seeing some hesitation in
decision making in Europe. Thanks to the Group’s geographic
and sectoral diversity, we are nevertheless confident of
continued progress. As such, we expect organic growth to be
around the mid-point of our 4-6% range whilst maintaining our
strong margin! as we mitigate the expected volume pressures
through our cost actions.

In the longer term, we remain excited about the significant
structural growth opportunities globally, the potential for
further revenue and profit growth, combined with further
returns to shareholders.

e
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Dominic Blakemore
Group Chief Executive Officer

26 November 2019

1. PrelFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Group on 1 October 2019. The Group expects between £950 million—£1,050 million of additional debt

on its balance sheet on adoption.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Delivering the Group’s strategy

The Board has delegated day to day operational decisions to the Executive Committee which is the key management committee for
the Group. The Executive Committee meets regularly, and develops the Group’s strategy, and reviews capital expenditure and
investment budgets.

Dominic Blakemore, Group Chief Executive Officer

Karen Witts, Group Chief Financial Officer

Gary Green, Group Chief Operating Officer, North America

Clare Hunt, Group Director of Strategy and M&A

Federico Tonetti, Group Safety and Sustainability Director

Venkie Shantaram, Regional Managing Director, Continental Europe

o0 h WN K~
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P

The Executive Committee is responsible for implementing Group policy, monitoring health and safety, financial,
operational and quality of service performance, purchasing and supply chain issues, succession planning and

governance matters.

=
.i""ilr‘;

Mark van Dyck, Regional Managing Director, Asia Pacific

Sandra Moura, Group Investor Relations & Corporate Affairs Director
Robin Mills, Managing Director, UK and Ireland

Sapna Sood, Group Director International Clients & Market Development
James Meaney, Regional Managing Director, Latin America

Alison Yapp, Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

DOMINIC BLAKEMORE
Group Chief Executive Officer

Joined the Board and Executive Committee in February 2012. Dominic
previously held the roles of Group Finance Director and Group Chief
Operating Officer, Europe. In October 2017, Dominic was appointed
Deputy Group CEO. He assumed the role of Group CEO in January 2018.
Key skills and competencies

Dominic has extensive financial management experience in a number of
international businesses together with general operational management
experience. Dominic is a chartered accountant.

Previous experience

Dominic was formerly non-executive director of Shire plc and Chief
Financial Officer of Iglo Foods Group Limited. Before joining Iglo Dominic
was European Finance & Strategy Director at Cadbury Plc having
previously held senior finance roles at that company. Prior to his role at
Cadbury Plc, he was a director at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

GARY GREEN

Group Chief Operating Officer, North America

Joined the Board and Executive Committee in January 2007. Appointed
Group Chief Operating Officer, North America in April 2012.

Key skills and competencies

Gary brings strong business and operational leadership as well as
business development and wide ranging sales experience. Gary is a
chartered accountant and in 2001 received an honorary doctorate from
Johnson & Wales University in the USA.

Previous experience

Gary joined the Group in 1986 in a senior finance role in the UK and
became a UK director in 1992. He relocated to the USA in 1994 as Chief
Finance Officer of the Group’s North American business and in 1999
became Chief Executive Officer, North America.

KAREN WITTS
Group Chief Financial Officer

Joined the Board and Executive Committee as Group Chief Financial
Officer in April 2019.

Key skills and competencies

Karen is an experienced Chief Financial Officer with a strong background
in finance and management across a variety of sectors in global
organisations. Karen is a chartered accountant.

Previous experience

Karen joined Compass from Kingfisher PLC where she was Group Chief
Financial Officer and a member of the board of directors for over six
years. Prior to working at Kingfisher, Karen held senior finance positions
at Vodafone Group PLC and BT PLC and was a former non-executive
director of Wolseley plc. Karen’s early career included finance roles at
Mars, Paribas, Grand Metropolitan and Ernst & Whinney.

JAMES MEANEY

Regional Managing Director, Latin America

Joined the Group and Executive Committee in November 2017.

Key skills and competencies

Highly experienced in business development and leadership,

James holds a Bachelor’s Degree in economics from Notre Dame
University, an MBA from Harvard and completed INSEAD’s advanced
management course.

Previous experience

James has spent the last 20+ years based in Brazil and led a number of
communications and service based organisations in the region, most
recently as Interim CEO at Aceco TI.

ROBIN MILLS
Managing Director, UK & Ireland

Appointed to the Executive Committee in November 2015, having joined
the Group in 2008. Appointed Managing Director, UK & Ireland in
November 2019.

Key skills and competencies

Respected innovator with significant experience in people management
and business operations.

Previous experience

Robin joined Compass as HR Director for UK & Ireland before becoming
Managing Director of the education business in the UK, Chartwells and
then Group Chief People Officer. Robin stood down as Group Chief
People Officer on 25 November 2019 and was appointed Managing
Director, UK & Ireland on the same day. Robin’s career in human
resources includes roles at Scottish and Newcastle Breweries,

Diageo plc and Woolworth’s (part of the Kingfisher PLC).
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VENKIE SHANTARAM

Regional Managing Director, Continental Europe
Appointed to the Executive Committee in January 2018, having joined
Compass in July 2017.

Key skills and competencies

A skilled business leader and innovator, Venkie has an MBA

from INSEAD.

Previous experience

Venkie was a partner with McKinsey & Company, focusing on global
energy clients, later holding Regional Managing Director positions for
Aggreko plc in Europe and Asia. He was previously Regional Managing

Director for Compass Central Asia, Middle East, Africa, Turkey &
Southeast Asia Offshore & Remote.



MARK VAN DYCK
Regional Managing Director, Asia Pacific

Appointed to the Executive Committee in April 2016, having joined the
Group in February 2013.

Key skills and competencies

Mark is highly experienced in international business leadership. He holds

a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Business Administration and is a
graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Previous experience

Mark held senior leadership roles for over 22 years in companies
including LG Electronics, The Coca-Cola Company, Waterford
Wedgwood, Cinzano, Allied Lyons and Gillette. The majority of his career
has been spent in the service and consumer sectors with particular focus
on the Asia Pacific region.

CLARE HUNT
Group Director of Strategy and M&A

Appointed to the Executive Committee in December 2018, having joined
the Group in July 2011.

Key skills and competencies

Through her varied career, Clare has developed a range of skills across
strategy, corporate finance and communications. She attended the
Corporate Affairs Academy at Said Business School, University of Oxford
and has a BA in Modern History from The University of Bristol.

Previous experience

Before joining Compass, Clare was Co-Head of the Industrials practice at
Finsbury, the strategic communications agency, and previously worked
in corporate finance with J.P. Morgan Cazenove. Within Compass Clare
held the role of Director of Communications before being promoted to
Group Director of Strategy and M&A in January 2017.

SANDRA MOURA

Group Investor Relations & Corporate Affairs Director
Appointed to the Executive Committee in February 2017, having joined
the Group in October 2014.

Key skills and competencies

Highly experienced in investor relations and business finance. Sandra
holds an MBA from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
and a BA in Economics from Brown University.

Previous experience

Prior to joining Compass, Sandra’s career in investor relations and
financial analysis spanned the International Finance Corporation in

Washington DC, and UK FTSE 100 companies Rexam plc and Diageo plc.

SAPNA SOOD

Group Director of International Clients & Market
Development

Appointed to the Executive Committee in October 2018, having joined
the Group in September 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Sapna has in-depth experience of global business development, with a
focus on international clients. She has an MBA from IMD Business
School and a Bachelor of Engineering in Chemical Engineering from the
University of Sydney.

Previous experience

Sapna held various senior positions in operations and supply chain in
Australia, the USA, Singapore, Germany and China with BOC, following
which she joined Lafarge SA as Senior Vice President of HSE, France.
Prior to joining Compass, Sapna served as Country CEO for
LafargeHolcim, Philippines.

FEDERICO TONETTI

Group Safety & Sustainability Director

Appointed to the Executive Committee in December 2018, having joined
the Group in May 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Leader and innovator in the field of business sustainability. Federico

holds a Masters Degree in Economics from Bocconi University (Milan)
and post-graduate International MBA from IE Business School (Madrid).

Previous experience

Federico has 20 years’ experience in general management, global
functional roles and sales and marketing positions for a variety of
multi-national manufacturing organisations across eight different
countries. Federico also spent four years at Bain & Company in
Strategy Consulting.

ALISON YAPP
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

Joined the Group in August 2018. Appointed Group General

Counsel and Company Secretary and joined the Executive Committee
in October 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Alison is a solicitor with more than 25 years’ international experience in
FTSE and NYSE listed companies across the services, industrial and
engineering sectors. She has significant experience in strategic M&A,
crisis and change management and holds an LLB (Hons) from The
University of Bristol.

Previous experience

Alison was formerly Chief General Counsel and Company Secretary of
Amec Foster Wheeler plc, Company Secretary and General Legal Counsel
of Hays plc and Company Secretary and Group Legal Advisor of Charter
plc. Prior to joining Charter, Alison held a number of senior legal roles at
Johnson Matthey plc.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Measuring progress

We track our performance against a mix of financial and

non-financial measures, which we believe best reflect our
strategic priorities of growth, efficiency and shareholder returns
underpinned by safe and responsible working practices.

KPI METRICS

Our strategic priorities are driven by our
goal to deliver shareholder value and we
use a number of financial KPIs to
measure our progress. Growing the
business and driving ongoing efficiencies
are integral to our strategy. The
importance of safety in everything we do
is demonstrated by three non-financial
performance indicators that we use
across our business.

The Group KPIs should be read in
conjunction with the Strategy and
Risk sections.

See pages 12to 15 and
41 to 45 respectively.

STRATEGIC FINANCIAL

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth compares the
underlying revenue delivered from
continuing operations in the current
year with that from the prior year,
adjusting for the impact of acquisitions,
sale and closure of businesses and
exchange rate movements.

Why we measure

Our organic revenue performance
embodies our success in growing and
retaining our customer base, as well
as our ability to drive volumes in

our existing business and maintain
appropriate pricing levels in light

of input cost inflation.

6.47

20
Is]

6.4

5.6

=
o)

4.0

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

Underlying operating margin
Underlying operating margin divides
the underlying operating profit before
share of profit after tax of associates
by the underlying revenue.

Why we measure

The operating profit margin is an
important measure of the efficiency of
our operations in delivering great food
and support services to our clients
and consumers.

1.47,

7.2

7.2
7.4
7.4
7.4

2015 2016 2017 2018" 2019

Throughout the Strategic Report, and consistent with prior years, underlying and other alternative performance measures are used to describe the Group’s

performance. These are not recognised under IFRS or other generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Executive Committee of the Group manages
and assesses the performance of the business on these measures and believes they are more representative of ongoing trading, facilitate meaningful year on
year comparisons and hence provide more useful information to shareholders. Underlying and other alternative performance measures are defined in the
glossary of terms on pages 246 and 247. A summary of the adjustments from statutory to underlying results is shown in note 34 on page 208 and further detailed
in the consolidated income statement (page 138), reconciliation of free cash flow (page 143), note 2 segmental reporting (pages 161 to 164) and note 35
organic revenue and organic profit (page 210).
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FINANCIAL

Return on capital employed (ROCE)
ROCE divides the net operating profit
after tax (NOPAT) by the 12 month
average capital employed. NOPAT is
calculated as underlying operating profit
from continuing operations less operating
profit of non-controlling interests before
tax, net of income tax at the underlying
rate of the year.

Why we measure

ROCE demonstrates how we have
delivered against the various investments
we make in the business, be it operational
expenditure, capital expenditure or
bolt-on acquisitions.

19.9%

19.1

19.4
20.3
20.2

I 19.5

2015 2016 2017 2018! 2019

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

NON-FINANCIAL

Health and safety

Global Lost Time Incident

Frequency Rate

Cases where one of our colleagues is
away from work for one or more shifts as a
result of a work related injury or illness.

Why we measure

A reduction in lost time incidents is an
important measure of the effectiveness of
our safety culture. It also lowers rates of
absenteeism and costs associated with
work related injuries and ilinesses.

-387%

(since 2015)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Underlying basic earnings per share
Underlying basic earnings per share
divides the underlying attributable profit
by the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year.

Why we measure

Earnings per share measures the
performance of the Group in delivering
value to shareholders.

89.2p

77.9

53.7
61.1
72.3
I 552

2015 2016 2017 2018! 2019

Food safety
Global Food Safety Incident Rate
Cases of substantiated food safety

incidents, including food borne ilinesses.

Why we measure

The Food Safety Incident Rate is a helpful
measure of our ability to provide food that

is safe and of the right quality to our
consumers globally.

-397%

(since 2015)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Underlying free cash flow

Measures cash generated by continuing
operations, after working capital, capital
expenditure, interest and tax but before
acquisitions, disposals, dividends

and share buybacks.

Why we measure

Measures the success of the Group in
turning profit into cash through the
careful management of working capital
and capital expenditure. Maintaining a
high level of cash generation supports our
progressive dividend policy.

£1,247m

1.141

722
908
974
I 1,247

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Environment

GHG intensity ratio

GHG intensity ratio relating to the top 25
countries, which represent 96% of Group
revenue. The scope and methodology of
our reporting has changed this year,
therefore the data is not comparable on a
like for like basis. See page 60 for

more details.

Why we measure

Since 2008, we have been measuring
our carbon emissions to reduce our
impact on the environment and increase
operational efficiency.

9.1

9.1

6.7
6.7
6.3

6.0

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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REGIONAL REVIEW

North America

Our North American business, which now accounts for over 60%
of Group revenue, delivered an excellent performance, with
organic revenue growth of 7.7%. Growth was driven by good
levels of new business and a strong retention rate across all
sectors. As in previous years, around 40% of new business was
from first time outsourcing, underlining the strong structural
growth opportunities within our largest market. Like for like
revenue growth benefited from pricing and positive trading
volumes from our Sports & Leisure sector.

Strong growth in our Business & Industry sector was driven by
continued good net new business and some like for like growth.
New contract wins include the Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce, American Airlines headquarters and Humana Inc.

Solid organic revenue growth in our Healthcare & Seniors sector
reflected good levels of new business. New contract wins include

the Atrium Health and Lexington Health Network, as well as
significant additional business with Tenet Healthcare.

Our Education sector reported strong net new business
including contract wins with New York University, Butler
University and the Florence County Schools District.

Our Sports & Leisure sector delivered a good organic
performance with an excellent retention rate and like for like
volume growth. Contract wins include Allegiant Stadium, home
to the Las Vegas Raiders, and the Lexington Convention Center.

Underlying operating profit of £1,290 million increased by

9.0% (£106 million) on a constant currency basis. Ongoing
efficiency initiatives resulted in modest underlying margin

progression for the year.

ORGANIC
REVENUE GROWTH

+1.1%

(2018: +7.8%)

UNDERLYING
REVENUE

£15,694m

(2018% £13,718m)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT

£1,290m

(2018%: £1,123m)

UNDERLYING CONTRIBUTION
OPERATING MARGIN TO GROUP REVENUE

8.27 62.4%

(2018': 8.2%) (2018 59.3%)

Underlying Change

2019 2018! Reported rates Constant currency Organic
Revenue £15,694m £13,718m 14.4% 8.5% 7.7%
Operating profit £1,290m £1,123m 14.9% 9.0% 7.9%
Operating margin 8.2% 8.2% -
Region as a % of Group revenue 62.4% 59.3%

UNDERLYING
REVENUE BY
SECTOR

M Business & Industry — 32%

Healthcare & Seniors — 28%

Education — 22%

Sports & Leisure — 16%

Defence, Offshore & Remote — 2%

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

28 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019



Gary Green
Group Chief Operating Officer,
North America

We have a passion for great food and creating inspiring dining choices for all our
customers throughout our companies in North America. Innovation is a key driver
across our business and is in everything we do, whether it’s technology, culinary or
initiatives in sustainability and supply chain management. We don’t stand still and
that’s the way we keep ahead of the competition.

We recognise that every client has unique food demands and that it will vary
significantly across the different sectors in which we operate. We provide them with
warm hospitality and excellent service, together with a wide variety of choice. Our
scale as the leading player in the market enables us to offer this at the lowest cost.
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REGIONAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Europe

Organic revenue growth in Europe was 4.1% for the full year,
although growth slowed in the second half. This included strong
growth from new business, notably the UK Defence contracts in
the first half and Puy du Fou in France in the fourth quarter, in
addition to strong trading in the Sports & Leisure sector. This
was partially offset by lower volumes in Business & Industry
across key markets where we have seen reduced participation
and lower consumer spend.

Our new contract wins during the period include Landsec in the
UK, Cercle National des Armées in Paris and Hopitaux Robert
Schuman in Luxembourg. Contract extensions include Chelsea
Football Club in the UK.

Underlying operating profit declined on a constant currency
basis by £26 million or 6.6%. The region delivered a good level of
organic revenue growth overall, supported by a strong
performance in Sports & Leisure, where increased revenues
tend to have a lower drop through to profit. Our focus on
efficiencies, pricing and portfolio management has only partially
offset the weakness in Business & Industry volumes (which
declined significantly in the fourth quarter), cost inflation, and
the higher mobilisation costs (associated with the strong
growth). In aggregate, the underlying operating margin declined
by 60 basis points to 6.3%.

ORGANIC
REVENUE GROWTH

+4.17,

(2018: +2.1%)

UNDERLYING
REVENUE

£5,854m

(2018 £5,762m)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT

£368m

(2018 £395m)

UNDERLYING CONTRIBUTION
OPERATING MARGIN TO GROUP REVENUE

6.3% 23.3%

(2018%: 6.9%) (2018%: 24.9%)

Underlying Change

2019 2018! Reported rates Constant currency Organic
Revenue £5,854m  £5,762m 1.6% 1.6% 4.1%
Operating profit £368m £395m (6.8)% (6.6)% (8.0)%
Operating margin 6.3% 6.9% (60)bps
Region as a % of Group revenue 23.3% 24.9%

UNDERLYING
REVENUE BY
SECTOR

M Business & Industry — 53%

Healthcare & Seniors — 16%

Education — 13%

Sports & Leisure — 10%

Defence, Offshore & Remote — 8%

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.
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Venkie Shantaram
Regional Managing Director,
Continental Europe

Robin Mills
Managing Director,
UK & Ireland

Despite macro headwinds in Europe, | believe that there
are good opportunities to step up our performance in
Continental Europe. The region has one of the most
experienced leadership teams in Compass Group, with
around 100,000 colleagues covering 21 countries.

As a team, we will be focusing equally on driving growth,
improving operating performance, and putting the best
people in place in leadership roles and in client units. | am

confident that we can deliver strong and sustainable results.

The UK is the Group’s second largest market, after the
USA, and has had a good year in terms of growth, having
particularly benefited from increased volumes in our
excellent Sports & Leisure business. This included an
extension of our contract at Wimbledon, and operations at
Tottenham Hotspurs’ new stadium and Twickenham’s
redeveloped East Stand.

Although Business & Industry has been more challenging
due to recent macro and political uncertainty, thisis a

key area of focus for us going forward. Based on our
market leading position, talented people and clear strategy
of delivering tasty and healthy food for our clients,

we have a strong platform for future success.




REGIONAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Rest of World

Organic revenue in our Rest of World region grew by 4.3%,
including a strong performance in Turkey, India, Spanish
speaking LATAM and our Offshore & Remote business outside
Australia, notably Kazakhstan.

The Business & Industry and Education sectors of the region
continue to perform well and experienced good growth. New
business wins include Bloomberg in Hong Kong, Mercedes Benz
in Brazil and Bursa City Hospital in Turkey. We continue to retain
contracts including Victoria Zoos in Australia, Mondelez in
Argentina and Amazon in India.

As expected, our Offshore & Remote business returned to
growth in the second half of the year as we lapped the large
Australian construction project that moved to production
towards the end of 2018. Across the region we have continued
to win and retain contracts.

Underlying operating profit improved by 5.9% (£16 million)
on a constant currency basis, with the underlying operating
margin improving in part due to portfolio management and
implementation of pricing, purchasing and productivity
initiatives. We remain focused on best practice sharing and
driving efficiencies across the business.

ORGANIC
REVENUE GROWTH

+4.3%,

(2018: +2.9%)

UNDERLYING
REVENUE

£3,604m

(2018%: £3,667m)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT

£285m

(2018%: £276m)

UNDERLYING CONTRIBUTION
OPERATING MARGIN TO GROUP REVENUE

1.9% 14.3%

(2018%:7.5%) (2018%:15.8%)

Underlying Change

2019 2018! Reported rates Constant currency Organic
Revenue £3,604m £3,667m (1.7Y% 0.8% 4.3%
Operating profit £285m £276m 3.3% 5.9% 7.4%
Operating margin 7.9% 7.5% 40bps
Region as a % of Group revenue 14.3% 15.8%

UNDERLYING
REVENUE BY
SECTOR

M Education —

®

M Business & Industry — 42%

B Healthcare & Seniors — 14%

7%

Sports & Leisure — 8%

Defence, Offshore & Remote — 29%

1. Restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.
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Mark van Dyck
Regional Managing Director,
Asia Pacific

“

James Meaney
Regional Managing Director,
Latin America

Asia Pacific is a hugely exciting market for us, as it includes
the more developed markets of countries like Australia and
Japan, where we have a very strong presence, and the high
growth economies of the emerging markets such as India
and China.

As these economies mature and the demand for outsourced
quality food service propositions increases, we're extremely
well placed to capitalise on the huge growth opportunities
available in these markets based on our depth of expertise
and market positioning.

We have made good progress advancing our strategic
priorities of Performance, People and Purpose and are
starting to see the benefits of this focus in our region.

For example, in Argentina we delivered strong growth and a
good profit margin despite the challenging macroeconomic
environment. In Chile, where our mining sector is particularly
strong, we are encouraged by significant wins in this sector.

With regard to People, we welcomed eight new members to our
leadership team and put 700 of our unit managers through
leadership training. We have made important advances in our
Purpose agenda with all safety KPIs improving, largely due to a
commitment to preventative safety walks, and we partnered
with clients and local suppliers in Colombia and Brazil for
award-winning sustainable local sourcing programmes.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Strong organic revenue growth

2019 has been another strong year

with organic revenue growth of 6.4%,
underlying margin of 7.4% and an increase
in free cash flow of 9.3%.

Karen Witts
Group Chief Financial Officer

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Increase/

2019 2018! (decrease)
Revenue
Underlying at constant currency 25,152 23,795 5.7%
Underlying at reported rates 25,152 23,147 8.7%
Statutory 24,878 22,872 8.8%
Organic growth 6.4% 5.5%
Total operating profit
Underlying at constant currency 1,882 1,798 4.7%
Underlying at reported rates 1,882 1,744 7.9%
Statutory 1,601 1,693 (5.4)%
Operating margin
Underlying at reported rates 7.4% 7.4% —
Profit before tax
Underlying at constant currency 1,772 1,681 5.4%
Underlying at reported rates 1,772 1,630 8.7%
Statutory 1,469 1,523 (3.5)%
Basic earnings per share
Underlying at constant currency 85.2p 80.4p 6.0%
Underlying at reported rates 85.2p 77.9p 9.4%
Statutory 70.0p 71.3p (1.8)%
Free cash flow
Underlying at reported rates 1,247 1,141 9.3%
Full year dividend per ordinary share 40.0p 37.7p 6.1%

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

Definitions of underlying measures of performance can be found in the glossary on pages 246 and 247.
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SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Underlying revenue! Underlying revenue growth?
2019 20183 Reported Constant
£m £m rates currency Organic
North America 15,694 13,718 14.4% 8.5% 7.7%
Europe 5,854 5,762 1.6% 1.6% 4.1%
Rest of World 3,604 3,667 (1.7)% 0.8% 4.3%
Total 25,152 23,147 8.7% 5.7% 6.4%
Underlying operating profit! Underlying operating margin?
2019 20183 2019 20183
£m £m £m £m
North America 1,290 1,123 8.2% 8.2%
Europe 368 395 6.3% 6.9%
Rest of World 285 276 7.9% 7.5%
Unallocated overheads (80) (70)
Total before associates 1,863 1,724 7.4% 7.4%
Associates 19 20
Total 1,882 1,744
STATUTORY AND UNDERLYING RESULTS
2019 2018°
Statutory  Adjustments Underlying Statutory  Adjustments Underlying
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 24,878 274 25,152 22,872 275 23,147
Operating profit 1,601 281 1,882 1,693 51 1,744
Net loss on sale and closure of businesses (7) 7 - (58) 58 -
Net finance costs (125) 15 (110) (112) (2) (114)
Profit before tax 1,469 303 1,772 1,523 107 1,630
Tax (351) (62) (413) (385) (3) (388)
Profit after tax 1,118 241 1,359 1,138 104 1,242
Non-controlling interest (8) = (8) (8) — (8)
Attributable profit 1,110 241 1,351 1,130 104 1,234
Average number of shares (millions) 1,586 — 1,586 1,584 - 1,584
Basic earnings per share (pence) 70.0p 15.2p 85.2p 71.3p 6.6p 77.9p
EBITDA 2,459 2,265
Gross capex 853 813
Free cash flow 1,247 1,141

1. Definitions of underlying measures of performance can be found in the glossary on pages 246 and 247.
2. Reconciliation between the different growth rates is provided in note 35.
3. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

Further details of the adjustments can be found in the consolidated income statement, note 2 segmental reporting and note 34

statutory and underlying results.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied the new accounting standards IFRS 15
‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial
instruments’ in the current year. Comparatives for 2018 have
been restated to reflect the impact of IFRS 15, resulting in a net
increase in operating profit and decrease in revenue of less than
1%. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a material impact and
the Group has adjusted opening retained earnings to reflect an
additional provision for impairment of trade receivables using
the expected credit loss model.

The Group will adopt IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ from 1 October 2019. The
Group’s estimate of the financial impact of these changes on the
consolidated balance sheet is the recognition of an additional
lease liability between £950 million and £1,050 million. Under
our chosen transition option, the results for the 2019 financial
year will not be restated. The net impact of IFRS 16 on the
consolidated income statement is expected to be immaterial.

STATUTORY RESULTS

Revenue

On a statutory basis, revenue was £24,878 million (2018%:
£22,872 million), representing growth of 8.8%, mainly driven by
organic growth and partially by foreign exchange benefits.

Operating profit

Operating profit was £1,601 million (2018': £1,693 million),
a decrease of 5.4% over the prior year as the impact of the
cost action programme offset higher profits and foreign
exchange benefits.

Statutory operating profit includes non-underlying items of £281
million (2018: £51 million). The most significant non-underlying
items are explained further below; for a full list refer to note 34.

Deteriorating business and consumer confidence in Europe has
impacted our Business & Industry volumes, new business
activity and margin. Given these trends, we are taking prompt
action in Europe and certain Rest of World markets to adjust our
cost base. As a result, the Group’s income statement includes a
cost action programme charge of £190 million. Included within
this amount, there is a one-off non-cash charge of £120 million
in respect of a change in the expected profitability of some of
those contracts that have been affected by the recent
deterioration in business and consumer confidence and that
are now considered to be structurally loss making and where
asset impairments have been taken. Of the £190 million
non-underlying charges, £29 million has been paid in the year
to 30 September 2019.

Net loss on sale and closure of businesses

As a result of the strategic review of the business, the Group is
in the process of selling or exiting its operations in a number of
countries, sectors or businesses in order to simplify its portfolio.
The Group has successfully completed the sale of several
businesses, including its operations in South Africa, Vision
Security Group in the UK, Sports & Leisure in Japan and part of
its US laundries business. As a result, the Group has recognised
a net gain of £50 million on the sale and closure of businesses
(2018: £3 million loss), including price adjustments to disposals
completed in prior years. This gain was offset by £57 million exit
costs and asset write downs relating to committed or completed
business exits (2018: £55 million).

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.
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As at the balance sheet date, the Group has further classified
certain businesses as held for sale as these disposals are highly
probable and expected to be completed within 12 months.

Finance costs
Net finance costs increased to £125 million (2018: £112 million),
mainly due to the change in fair value of certain derivatives.

Tax charge

Profit before tax was £1,469 million (2018!: £1,523 million)
giving rise to an income tax expense of £351 million (2018%:
£385 million), equivalent to an effective tax rate of 23.9%
(2018 25.3%).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share were 70.0 pence (2018': 71.3 pence),
a decrease of 1.8% as the impact of the cost action programme
offset higher profits and foreign exchange benefits.

UNDERLYING RESULTS

We track our performance against underlying and other
alternative performance measures, which we believe best
reflect our strategic priorities of growth, efficiency and
shareholder returns.

A summary of adjustments from statutory results to underlying
results is shown in note 34 on pages 208 and 209 and further
detailed in the consolidated income statement (page 138),
reconciliation of free cash flow (page 143), note 2 segmental
reporting (pages 161 to 164) and note 35 organic revenue and
organic profit (page 210).

Revenue

On an organic basis, revenue increased by 6.4%. New business
wins were 7.9%, driven by strong performance across the
regions. Our retention rate was 94.8% as a result of our ongoing
focus and investment in service and quality. Like for like revenue
growth was 3.7%, reflecting sensible price increases and strong
volume growth in Sports & Leisure, partially offset by weak
Business & Industry volumes in Europe.

Operating profit

Underlying operating profit was £1,882 million (2018': £1,744
million), an increase of 7.9%. If we restate 2018'’s profit at the
2019 average exchange rates, it would increase by £54 million
to £1,798 million. On a constant currency basis, underlying
operating profit has therefore increased by £84 million, or 4.7%.

Operating margin

With very strong revenue growth the operating profit margin
remained unchanged from the prior year at 7.4% as we continue
to work hard to drive efficiencies across the business through our
MAP framework.

Finance costs

The underlying net finance cost was £110 million (2018: £114
million). For 2020, we expect an underlying net finance cost of
around £110 million.



Tax charge

On an underlying basis, the tax charge was £413 million (2018":
£388 million), equivalent to an effective tax rate of 23.3%
(2018 23.8%). The rate reduction primarily reflects the full
year impact of the reduction in the US federal tax rate
introduced by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, whilst the prior year
comparative only includes nine months of benefit. The tax
environment continues to be very uncertain, with more
challenging tax authority positions and investigations globally.
Our current expectations are that the 2020 effective tax rate will
increase to around 24%.

Earnings per share
On a constant currency basis, the underlying basic earnings per
share increased by 6.0% to 85.2 pence (2018': 80.4 pence).

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Dividends

Our dividend policy is to grow the dividend in line with growth in
underlying constant currency earnings per share.

In determining the level of dividend in any year in accordance
with the policy, the Board also considers a number of other
factors that influence the proposed dividend, which include but
are not limited to:

e the level of available distributable reserves in the
Parent Company

e future cash commitments and investment needs to sustain
the long term growth prospects of the business

e potential strategic opportunities

e the level of dividend cover

Further surpluses, after considering the matters set out above,
are distributed to shareholders over time by way of special

dividend payments, share repurchases or a combination of both.

Compass Group PLC, the Parent Company of the Group, is a
non-trading investment holding company which derives its
distributable reserves from dividends paid by subsidiary
companies. The level of distributable reserves in the Parent
Company is reviewed annually and the Group aims to maintain
distributable reserves that provide adequate cover for dividend
payments. The distributable reserves of the Parent Company
include the balance on the profit and loss account reserve,
which at 30 September 2019 amounted to £1,252 million.

The Group is currently in a strong position to continue to fund its
dividend, which continues to be well covered by cash generated
by the business. Details of the Group’s going concern
assessment can be found on page 40.

The ability of the Board to maintain its future dividend policy will
be influenced by a number of the principal risks identified on
pages 41 to 45 that could adversely impact the performance of
the Group, although we believe we have the ability to mitigate
those risks as outlined on pages 42 to 45.

It is proposed that a final dividend of 26.9 pence per share be
paid on 24 February 2020 to shareholders on the registeron 17
January 2020. This will result in a total dividend for the year of
40.0 pence per share (2018: 37.7 pence per share), a year on
year increase of 6.1%. The dividend is covered 2.1 times on an
underlying earnings basis and 2.0 times on a cash basis.

The final dividend of 26.9 pence will be paid gross and
a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) will be available.
The last date for receipt of elections for the DRIP will be
3 February 2020.

Share buyback programme

The Group did not buy any shares during the period under the
share buyback programme (2018: £nil). The directors’ authority
to purchase the Company’s shares in the market was renewed
by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
held on 7 February 2019.

Share price

The market price of the Group’s ordinary shares at the close of
the financial year was 2,093.00 pence per share (2018:
1,706.00 pence per share).

UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW

Underlying free cash flow totalled £1,247 million (2018:

£1,141 million), an increase of 9.3%, which includes the benefit
of approximately 3.8% from currency translation. Underlying
free cash flow conversion was 66% (2018: 65%).

Gross capital expenditure of £853 million (2018: £813 million)
is equivalent to 3.4% (2018": 3.5%) of underlying revenues.

We continue to deliver strong returns on our capital expenditure
across all regions. In 2020, we expect capital expenditure to be
up to 3.5% of revenue.

The working capital inflow, excluding provisions and pensions,
was £59 million (2018: £126 million inflow). This inflow was
better than expected due to favourable timing.

The outflow related to post employment benefit obligations
net of service costs was £15 million (2018: £8 million).
Following the completion of the triennial valuation of the
Compass Group Pension Plan (UK), which continues to have
a funding surplus, we expect a total outflow for the Group

of around £20 million in 2020.

The net interest outflow was £107 million (2018: £95 million).
The underlying cash tax rate was 19% (2018*: 20%).

ACQUISITIONS

The total cash spent on acquisitions in the year, net of cash
acquired, was £478 million (2018: £452 million), comprising
£449 million of bolt-on acquisitions and investments in
associates, £33 million of contingent consideration relating to
prior years’ acquisitions, offset by £4 million of cash acquired
net of acquisition transaction costs.

The Group made several bolt-on acquisitions during the year,
including the purchase of Client Rewards for an initial
consideration of £164 million ($209 million). Client Rewards is
an lowa based company, that provides procurement and supply
chain management services.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

DISPOSALS

As a result of the strategic review of the business, the Group is in
the process of selling or exiting its operations in a number of
countries, sectors or businesses in order to simplify its portfolio.
The Group has successfully completed the sale of several
businesses, including its operations in South Africa, Vision
Security Group in the UK, Sports & Leisure in Japan and part of
its US laundries business. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group has further classified certain businesses as held for sale,
as these disposals are highly probable and are expected to be
completed within 12 months. The Group received £101 million
(2018: £39 million) in respect of disposal proceeds net of

exit costs.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net debt

The ratio of net debt to market capitalisation of £33,273 million
as at 30 September 2019 was 9.8% (2018: 12.5%). Net debt
decreased slightly to £3,272 million (2018: £3,383 miillion). The
ratio of net debt to EBITDA was 1.3x. This is lower than our
target as we are waiting for EU competition clearance for the
proposed acquisition of Fazer Food Services. Our leverage policy
is to maintain strong investment grade credit ratings, returning
any surplus cash to shareholders to target net debt to EBITDA of
around 1.5x2.

The Group generated £1,247 million of underlying free cash flow
(2018: £1,141 million), including investing £806 million in net
capital expenditure, and spent £377 million on acquisitions net
of disposal proceeds. £403 million was paid in respect of the
final dividend for the financial year 2018 and £208 million was
paid for the interim 2019 dividend.

The remaining £148 million movement in net debt related
predominantly to foreign currency translation and other
non-cash movements.

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

Return on capital employed

Return on capital employed was 19.5% (2018": 20.2%) based on
net underlying operating profit after tax at the underlying
effective tax rate of 23.3% (2018": 23.8%). This decrease reflects
the short term impact of the recent acquisition activity of the
Group. The average capital employed was £7,380 million

(2018': £6,539 million).

Post employment benefit obligations

The Group has continued to review and monitor its pension
obligations throughout the period, working closely with the
trustees and members of all schemes around the Group to
ensure proper and prudent assumptions are used and adequate
provisions and contributions are made.

During the year we completed the triennial actuarial valuation for
the Compass Group Pension Plan (UK). This valuation showed a
net surplus of £142 million on the scheme’s funding basis. As a
result, there is no requirement to agree a recovery plan with

the trustees.

The Lloyds Banking Group’s High Court hearing on Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation was published on

26 October 2018. As a result, and based on actuarial advice,
the Group has recognised £12 million of pre-tax past service
costs in the consolidated income statement. This non-cash
charge has been excluded from the Group’s underlying
operating profit.

The Compass Group Pension Plan (UK) surplus of £448 million
(2018: £346 million) and the £259 million (2018: £224 million)
deficit in the rest of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes
reflect the results of the triennial valuation of the UK plan and the
actuarial gains and losses that have occurred since the prior year
IAS 19 actuarial valuation.

The total pensions charge for defined benefit contribution
schemes in the year was £126 million (2018: £110 million) and
£33 million (2018: £24 million) for defined benefit schemes.

2. PreIFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Group on 1 October 2019. The Group expects between £950 million—£1,050 million of additional debt

on its balance sheet on adoption.

FINANCING — MATURITY PROFILE OF PRINCIPAL BORROWINGS

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 (£m)

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2027
2028

2029 30

o

200 400

US$ Private Placement € Bond B £Bond

600 800 1000

1. Based on nominal value of borrowings in place as at 30 September 2019, converted at foreign exchange rates on the balance sheet date and maturing

in the financial year ending 30 September.

2. The average life of the Group’s principal borrowings is 5.4 years (2018: 5.4 years).
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its liquidity, foreign currency exposure and
interest rate in accordance with the policies set out below.

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, borrowings,
receivables and payables that are used to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group also uses derivatives, principally interest
rate swaps, forward currency contracts and cross currency
swaps, to manage interest rate and currency risks arising from
the Group’s operations. The Group does not trade in financial
instruments. The Group’s treasury policies are designed to
mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates and
exchange rates and to manage the Group’s financial risks. The
Board approves any changes to the policies.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations through cash generated by
the business and borrowings from a number of sources including
the bank, the public and the private placement markets. The
Group has developed long term relationships with a number of
financial counterparties with the balance sheet strength and
credit quality to provide credit facilities as required. The Group
seeks to avoid a concentration of debt maturities in any one
period to spread its refinancing risk.

In August 2019 the Group completed the refinancing of its
Syndicated Revolving Credit Facility (SRCF). The new £2 billion
SRCF matures in August 2024 and replaces the £1 billion SRCF
and £690 million bilateral loans due to mature in June 2021 and
December 2020 respectively. The new SRCF contains no
financial covenants.

The maturity profile of the Group’s principal borrowings at

30 September 2019 shows that the average period to maturity
is 5.4 years (2018: 5.4 years). The Group’s undrawn committed
bank facilities at 30 September 2019 were £2,000 million
(2018: £1,690 million).

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s policy is to balance its principal projected cash
flows by currency to actual or effective borrowings in the same
currency. As currency cash flows are generated, they are used to
service and repay debt in the same currency. Where necessary,
to implement this policy, forward currency contracts and cross
currency swaps are taken out which, when applied to the actual
currency borrowings, convert these to the required currency.

The borrowings in each currency can give rise to foreign
exchange differences on translation into sterling. Where the
borrowings are either less than, or equate to, the net investment
in overseas operations, these exchange rate movements are
treated as movements on reserves and recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income rather than
in the consolidated income statement.

Non-sterling earnings streams are translated at the average
rate of exchange for the year. Fluctuations in exchange rates
have given, and will continue to give, rise to translation
differences. The Group is only partially protected from the
impact of such differences through the matching of cash flows
to currency borrowings.

Interest rate risk

As set out above, the Group has effective borrowings in a
number of currencies and its policy is to ensure that, in the short
term, it is not materially exposed to fluctuations in interest rates
in its principal currencies. The Group implements this policy
either by borrowing fixed rate debt or by using interest rate
swaps so that the interest rates on at least 80% of the Group’s
projected debt are fixed for one year. For the second and third
year, interest rates are fixed within ranges of 30%—70% and
0%—40% respectively.

GROUP TAX POLICY

As a Group, we are committed to creating long term
shareholder value through the responsible, sustainable and
efficient delivery of our key business objectives. This will enable
us to grow the business and make significant investments in the
Group and its operations.

We therefore adopt an approach to tax that supports this
strategy and also balances the various interests of our
stakeholders including shareholders, governments, employees
and the communities in which we operate. Our aim is to pursue
a principled and sustainable tax strategy that has strong
commercial merit and is aligned with our business strategy.

We believe this will enhance shareholder value whilst protecting
Compass’ reputation.

In doing so, we act in compliance with the relevant local and
international laws and disclosure requirements, and we conduct
an open and transparent relationship with the relevant tax
authorities that fully complies with the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct and Code of Ethics.

In an increasingly complex international corporate tax
environment, a degree of tax risk and uncertainty is, however,
inevitable. Tax risk can arise from differences in interpretation
of regulations, but most significantly where governments apply
diverging standards in assessing intragroup cross border
transactions. This is the situation for many multinational
organisations. We manage and control these risks in a proactive
manner and, in doing so, exercise our judgement and seek
appropriate advice from relevant professional firms. Tax risks
are assessed as part of the Group’s formal governance process
and are reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee on a
regular basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board takes a proactive approach to risk management with
the aim of protecting its employees and customers and
safeguarding the interests of the Group, its shareholders,
employees, clients, consumers and all other stakeholders.

The principal risks and uncertainties that face the business and
the activities the Group undertakes to mitigate these are set out
on pages 41 to 45.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties are set out in
note 31 of the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions have not had, and are not expected to have,
a material effect on the financial performance or position
of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

GOING CONCERN

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out in the Business Review, as is the financial position of the
Group, its cash flows, liquidity position, and borrowing facilities.

The Group has considerable financial resources together with
longer term contracts with a number of clients and suppliers
across different geographic areas and industries. As a
consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed
to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the 12 months from the
date of approval of the Annual Report. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, the directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three year period, taking into account the
Group’s current position and the potential impact of the
principal risks documented on pages 42 to 45 of the Annual
Report. Based on this assessment, the directors confirm that
they have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the period to 30 September 2022.

The directors have determined that a three year period to

30 September 2022 is an appropriate period over which to
provide its viability statement. This is the period reviewed by the
Board in our strategic planning process and is also aligned to our
typical contract length (three to five years). We believe that this
presents the Board and readers of the Annual Report with a
reasonable degree of confidence over this longer term outlook.
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In making this statement, the Board carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity. The Board considers
annually and on a rolling basis a three year, bottom up strategic
plan. The output of this plan is used to perform central debt and
headroom profile analysis, which includes a review of sensitivity
to ‘business as usual’ risks, such as profit growth and working
capital variances and severe but plausible events. It also
considers the ability of the Group to raise finance and deploy
capital. The results take into account the availability and likely
effectiveness of the mitigating actions that could be taken to
avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the identified
underlying risks.

While the review has considered all the principal risks identified
by the Group, the following were focused on for enhanced stress
testing: health and safety, economic and political environment,
and clients and consumers. The geographical and sector
diversification of the Group’s operations helps minimise the risk
of serious business interruption or catastrophic damage to our
reputation. Furthermore, our business model is structured so
that the Group is not reliant on one particular group of clients or
sector. Our largest client constitutes only 2% of Group revenue
and our top 10 clients account for less than 8.5% of Group
revenue. We are, as part of our strategy, always focussed on
productivity and purchasing initiatives which help us to manage
our cost base. In more adverse conditions, we can if necessary
take further radical action to reduce labour cost.

While this review does not consider all of the risks that the Group
may face, the directors consider that this stress testing based
assessment of the Group’s prospects is reasonable in the
circumstances of the inherent uncertainty involved.

b

Karen Witts
Group Chief Financial Officer

26 November 2019

The Strategic Report, as set out on pages 1 to 63, has been
approved by the Board.

On behalf of the Board
A Dow

Alison Yapp
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

26 November 2019



RISK MANAGEMENT

|dentifying and managing risk

The Board continues to take a proactive approach to
recognising, assessing and mitigating risk with the aim of
protecting its employees and consumers and safeguarding the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Risk management is an essential element of business
governance and, as set out in the Corporate Governance section,
the Group has policies and procedures in place to ensure that
risks are properly identified, evaluated and managed at the
appropriate level within the business.

The identification of risks and opportunities, the development
of action plans to manage the risks and maximise the
opportunities, and the continual monitoring of progress against
agreed key performance indicators (KPIs) are integral parts of
the business process and core activities throughout the Group.

RISK GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Group runs a formal risk management process, as part of
which the Group’s Principal Risks (highlighted on pages 42 to
45) are assessed and prioritised, with the Board having overall
responsibility for risk management.

Risks are reviewed by country and regional leadership teams on
an ongoing basis and are assessed to identify and document
corresponding mitigating actions. Risk updates form an integral
part of periodic management reviews and are also reviewed by
other members of the Group’s senior leadership and the Group’s
Risk and Governance Committees. Additional reviews are
performed by Group Internal Audit. This bottom up and top
down approach provides awareness and agreement on key risks
facing the Group.

The Board reviews a Major Risk Assessment report, including
principal risks and areas of emerging risks, which is formally
reviewed twice a year.

OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS

The tables on pages 42 to 45 set out the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the business at the date of this Report and
any changes to the status of the risks since 2018. These have
been subject to robust assessment and review. They do not
comprise all of the risks that the Group may face and are not
listed in any order of priority. Additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to management or deemed to be less
material at the date of this Report, may also have an adverse
effect on the Group.

As a global business operating in countries and regions with
diverse economic and political conditions, the Group’s
operations and earnings may be adversely affected by political
or economic instability, including instability caused by the
implementation of the UK’s decision to exit the European Union
(EU) (Brexit).

There is still significant uncertainty about the potential
withdrawal from the EU, the timeframe, the outcome of
negotiations about future arrangements between the UK and the
EU, and the period for which existing EU laws for member states
continue to apply to the UK. The Board views the potential
impact of Brexit as an integral part of its principal risks rather
than as a stand-alone risk.

We have identified a potential impact on our food supply chain in
the UK relating to Brexit through potential increased import
costs from weaker sterling, compounded by potential new
import duties and tariffs, and on our labour force in the way of
staff shortages and salary cost pressures.

In addition, whilst significant changes to produce standards and
legislative requirements more generally are not anticipated in
the short term, they could impact the Group if introduced in
future. We are taking actions to assess and mitigate against any
impact of Brexit, including engaging with key suppliers and
wholesalers to identify Brexit readiness, stock levels, labour
strategies and remediation plans.

Where possible, we seek to absorb price increases through
operational efficiencies, and cost indexation in our contracts
also gives us the contractual right to review pricing with

our clients.

We are experiencing a challenging macroeconomic environment
in some of our regions and as a result, we are taking prompt
action to ensure that we have the right sized labour model for
the future.

The Group faces a number of operational risks on an ongoing
basis such as litigation and financial (including liquidity and
credit) risk and some wider risks, for example, environmental
and reputational. Additionally, there are risks (such as those
relating to the eurozone economy, pensions, and acquisitions
and investments) which vary in importance depending on
changing conditions.

In accordance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, the Board has taken into consideration
the principal risks in the context of determining whether to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting and when assessing the
prospects of the Company for the purpose of preparing the
viability statement. The going concern and viability statements
can be found on page 40 of the Strategic Report.

All risks disclosed in previous years can be found in the annual
reports available on our website www.compass-group.com. We
recognise that these risks remain important to the business and
they are kept under review. However, we have focused the
disclosures on pages 42 to 45 on those risks that are currently
considered to be more significant to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Risk and Trend Description Mitigation

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and Compass feeds millions of consumers and All management meetings throughout the Group feature a

Safety employs hundreds of thousands of people health and safety update as one of their first substantive
around the world every day. For that reason, agenda items.

2019 setting the highest standards for food hygiene

2018 and safety is paramount. Health and safety improvement KPIs are included in the

Health and safety breaches could cause
serious business interruption and could result
in criminal and civil prosecution, increased
costs and potential damage to our reputation.

annual bonus plans for each of the business’ management
teams. The Group has policies, procedures and standards in
place to ensure compliance with legal obligations and
industry standards.

The safety and quality of our global supply chain are assured
through compliance against a robust set of standards which
are regularly reviewed, audited and upgraded as necessary to
improve supply chain visibility and product integrity.

A substantial refresh of the Group’s global safety standards
and Supply Chain Integrity standards is ongoing and new
Allergen Management Plans based on good practice are
expected to be launched in 2020.

PEOPLE

Recruitment Failure to attract and recruit people with the
right skills at all levels could limit the success

2019 of the Group.

2018
The Group faces resourcing challenges in

some of its businesses due to a lack of
industry experience amongst candidates and
appropriately qualified people, and the
seasonal nature of some of our business.

The risk in this area has increased due to the
continued economic and political conditions
where a combination of high employment
and a shortage in the resource pool has made
the labour market more competitive.

The Group aims to mitigate this risk by efficient, time critical
resource management, mobilisation of existing, experienced
employees within the organisation, improved use of
technology such as apps and social media, and by offering
training and development programmes.

Retention Retaining and motivating the best people with
and the right skills, at all levels of the organisation,
Motivation is key to the long term success of the Group.

2019
2018

The Group has established training, development,
performance management and reward programmes to help
retain, develop and motivate our best people.

The Group has a number of well established initiatives which
help us to monitor the level of engagement and to respond to
our people’s needs.

KEY

B Purpose

[ People

B Performance
A Increased risk
» Static risk
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Risk and Trend

Description

Mitigation

CLIENTS AND CONSUMERS

Sales and
Retention

2019
2018

Bidding

2019
2018

Service

Delivery and
Contractual
Compliance

PANRS
2018

Competition
and
Disruption

2019
2018

Our business relies on securing and retaining a
diverse range of clients.

The potential loss of material client contracts in an
increasingly competitive market is a risk to
the business.

We have strategies which strengthen our long term
relationships with our clients and consumers based on
quality, value and innovation.

Our business model is structured so that we are not
reliant on one particular sector or group of clients.

We are using technology to support the delivery of
efficiencies and to contribute to growth through, for
example, cashierless and cashless payment systems
and the use of artificial intelligence. This benefits our
clients and consumers and positively impacts retention
and new business wins.

Each year, the Group bids for a large number
of opportunities.

A rigorous tender review process is in place, which
includes a critical assessment of contracts to identify
potential risks (including social and ethical) and
rewards, prior to approval at an appropriate level in
the organisation.

The Group’s operating companies contract with
a large number of clients. Failure to comply with
the terms of these contracts, including proper
delivery of services, could lead to the loss of
business and/or claims.

Processes are in place to ensure that the services
delivered to clients are of an appropriate standard and

comply with the required contract terms and conditions.

We operate in a highly competitive marketplace.
The levels of concentration and outsource
penetration vary by country and by sector. Some
markets are relatively concentrated with two or
three key players. Others are highly fragmented and
offer significant opportunities for consolidation and
penetration of the self-operated market.

Aggressive pricing from our competitors could
cause a reduction in our revenues and margins.

The emergence of new industry participants
using disruptive technology could adversely
affect our business.

We aim to minimise this and to respond to new market
and consumer food services trends by continuing to
promote our differentiated propositions and by focusing
on our strengths, such as flexibility in our cost base,
quality, value of service and innovation.

We are using our knowledge and experience and
continue to invest in technology which will help us to
counter any potential risk and to capitalise on the
opportunities created.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS (CONTINUED)

Risk and Trend

Description

Mitigation

ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL ENVIRONMENT

Economy

2019
2018

Cost Inflation

2019
2018

Political
Stability

2019
2018

Some sectors of our business could be susceptible
to adverse changes in economic conditions and
employment levels.

Continued worsening of economic conditions
has increased the risk to the business in some
jurisdictions, notably in Europe.

We are, as part of our strategy, always focused on
productivity and purchasing initiatives which help us to
manage our cost base.

In more adverse conditions, we can, if necessary, take
further radical action to reduce labour costs.

Our objective is always to deliver the right level of
service in the most efficient way. An increase in the
cost of labour, for example, minimum wages in the
USA and UK, or food, especially in countries such
as Brazil, could constitute a risk to our ability to

do this.

Increases in inflation continue to intensify cost
pressures in some locations.

As part of our MAP framework and by sharing best
practice across the Group, we seek to manage inflation
by continuing to drive greater efficiencies through menu
management, supplier rationalisation, labour scheduling
and productivity, and with the increased use of
technology. Cost indexation in our contracts also gives
us the contractual right to review pricing with our clients.

We are a global business operating in countries and
regions with diverse economic and political
conditions. Our operations and earnings may be
adversely affected by political or economic
instability caused, for example, by the UK’s decision
to leave the EU.

We have identified a potential impact on our food
supply chain in the UK relating to Brexit through
potential increased import costs from weaker
sterling, compounded by potential new import
duties and tariffs, and on our labour force in the way
of staff shortages and salary cost pressures.

Political instability around the world remains a risk
as a result of geopolitical tensions.

The Group remains vigilant to future changes presented
by emerging markets or fledgling administrations and we
try to anticipate and contribute to important changes in
public policy.

We are taking actions to assess and mitigate against any
impact of Brexit, including engaging with key suppliers
and wholesalers to identify Brexit readiness, stock levels,
labour strategies and remediation plans.

Where possible, we seek to absorb price increases
through operational efficiencies, and cost indexation in
our contracts also gives us the contractual right to review
pricing with our clients.

We are also working on our recruitment and retention
strategies to mitigate any impact on our labour supply.
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Risk and Trend

Description

Mitigation

COMPLIANCE AND FRAUD

Compliance
and Fraud

2019
2018

International
Tax

AONRS
2018

Information
Systems and
Technology

2019
2018

Ineffective compliance management with
increasingly complex laws and regulations, or
evidence of fraud, bribery and corruption
could have an adverse effect on the Group'’s
reputation. It could also result in an adverse
impact on the Group's performance, and a
reduction in the Company's share price and/or
a loss of business.

A failure to manage these risks could
adversely impact the Group's performance if
significant financial penalties are levied or a
criminal action or other litigation is brought
against the Company or its directors.

The Group’s zero tolerance based Codes of Business Conduct
and Ethics continue to govern all aspects of our relationships
with our stakeholders. All alleged breaches of the Codes,
including any allegations of fraud, are investigated.

The Group undertakes a robust risk management assessment
that helps properly identify major risks and ensures the
internal control framework remains effective through regular
monitoring, testing and review. Emerging regulatory and
compliance risks are included in this process to enable
visibility and planning to address them.

A strong culture of integrity is promoted through our Ethics
and Compliance programme and our Speak Up helpline. All
alleged breaches of our Codes, including any allegations of
fraud, are investigated and dealt with appropriately.

Regulation and compliance risk is also considered as part of
our annual business planning process.

The international corporate tax environment
remains complex and an increase in audit
activity from tax authorities means that the
potential for tax uncertainties and disputes
remains high. We note in particular the policy
efforts being led by the EU and the OECD
which may have a material impact on the
taxation of all international businesses.

As a Group, we seek to plan and manage our tax affairs
efficiently in the jurisdictions in which we operate. In doing so,
we act in compliance with relevant laws and

disclosure requirements.

We manage and control these risks in a proactive manner and
in doing so exercise our judgement and seek appropriate
advice from reputable professional firms. Tax risks are
assessed as part of the Group’s formal governance process
and are reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee on a
regular basis.

The digital world creates increasing risk for
global businesses including, but not limited to,
technology failures, loss of confidential data
and damage to brand reputation through, for
example, the increased and instantaneous
use of social media.

Disruption caused by the failure of key
software applications, security controls or
underlying infrastructure could delay day
to day operations and management
decision making.

The use of sophisticated phishing and
malware attacks on businesses has risen over
the last year with an increase in the number
of companies suffering operational disruption
and loss of data.

We continually assess our cyber risk and manage the maturity
of our enterprise infrastructure, platforms and security
controls to ensure we can effectively defend against any
current or future cyber attacks.

We also have in place appropriate crisis management
procedures to handle issues in the event of our defences
being breached. This is supported by using industry
standard tooling, experienced professionals and partners
and regular compliance monitoring to evaluate and mitigate
potential impacts.

The Group relies on a variety of IT platforms to manage and
deliver services and communicate with our clients,
consumers, suppliers and employees. Our decentralised
model and infrastructure helps to mitigate propagation of
attacks across the Group's technology estate.

We continue to be focused on the need to maximise the
effectiveness of our information systems and technology as a
business enabler and have increased our investment in
technology and people to strengthen our platforms and
enhance our cyber security defences to mitigate the risk of
technology failure and data loss.
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Our people feel proud to work for Compass
and want to do the best job they can. They
know their contribution will be recognised
and they will get opportunities to learn and
grow through apprenticeships, on the job
training, culinary sessions and leadership
development programmes.

We have undertaken many initiatives in

our markets to gain valuable insights into
employee engagement and satisfaction.

As a result, we have shared our commitment
to help our people and offer even more
opportunities for them to develop and
progress their careers with us.
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PEOPLE REPORT

Strengthening our people commitment
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Robin Mills
Group Chief People Officer (to 25 November 2019)

During the last year we placed increasing focus and resources
on those parts of our People agenda which we believe create the
culture and leadership which gives us our competitive edge.

Our areas of focus remain recruiting and developing the very
best leaders, having the most talented unit managers in our
sector, and building engaging and inclusive environments in
which every member of our team can be their best by being
themselves at work.

We have continued to improve the quality of leadership in the
business by raising the standards of assessment and onboarding
of new entrants and promotees to our global leadership team.
This ensures that only individuals of the highest calibre join our
most senior leadership population.

We remain committed to developing our teams and supporting
their career progression through the business. We continue

to enhance the diversity balance of our most senior teams,
and have increased year on year the proportion of roles being
filled by women.

AN

LEAD ENGAGE !
LEADERSHIP
IN ACTION
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At Compass, our people are
fundamental to the continued success
of our business, and our desire to
support and encourage them through
global initiatives and investment is
greater than ever.

DEVELOPING OUR UNIT MANAGERS

To provide the best service for our customers, we need to help our
unit managers develop their own skills and grow the skills of their
teams. This year, we launched our global unit manager
development programme, Leadership in Action, which focuses on
creating positive working environments in units and helping
managers lead their teams even more effectively.

This is a global programme which is being delivered in every
country in the Group. Since its launch in May 2019, around

2,000 unit managers have participated in the two day face to face
training programme in their home country and local language.

By the end of next year, we anticipate that approximately

10,000 unit managers will have attended the course, which
represents around a quarter of the unit managers in Compass.

This programme makes a major contribution to the development
of one of our key populations and further underpins our focus on
people at all levels.




THE COMPASS COMMITMENTS

As the competition for talent increases, particularly for the real
heroes of our business, our front line teams, chefs and back of
house colleagues, the experience our people have when working
for us is vital. We wanted to make a commitment to every person
in the business so that they understand what they can expect
when working for Compass — a base line that guarantees them a
positive experience.

Last year, we spent time understanding what was important to
our people and what helped them to feel engaged and to give of
their best. We compiled over 1,000 hours of conversation with
our colleagues, their leaders and even family members speaking
about the experiences which helped them to feel engaged and
committed to Compass and those experiences which challenged
them. We brought together the common themes and messages
in order to create an engagement framework that would reflect
what our people need and value.

This resulted in the launch of our three Compass Commitments:
Respect — we treat each other fairly and with respect
Growth — we have the opportunity to develop and progress

Teamwork — we work as part of a positive and caring team

We have launched the Commitments in each country,
translated into local languages, supported by local initiatives to
bring them alive. To embed them in the business, the heart of
the Leadership in Action programme is focused on enabling and
empowering the attendees to create plans to bring these
sentiments to life in their own units.

s
et 1 RS PRV s P
e =

GLOBAL ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

We recognise that if we really want to make the Commitments a
daily reality everywhere, we need to know where to focus and
which parts of the business require more support. To provide us
with this insight we launched our first global engagement survey
for three years.

The survey is designed to track our people’s experience
against the Commitments. Their responses enable us to create
an action planning framework which will help us to deliver on
the Commitments and ensure all our colleagues have a
positive experience.

The results will be shared with all colleagues, and our managers
will receive anonymised reports for their teams right down to
unit level.

Survey statistics

N
4] 238,258

Number Global
of languages participation

N
4.1 84%

People who agreed

that the Company

embraces diversity
and inclusion

Global engagement
index score
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PEOPLE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Our work on diversity and inclusion goes from strength to
strength. Our Group CEO, Dominic Blakemore, has set the tone
from the top by incorporating diversity and inclusion as key
priorities within our People agenda. Our diversity and inclusion
strategy is set around a framework of three pillars: People,
Culture and Community. These focus on our approach to
managing our people, the inclusive culture we seek to create
which enables all our people to thrive, and how we can leverage
diversity and inclusion for wider impact in our communities.

We have an ambition to achieve an improved diversity balance at
senior leadership levels. In terms of gender balance, our
progress continues to track positively as our statistics on gender
balance set out below demonstrate.

Improving the balance of our leadership requires close attention
to succession planning so we can build a balanced pipeline of
talent for the future. Since the introduction of a policy which
requires a more equal weighting of participants in our
development curriculum, we have further increased the number
of potential female leaders participating in programmes such as
SPQOTlights, our global programme for emerging talent.

In March 2019, we signed the Women in Hospitality, Travel and
Leisure 2020 charter and we are delighted to become a lead
supporter of this initiative.

COMPASS GROUP BOARD: FEMALE

2017 18%
s

2019 36%
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: FEMALE

2017 11%
U7
38%

GLOBAL LEADERSHIP TEAM: FEMALE

2017 28%
F2018 e 30
2019 31%
SENIOR MANAGEMENT2 FEMALE

2017 24
UL
21%

1. The percentages disclosed for 2019 are stated as at 30 September 2019.

2. Senior management is defined as our global leadership team and
statutory directors of corporate entities whose financial information is
consolidated in the Group’s accounts in this Annual Report. See page
125 for more details.
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PEOPLE

Our UK business has teamed up with Mumsnet,

the UK’s largest network for parents, to launch a
groundbreaking ‘Leadership Accelerator Programme’
for maternity returners, focused on advancing women
into leadership positions.

CULTURE
In a number of our markets, such as Australia, Japan
and the USA, we are proud of the employee action

councils on diversity and inclusion (DIACs). These are
groups of colleagues working together to advance our
inclusion agenda.

COMMUNITY

We are passionate about our work in local communities. In
Australia, we have partnered with local employment
service providers to actively recruit people who identify as
having a disability to support their development into
careers in hospitality.

We have been recognised for the progress we have made in
diversity and inclusion this year. We became global diversity
champions for Stonewall as we work to create an LGBT-inclusive
workplace. And we are delighted that our business in the USA
has been recognised in the Forbes 2019 list of Best Employers
for Diversity.

H Forbes | 2019
| THE BEST

Y EMPLOYERS
| for

POWERED BY STATISTA

Under our Culture pillar, we have continued to focus on creating
an inclusive and welcoming environment for all. We began our
rollout of an unconscious bias training workshop, starting with
the Executive Committee and cascading the session through a
number of country leadership teams. During 2020, we will
continue to roll out this training across the business. The
importance of inclusion is also a core component of our
Leadership in Action programme so we ensure a consistent
message is heard across our business.

Incorporating a set of inclusion related questions into the
engagement survey gives us the data to track our progress
towards an ever more inclusive workplace. By combining core
biographical details and answers to key questions related to
inclusion, we will be able to identify locations where colleagues
require more support to create more inclusive environments as
well as those with great practices to share.

There is still much more to do, but as we continue to embed
our strategy, we are confident that we are heading in the
right direction.



Ireena Vittal
Non-Executive Director
Designated NED for workforce engagement

Our people are essential to the continued success of our
business and we want them to have the opportunity to
develop their careers and grow with us. Their day to day
experience and understanding of the needs of our clients
and consumers mean they are uniquely placed to help us
identify opportunities and issues. Knowing how our
workforce feels about key topics helps the Board remain
connected to what’s important to them and to understand
how we can best support their personal growth.

Contributing to decisions is important for an individual’s
wellbeing and motivation, especially if it can mean
improving their experience at work. Having a voice also
gives people the opportunity to make sure we know what
matters most to them, use their skills and develop their
experience to support job satisfaction. Everyone is a part
of the business and it makes sense that everyone can
contribute their views.

By making sure we engage with our people and ask them
to give us feedback on the areas we know are key to our
strategy. Knowing how our people feel and what they think
about what we are doing will help us determine what
adjustments we should consider making. We will do this in
a structured way and in consideration of what our people
care about most.

| have worked across many industry sectors and with
global workforces and have been involved in solving a
cross section of business and societal challenges. I'm
delighted to be able to bring this experience to develop
the engagement agenda at Compass.

We set the highest ethical and
professional standards at all times. We
want all our relationships to be based on
honesty, respect, fairness and a
commitment to open dialogue and
transparency.

We are passionate about delivering
superior food and service and take pride
in achieving this. We look to replicate
success, learn from mistakes and develop
the ideas, innovation and practices that
will help us improve and lead our market.

We encourage individual ownership, but
work as a team. We value the expertise,
individuality and contribution of all
colleagues, working in support of each
other and readily sharing good practice in
pursuit of shared goals.

We take responsibility for our actions,
individually and as a Group. Every day,
everywhere we look to make a positive
contribution to the health and wellbeing
of our customers, the communities we
work in and the world we live in.

We take a positive and commercially
aware ‘can-do’ approach to the
opportunities and challenges we face; we
always put safety first in everything we do.

LOOKING AHEAD

Our organisational model remains unchanged. We keep roles
clear and focus authority and accountability as close to the front
line as possible, enabling and empowering our people to take

responsibility for their own outcomes.

We use some simple and common systems and a strong
focus on values to help people to do the right things.

We continue to believe that our people and our culture
provide our competitive edge, and that we must continue
to invest and focus our energy on our colleagues, their
leadership, skills and levels of engagement. By doing so,

we will continue to create workplaces that people are attracted

to join and love to be part of.
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SOURCING RESPONSIBLY

Serving safe and nutritious meals for our
clients and consumers requires a robust
supply chain of trusted partners to source,
produce and deliver ingredients and products
against the exacting standards we set.

Our Global Supply Chain Integrity Standards
provide us with a robust framework which
drives consistency in the procurement of safe,
legal and authentic food. In 2019, we
simplified the standards to make them more
user-friendly for our procurement teams.

We are working towards increasing the
transparency of our supply chain, to identify
potential risks and opportunities and thereby
create more positive impacts for people,
animals and the planet we share.

Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Our approach to corporate
responsibility and sustainability

Federico Tonetti
Group Safety and Sustainability Director

During 2019, we have worked closely with our clients,
consumers and partners to deliver healthy, nutritious food,
reduce food waste, raise awareness of healthy eating, advocate
more responsible sourcing and much more.

Compass Group supports the United Nations’ Sustainable
Development Goals (UNSDGs) and our sustainability strategy is
aligned with several of the goals. See pages 62 and 63 for further
details on our commitment to the UNSDGs.

We report to a number of sustainability indices including
the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices and the Carbon
Disclosure Project.

Last year, we launched our new sustainability
strategy focusing around three key pillars:
Health and wellbeing, Environmental game
changers and Better for the world.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible business, we regularly engage with our
stakeholders. We ensure that we stay up-to-date on issues that
matter most to our different stakeholder groups, to us as a
business, and to our industry. Our stakeholder groups include
our clients, consumers, colleagues, suppliers and shareholders,
as well as the communities in which we operate. We also engage
with a number of not-for-profit organisations with expertise in
different segments of the food supply chain.

We respect feedback from all our stakeholder groups and take
their views into consideration in our decision-making processes.

For more information about our engagement with our
stakeholders, please see pages 16 and 17.

Visit our website at www.compass-group.com for more information about our approach to CR and sustainability

:G") Our 2019 Sustainability Report will be available online in early 2020
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS As a result of this process, we identified our most important
In 2019, we undertook a materiality assessment to establish issues, as shown in the materiality matrix below.

which sustainability issues matter most to our stakeholders and
the business. Through this assessment, we considered the
importance of all environmental and social topics that could
impact our business, directly or indirectly, and affect our ability
to create value over the short, medium and long term. We also
assessed material issues based on their relevance to our

The top seven priority issues identified are:

e the safety of the food we serve and of our people
e the communities in which we operate, charities we work with
and partnerships we form

strategic plans and objectives. Assessing their importance and e food waste
impact provides a guide to strategically managing the risksand ~ ® single-use plastics
opportunities they represent. e the treatment and wellbeing of our people

e talent attraction and development

We engaged third party experts to support our assessment, « nutrition and healthy lifestyle

analysing internal and external information and gathering
thousands of data points. The data used was wide ranging Some issues like food waste, safety and talent attraction
and included: were universally recognised as being of the highest importance.
e areview of key client and supplier sustainability strategies gr:!e\/retgg;ts)yle“g:sﬁ! e[;;Zi pvlvaesrtelcris:"]ediEnré)omr?;;q%r:r:;tne
* study of relevant NGO and academic reports markets than others. You will find more information in the
* analysis of various relevant responsible business benchmarks  fo|jowing pages and in our 2019 Sustainability Report
e engaging with hundreds of our colleagues, including at www.compass-group.com.
senior leadership
e reviewing our existing policies, programmes and practices

Higher . Local_t_

. ommunities

Impact . Food & People

Single-U Safety
ingle-Use
Medium PEaiee Food Waste o
impact Ef&ergy () ()
se
Employee .

o o Sourcing Health Talent Attraction/
ﬁ Responsibly . Development
s}
S Lower o o - Healthy
© . . Diversity and !
o impact Supply Chain Y . Lifestyle
k%) Integrity Human o
o Rights ()
P Climate Nutrition
Q .
% Adaptation Mental
= o Health
= Water
£ ® o

Packaging folT’l\lz\i/Q:d
Biodiversity

Importance to Compass Group —

@ People @ Health and Wellbeing @ Better for the World
@ safety @ cEnvironment
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Our sustainability strategy

Knowing where our business can have the biggest impact and
taking account of what matters most to our stakeholders,
alongside industry trends, is important to us. Last year, we
formulated our sustainability strategy. In 2019, we reviewed and
confirmed this using our materiality analysis.

We centre our strategy on three key pillars:

e Environmental Game Changers — reducing food waste and
single-use plastics, and promoting plant-forward meals

e Better for the World — sourcing responsibly, enriching local
communities and collaborating for big change

None of this work would be possible without our people and
prioritising safety. That is why Safety and People come first,
underpinning the foundations of our strategy.

e Health and Wellbeing — helping people to make better

nutrition choices, follow healthier lifestyles and support

good mental health

O

HEALTH AND WELLBEING
Nutrition, health and happiness
at the heart of our value proposition

®

Better nutrition choices

0

Mental health

=

Healthy lifestyle

SUSTAINABILITY PRIORITIES

v

ENVIRONMENTAL GAME CHANGERS
Targeted action where we can make

an enhanced impact

i

Food waste

&

Single-use plastics

2N

Plant-forward meals

For our People report, see pages 46 to 51.

Driving positive impact far
beyond our business

Safety leadership

A

SAFETY CULTURE
Turning safety from compliance
to caring for each other

Sharing learning
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SAFETY CULTURE

-\ Having a culture where safety is
treated as a value is fundamental to our
success. Our people serve millions of
consumers every day, and we work hard to
keep everyone safe

We believe that caring for ourselves and each other is what will
drive us to further improve our global performance in both
personal and food safety.

We take the utmost care to reduce the risk of incidents and
injuries in the working environment, and to make sure that we
maintain the highest standards of food hygiene and safety.

Personal safety

Over the last year, we have moved further towards a
collaborative model, creating a stronger safety culture. We
wanted to remind our people of the reasons why it is important
to stay safe: that their family, friends, colleagues and community
rely on them.

Our new See, Care, Share programme encourages
interdependence (as defined by the Bradley curve), meaning our
people are genuinely invested in keeping themselves and others
safe. We also encouraged our leaders to share the lessons
learned from any safety incidents. Using real examples, our
leaders can help to make a human connection and remind
people of just how important safety is. Our people are taking
greater personal accountability for worker safety and food safety
practices, not because someone else is telling them to but
because they care about each other.

Sadly, during the year there were two fatalities in the Group, an
incident in our South African business and a road traffic
accident in our USA business. In each instance, a full
investigation was conducted and the outcome reported to the
directors and senior executives.

GLOBAL LOST TIME

INCIDENT FREQUENCY GLOBAL LOST
RATE TIME INCIDENTS
(o) (o)
-38% -33%
(since 2015) (since 2015)
8 &
58
- B 8
S5
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Food safety

Over the last year, we have further developed and simplified
our processes, making it easier for our procurement and front
line teams to understand the standards we expect them to
meet. In 2020, we will be launching a newly updated and more
user-friendly version of our Global Supply Chain Integrity
Standards, as well as launching our first Global Allergen
Management Plan, which will detail minimum standards for all
our countries to adopt from farm to fork, to reduce the risk of
consumer allergic reactions.

By embracing partnerships and technology solutions, we have
continued to invest in both simplifying and improving our
operational food safety management systems around the world.
For example, through our Primary Authority partnership
arrangement in the UK with Luton Borough Council
Environmental Health Department, we have redesigned our food
safety management and upgraded the key policies and
procedures that underpin it. In Canada, we have partnered with
Food Allergy Canada (a non-profit consumer advocate) to ensure
our allergen management programme continues to embrace
industry leading practices. Our Canadian business has also
introduced several new technology based systems including
automated monitoring and alarms for cold chain management,
electronic HACCP monitoring, improved associate education
programmes, product recall effectiveness tracking, internal
self-audits, incident investigations and crisis management.

GLOBAL FOOD SAFETY GLOBAL FOOD SAFETY
INCIDENT RATE INCIDENTS
(o) (o)
-35% -187%
(since 2015) (since 2015)
[e'0]
— 7 3 N M
N«
— -
[ | I
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sharing learning

Our health and safety experts all around the world are often
dealing with similar issues. During the year we held two safety
summits for our leaders to come together to collaborate and
support each other. Key priorities for our safety agenda were
discussed and the strategic direction set alongside the creation
of a library of resources.

We also leverage technology to make our knowledge
management more effective across the Group.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

HEALTH AND WELLBEING
.~ Helping our consumers eat and live
well is key to our social purpose

With our scale and scope we can help consumers make
healthier choices. We have a large team of nutritionists and
dieticians who continually work with clients and consumers
across various geographies to ensure we serve healthy options
and encourage healthier lifestyles.

Better nutrition choices

Our teams work hard to improve the culinary offer by responding
to consumer feedback as well as running pilots, ad hoc research
and teaching kitchens on nutrition. For example, we conducted
a study in a school in the UK to improve take up of healthy
options through messaging and investigated the use of choice
architecture or ‘nudges’ of behaviour to encourage students to
make the healthier choice. Raising awareness of healthy eating
resulted in a 25% increase in the uptake of oily fish.

In India, our Stealth Health programme has replaced over

70 customers’ favourites with healthier — yet still delicious —
alternatives (for example using complex carbohydrates instead
of white rice). In Germany, we introduced a new range of no
sugar and no sweetener desserts, using natural ingredients like
fresh fruit, Greek yoghurt and vegan alternatives, and
superfoods like chia, quinoa and goji berries. Similarly, in
Denmark we introduced small, plated portions in our
unrestricted buffets, which in some cases led to a 50% decrease
in quantities consumed.

Healthy lifestyle
In 2019, we introduced further initiatives to promote
healthy lifestyles.

For example, in the UK, our Nourished Life website
(www.nourishedlife.co.uk) and related social media channels
offer tips for healthier living, including better sleep, recipes,
and an ‘ask our experts’ column. This website won Footprint
Media’s Health & Vitality Honours Award for Communication
and Engagement.

PR
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In the Netherlands, our 360 Lifestyle digital platform provides
advice from experts in the fields of nutrition, lifestyle, mind and
sport. This helps people to understand the nutritional values of
the products in our restaurants, as well as how to prepare
healthy meals at home, and live healthier lives.

We also help our clients to introduce healthy living programmes
into their operations. For example, in January 2019, at a large
insurance company client in North America, Eurest launched
its first certified Wellness Center for Excellence. The team
promote wellness programmes and new, healthy food options
each month.

Mental health

We believe that protecting the mental health of employees
should be a priority for all responsible businesses. Our goal is to
provide supportive and understanding work environments for
our people, helping them to identify and address stress, anxiety
and depression.

In 2019, we launched four pilots (three in the UK and one in
Australia) with Medibio, the first data driven, biometric, mental
health monitoring and management programme in the world.
The results so far have been encouraging in helping our people
manage their mental health proactively and we are planning
more pilots during 2020.

In the UK, we sponsor a mental health awareness magazine
called MindSet, which is available in print and online, offering
advice, signposting and support covering a range of mental
health issues.

Compass Australia won the Mines and Metals Association Mental
Health Award 2019 for its continuing efforts in mental health,
such as its awareness and listening campaign #gotyourback.

In Canada, we launched Just Now, a mental health programme
designed to raise awareness and help break the stigma of talking
about mental illness. The initiative includes mental health first
aid training, comprising a toolkit of resources, and a support
programme for our people and their families who may be
impacted. In addition, our Thinking Ahead, Giving Back
programme in Canada provides 10,000 hours of community
support, helping students to deal with mental health issues,
depression and bullying.



2] ENVIRONMENTAL GAME CHANGERS
As a leading food service business,
we focus on where we can have the

biggest positive impact on the global food
system and the environment

Food waste

According to the United Nations, each year, an estimated

one third of all food produced ends up going to waste. That is
equivalent to 1.3 billion tonnes, worth around $1 trillion. We fully
support UNSDG 12.3 to reduce food waste by 50% by 2030.

We work with a number of food waste measurement and
reduction systems around the world to raise awareness, change
behaviour and monitor our ability to reduce food waste. We have
a three-pronged approach to reducing food waste:

¢ reducing the amount of unsold/uneaten food

e inspiring consumers to waste less (through Stop Food
Waste Day)

e diverting food waste from landfill, for example through
repurposing or donating surplus food to people in need

We are cutting waste in our restaurants by improving the
efficiency of how we order food, making use of every bit of an
ingredient in the kitchen and repurposing unused food into new
dishes. We challenge our teams to plan, forecast and purchase
effectively to prevent wastage.

In Norway, we undertook a study to analyse hospitality waste,
the results of which have been used across the Nordics to
further reduce food waste. In Germany, we are working with
United Against Waste to assess and analyse sites’ food waste to
reduce it on a site by site basis. Across a number of our
countries, including the UK, Netherlands and China, we use
Winnow technology to measure, monitor and reduce food waste
across large sites. In Turkey, we have found that by giving
consumers the ability to choose portion sizes we have been able
to cut food waste by between 6% and 20% at some restaurants.

Stop Food Waste Day

In 2017, in the USA we sought to raise awareness of the food
waste crisis by creating a day of action, Stop Food Waste Day. It
has now become an annual global event.

The aimis to inspire our people and consumers to reduce waste
in both professional and home kitchens by raising awareness
and providing straight-forward solutions. In 2019, millions of
zero-food-waste meals were served on the day throughout
Compass cafés in hospitals, schools, arenas, corporations,
museums, and senior living communities in 38 countries. Live
cooking demonstrations and interactive educational campaigns
inspired millions more to join in. Our social media campaign,

using the hashtag #stopfoodwasteday, reached an audience of
89 million in 100 countries. Media coverage reached a potential
audience of a further 140 million.

Food recovery and repurpose

We engage with food redistribution groups, including online
communities and via apps as well as local charities, to help our
sites donate surplus food. In the UK, for example, our
distribution centres have been donating surplus food that is
within date and fit for consumption to FareShare since 2014.

In the USA, we work with Chefs to End Hunger, donating surplus
food across a number of sites to those in need. Furthermore,
across some of our European countries we use technology
driven solutions such as the app Too Good to Go, to sell surplus
food that would otherwise be thrown away directly to consumers
at a discount.

Our brands take steps to recover and avoid food waste.

For example, in Argentina, our Outtakes convenience stores and
coffee carts offer consumers free coffee grounds for use in

their gardens.

Single-use plastics

Effective packaging is crucial for our industry. It enables us to
store food safely, keep it fresh and reduce food waste. However,
we recognise that the prevalence of single-use plastics is a
huge, global issue and one which our stakeholders care very
deeply about. This is why we are taking steps to reduce its use
in our operations.

We are working directly with our clients, procurement
teams and suppliers to help reduce our use of disposable
plastic items. This is helping to ensure that fewer single-use
plastics are being used, replacing them with reusable or
biodegradable alternatives.

In some sites, we distribute reusable containers such as
coffee mugs and lunch boxes, thus reducing plastic cups

and boxes from sites. In Brazil, for example, giving our people
their own mug led to a 60% reduction in disposable cup use;
similarly, Compass Turkey replaced 95% of non-recyclable
cardboard cups with reusable glassware in only seven months.

The UK & Ireland business is a key partner of the charity The
Waste and Resources Action Programme and, together with
multinational businesses, governments and charities, has
committed to the UK Plastics Pact to reduce plastics use in the
UK. Commitments include eliminating unnecessary single-use
packaging, increasing recycling and improving reusability

of packaging.

In October 2019, the UK Business won the Best Waste
Prevention Project Award (Food) at Footprint’s waste2zero
Awards for our work raising awareness of how to tackle single-
use plastics.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Plant-forward meals

Eating less meat is good for our bodies and the planet. Over the
last year we have responded to the growing consumer demand
for flexitarian and vegan lifestyles with many plant-based options
in our restaurants.

In January 2019, the scientific journal The Lancet
published a report in conjunction with the EAT
Forum about a recommended diet for a
sustainable planet.

With analysis and recommendations on how to eat for a
sustainable planet which aligns with our plant-forward focus,
Compass has partnered with the EAT Forum to promote the
sustainable planet diet across our business. Many of our chefs
and kitchens provide a multitude of plant-forward meals, and
have witnessed increasing consumer satisfaction and high
uptake of plant-based options.

In Canada, we have announced an exclusive national
partnership with a popular vegan restaurant chain, Copper
Branch. We plan to open up to 50 Copper Branch locations
across the country over the next 10 years.

We are helping clients to incorporate plant-forward meals into
their menus. Argentina joined the ‘Veg Revolution’ for example,
and a new menu has been added once a week at the majority of
our client sites. In Portugal, our award-winning Choose Beans
campaign in Eurest restaurants led to a 27% increase in legumes
consumption in only one year.

Climate change and environmental impact

In addition to seeking to lower greenhouse gas emissions by
reducing food waste and encouraging people to eat plant-based
meals, in February 2019, we committed to setting a Science
Based Target to reduce the carbon footprint of our direct
operations, in line with the 2015 Paris Agreement to limit global
warming to 1.5 degrees. Building on work done in previous
years, we will be setting these targets across the Group over

the coming year.

As well as monitoring energy usage in our offices and working
closely with clients to improve energy efficiency at their sites,

we implement environmental management systems to reduce
our impact on the environment, including water conservation.

One such tool used in our US business is Carbon Foodprint,
helping our units reduce their carbon emissions, water use and
wastage. The tool works through smart analysis and
recommending switches such as swapping in ingredients with
lower carbon footprints and changing taps from high flow to low
flow, to save water. In some of our restaurants in the Nordics,
we calculate the carbon footprint of each meal and provide
that information to our consumers to help them make

informed choices.

2019 was the first year of collecting sustainability data in a newly
launched system from countries which constitute 96% of the
Group’s revenue. This data gives us greater visibility on our
sustainability performance, including carbon emissions; we will
be communicating our targets and actions in due course. Over
2019, we expanded significantly the number and type of sites
reporting greenhouse gas emissions to more closely reflect our
operations. This means our emissions from 2018 and 2019 are
not on a like-for-like basis. The majority of our Scope 1 emissions
are from vehicles within our operating fleets. The change in our
Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions from 2018 to 2019 can
be explained by:

e asignificant increase in the number of sites reporting to now
include all head and regional offices as well as new site types
of warehouses, central processing kitchens and laundries within
the reporting countries. These sites were previously out of scope
and typically have higher carbon emissions than offices, the only
site type previously reported

e anincrease in the number of countries reporting on their
emissions from 20 to 25

GREENHOUSE GAS
INTENSITY RATIO

6.7
6.7
6.0
6.3

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Compass Group’s disclosure in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013
is stated in the table below and is incorporated in the Directors’ Report by reference on pages 78 and 125:

Global GHG emissions for the period 2018-2019 2017-2018
1 October 2018 to 30 September 2019 Unit Current reporting year* Previous year
Combustion of fuel & operation of facilities (Scope 1) Tonnes (t) COe 174,627 129,516
Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own

use (Scope 2 — location based) tCO.e 45,875 8,095
Total Scope 1+2 tCO.e 220,502 137,611
Emissions intensity per £M revenue tCO,e/£M 9.1 6.3

* In 2019, we increased the scope and changed the data collection and estimation methodology of reporting.

This year, we conducted a thorough review of our Scope 1 and 2 carbon footprint following our commitment to set best-in-
class Science Based carbon reduction targets aligned to the Science Based Target initiative criteria. This has led us to expand
our reporting boundary of greenhouse gas emissions to more closely reflect our operations. Our GHG emissions calculations
are based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition). Applying an operational
control approach, we have identified relevant activity data for Scope 1 and 2 emissions and have used the location based
Scope 2 calculation method. The majority of our Scope 1 emissions are from vehicles within our operating fleets. Our Scope 1
and 2 emissions have been verified by an independent carbon consultant.
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Our priority is to ensure we partner with known suppliers who
meet our high standards of food quality, animal welfare,
sustainability and ethical trade. Our global supply chain integrity
requirements ensure that we work only with suppliers who share
our values. Our Code of Business Conduct, available on our
website, outlines what we expect of all of our partners.

All of our operations around the world are aiming to source
100% cage-free shell eggs and liquid egg products by 2025. In
our US business over the last year, 40% of our total egg
purchase (both shell and liquid) was certified cage free.

We have been assessed by the Business Benchmark on Farm
Animal Welfare (BBFAW) since its inception in 2012. In 2019,
we are pleased to have maintained our Tier 3 ranking.

In 2019, we signed up to the 2026 European Chicken
Commitment of higher welfare standards for 100% of the
chicken meat we source for Europe, following a similar
commitment by our US business in 2016.

We know that sourcing particular foods can impact on
deforestation and desertification of the planet. We are
committed to preventing this and actively seek to reduce our
sourcing of products such as soy or beef that contribute to this,
such as those from the Amazon biome. We are active members
of the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Qil and the Round Table
on Responsible Soy.
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Our goal is for palm oil used to prepare food in our kitchens to be
100% certified sustainable from physical sources by 2022.

We want to play our part in improving the health of the

oceans and are increasingly buying more responsibly sourced
fish. Our commitment is to buy 50% certified sustainable
seafood by 2020. For 17 years, our business in the USA has
partnered with Monterey Bay Aquarium on Seafood Watch to
increase our serving of sustainable seafood. In the last financial
year, 42% of seafood purchased within our top 25 countries
was certified from sustainable sources. In Sweden, all our
restaurants are certified to Marine Stewardship

Council standards.

Our business success would not be possible without the support
we receive from our local communities across the world. We
want to continue giving back to these communities. We do this
by partnering with market-based charities and getting involved
with projects and initiatives that benefit the local area.

For example, in Australia we work with indigenous owned and
operated businesses, and have been actively increasing the
number of these suppliers and the amount we purchase from
them; in 2018, we increased spend by 30%. In Canada, we
launched our Buy Local programme in 650 education campuses
and schools across the country. The programme offers quality-
assured, fresh, locally sourced food from community-based,
local vendors.

Compass Colombia has been promoting prosperity in post-
conflict zones by partnering with charities including Prodeco and
Vital Corporation to work closely with local producers. Buying
more locally and through cooperatives allows the farms to
produce on demand rather than with seasonality, reducing food
waste and enabling access to collaborative tools to improve their
operations, as well as helping enhance the local economy.

In Denmark, our cafeterias have been cooking hot meals

for homeless people. We partner with the Disability Employment
Service in Australia to offer jobs to those less able bodied.
Working with a large financial services client we launched a
Redemption Roasters unit in the UK, to help rehabilitate
ex-offenders.

For several years, Eurest in Norway have collaborated with

The Norwegian Labour and Welfare Administration to hire
people who have been left out of the labour market. Through a
trainee programme, the candidates get to test and develop their
skills in several different professions to find the right job match
for their future.

As the biggest player in our industry, we have the expertise to
help shape positive change on food focused issues. And, as a
global business, we recognise the vital importance of working
together with our clients, suppliers and other stakeholders to
find solutions to these challenges.

We have been active for a number of years in helping to raise
animal welfare standards. With the Global Coalition for Animal
Welfare (GCAW), of which we are a founding member, we are
meeting consumer demand for better care for animals. With
Compassion in World Farming, we are playing a role in protecting
and improving farm animal welfare standards across the globe.

We are also signing up to innovative partnerships like the Ellen
MacArthur Foundation’s Food Initiative. Launched in June 2019,
this aims to ignite a global shift towards a regenerative food
system based on the principles of a circular economy. Starting
with the flagship cities of New York, London and S&o Paulo, we
will be piloting circular principles in select locations and working
with suppliers to help move towards a more circular food system.

As a core partner of the EAT Forum which is helping to transition
to a sustainable food system, we are launching pilots to assess,
analyse and improve the carbon footprint of the dishes served to
consumers in some of our sites.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Sustainable Development Goal & Indicator

Our Contribution

2.1 End hunger and ensure access to safe,
nutritious and sufficient food

2.4 Ensure sustainable food production and
resilient agriculture

Every year, we spend around £6 billion on food. Where we have surplus
food, we can play a role in helping the wider community to tackle food
insecurity through donation programmes. Through initiatives like Farm to
Forkin the USA, and Buy Social Corporate in the UK, we promote local
sourcing and positive agricultural practices.

et 3.4 Reduce premature mortality through
_/\,\/. prevention and treatment and promote
mental health and wellbeing

By pursuing our passion for wellbeing and nutrition, through projects
around healthy eating and mental health such as teaching kitchens,
awareness raising and mental health first-aid training, we are committed to
helping and supporting our consumers and colleagues to adopt and enjoy a
balanced lifestyle.

b G 5.5 Ensure women’s full and effective
g participation and equal opportunities for
leadership at all levels of decision making

Women are a driving force in our business. We aim to empower all our
female colleagues, promote women-led suppliers and run many women’s
development and training schemes. We are a lead supporter of WiH2020, a
cross-industry initiative dedicated to increasing women's representation in
leadership positions across the hospitality, travel and leisure sectors.

'DECENT WORK AND

ool 8.5 Achieve full and productive employment

m and decent work for all women and men,
including for young people and persons
with disabilities, and equal pay for work of
equal value

8.7 Take active measures to eradicate
forced labour, end modern slavery and
human trafficking and end child labour in all
its forms

8.8 Protect labour rights and promote
safe and secure working environments for
all workers

Our people are fundamental to our great service and reputation. Around the
world we are working with local communities to offer fair and safe
employment and great career opportunities. We run diversity and inclusion
action councils and many programmes to promote work for all. We work
with our operations and suppliers to address human rights and modern
slavery risks and conduct audits and provide training.

62 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019



Sustainable Development Goal & Indicator

Our Contribution

12.3 Halve per capita global food waste
by 2030

12.5 Reduce waste generation through
prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

12.6 Adopt sustainable practices and
integrate sustainability information
into reporting

We are committed to halving food waste by 2030 and are actively reducing
waste through measurement and targeted actions across all regions.

Through environmental management systems at client sites, as well as
education and toolkits, we encourage environmental stewardship and
waste reduction through prevention, recycling and reuse. In 2019, we
launched a comprehensive sustainability reporting system gathering
thousands of data points across our business to measure and report on our
sustainability efforts.

(5]

CLIMATE
AGTION

13.3 Improve capacity on climate change
mitigation, adaptation and impact reduction

In 2019, we committed to setting Science Based Targets to do our part in
limiting global warming to 1.5 degrees.

Through reducing food waste and increasing plant-based diets we are
helping reduce our indirect (Scope 3) greenhouse gas emissions to help
limit global warming and address climate change.

14.1 Prevent and reduce marine pollution

14.C Enhance the conservation
and sustainable use of oceans and
their resources

We are committed to reducing single-use plastics across our business
which can end up in waterways. We have taken great strides in this area,
already removing millions of plastic straws, cutlery and more.

We continue to promote sustainable and responsibly sourced seafood and
have a growing number of restaurants certified sustainable by the Marine
Stewardship Council. Our policy is not to serve fish from the Marine
Conservation Society ‘fish to avoid’ list.

15.1 Ensure the sustainable use of terrestrial
and inland freshwater ecosystems

15.2 Promote the implementation of
sustainable management of all types of
forests, halt deforestation

We are working across our global supply chain to ensure we source our food
and non-food products in a sustainable manner with the least possible
impact on the environment.

Through our membership of the Round Table on Responsible Soy and the
Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil and increasing our purchase of
certified sustainable palm oil, we aim to halt deforestation and promote
responsible environmental practices throughout our supply chain.

1

PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHEGOALS

&

17.16 Enhance the global partnership for
sustainable development, complemented by
multi stakeholder partnerships that mobilise
and share knowledge, expertise, technology
and financial resources, to support the
achievement of the goals

As a global business, we recognise the importance of working in partnership
with our clients, suppliers, NGOs and other stakeholders to improve the
positive contribution that we can make to help address some of the biggest
issues that we face in the 215t century. In 2019, we signed a global
partnership with the EAT Forum and we are working with the Ellen
MacArthur Foundation to help promote sustainable diets and a circular
economy for food.
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Maintaining high standards of

corporate governance

Paul Walsh
Chairman

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board manages the business of the Company and
sets the Group’s values and standards. It ensures that the
Company acts ethically and that its obligations to its
stakeholders are understood and met.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for
its decision. For more details see page 74. However, the
Board'’s primary role remains to provide entrepreneurial
leadership and to review the overall strategic development
of the Group. It has delegated day to day operational
decisions to the Executive Committee, that is supported
by country and regional management teams which are
responsible for achieving agreed targets, maintaining
budgetary controls and implementing policies and
controls at country and business unit level.

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE
Member Eligible Meetings

Member since toattend! attended
Paul Walsh Jan 2014 6 6
Carol Arrowsmith Jun 2014 6 6
John Bason Jun 2011 6 6
Dominic Blakemore Feb 2012 6 6
Stefan Bomhard May 2016 6 6
John Bryant Sep 2018 6 6
Gary Green Jan 2007 6 6
Anne-Francoise Nesmes Jul 2018 6 6
Nelson Silva Jul 2015 6 6
Johnny Thomson? Dec 2015 1 1
Ireena Vittal Jul 2015 6 6
Karen Witts® Apr 2019 3 3

1. The maximum number of meetings that a member was eligible
to attend.

2. Stepped down from the Board and its committees on
31 December 2018.

3. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 8 April 2019.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present Compass
Group PLC’s Corporate Governance Report for the financial
year ended 30 September 2019.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

It has been a year of wide ranging change for UK corporate
governance. There is a renewed focus on corporate culture
which is evidenced by the breadth and complexity of reporting
requirements. The purpose of companies and their place in
society is being redefined with a clear mandate for boards to be
more transparent about how companies conduct their business,
interact with their stakeholders and take their views into
consideration when formulating strategy.

Governance review

During the year, a governance review working group, headed by
the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, was
established. The purpose of this multi-disciplinary team was to
consider the regulatory and other governance changes being
introduced, including those set out in the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the 2018 Code) which will apply to Compass
from the financial year ending 30 September 2020, and to make
recommendations to the Board for adoption, in order to ensure
that the Company is compliant at the appropriate time.

As part of this exercise, brief details of which can be found on
page 79, we refreshed the schedule of matters reserved for the
Board and the terms of reference of the principal committees.
In doing so, we consulted with internal and external
stakeholders, taking care to ensure the documents were
aligned with the 2018 Code and the directors’ duties under
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (CA 2006).

As a Board, we are responsible for setting the ‘tone from the top’
and for championing a healthy, responsible corporate culture
which promotes the long term sustainable success of the
Company for the benefit of all of our stakeholders.

Culture and values

Our corporate culture defines who we are, what we stand for and
how we do business. Compass’ history and its culture have been
founded on the principle that strong governance makes sound
business sense. Our good reputation has been built on our
resolve to maintain the highest ethical and professional
standards at all times, underpinned by a well-defined and
effective system of governance.

As a services business, our people are our greatest asset and we
recognise and understand the value of recruiting and developing
the best people. By living our values, our people differentiate us
from our competitors, helping us to attract new business and
retain our existing clients. It is therefore important that all of our
people understand the importance of our values and the role
they play in our distinctive, delivery focused culture.



Throughout the year, we continued to invest time and resources
communicating with our people, designing programmes to
educate and encourage the highest standards of conduct. This
reflects our vision to be a world class provider of food services,
renowned for our great people, great service and great results.
These efforts are underpinned by our Codes of Business
Conduct and Ethics.

Stakeholder engagement

We remain committed to building on our existing legacy of strong
governance in support of our corporate performance and social
purpose so that we continue to benefit from the confidence and
support of our shareholders.

We have a global and diverse community of stakeholders that
includes clients, consumers, employees, suppliers and
shareholders as well as the communities in which we operate.
We respect the views of all our stakeholders and seek to engage
with them and take their feedback into account, incorporating it
where we can, to help inform our decision making processes.
More details of how we engage with our stakeholders can be
found on pages 16 and 17 and page 80.

During the year, we actively sought to engage with a number
of our shareholders who had voted against the re-election of
Ireena Vittal at the Company’s AGM on 7 February 2019. The
dialogue was initiated to better understand voting decisions
around perceived overboarding in respect of Mrs Vittal's other
non-executive directorships.

The Board carefully considered their views; however we strongly
believe that Mrs Vittal has been, and continues to be, an
effective independent non-executive director for Compass
Group PLC, who brings a breadth of knowledge, skills, cultural
and personal experiences combined with a unique perspective,
which is beneficial in boardroom debates. We believe that
Ireena’s other mandates on four Indian boards are significantly
less onerous than those of UK companies on the basis that they
hold fewer meetings in each case and the majority of meeting
sets are concluded within a single day. We are satisfied with her
attendance and believe that she devotes appropriate time to her
role at Compass, bringing valuable insights to our debates and
contributing to Board diversity.

As a measure of our confidence in Mrs Vittal, she has been
chosen to perform the role of designated Non-Executive Director
for workforce engagement to help us better understand the
views of our workforce. Ireena will undertake the role for

a period of two years from 1 October 2019 and, at the end of
that term, will be succeeded by one of her non-executive
colleagues. More details of this initiative can be found on

page 51.

Board changes

There were a number of changes made to the composition of the
Board during the year. On 31 December 2018, Johnny Thomson
stepped down as a director of the Company. He was succeeded

by Karen Witts who joined the Company as Group Chief Financial
Officer (Group CFO) on 8 April 2019. During the intervening
period, Palmer Brown, a seasoned executive in the Group’s
North American business, acted on an interim basis, but was not
appointed to the Board. On behalf of my colleagues, | would like
to thank Palmer for his support and to welcome Karen in her new
role at Compass.

Succession Planning and diversity

Succession planning continues to be an area of focus for the
Board and the Nomination Committee and we are pleased with
the progress of the Group’s diversity and inclusion agenda. We
recognise that the Board sets the tone for diversity across the
Group and that it is important that we should have a diverse
leadership to support good decision making. The appointment of
Karen Witts during the year increased female representation on
the Board to 36%. The Board supports the targets set by the
Hampton-Alexander Review with regard to gender diversity.
These will continue to be considered in the succession planning
process and we are confident that initiatives taking place across
Compass to help identify the leaders of the future will lead to
greater diversity within our senior management. We have
continued to strengthen our approach to talent management
and succession planning at a senior level, more details of which
can be found in the People Report on pages 46 to 51. Thisis a
subject which continues to command the Board’s full attention
and it is reflected in the appointments that were made to

the Executive Committee during the course of the year.
Biographies of the Executive Committee members can be
found on pages 24 and 25.
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We will continue to assess Board and senior executive
succession planning to ensure we maintain an appropriate
combination of skills, experience and knowledge to deliver our
strategy, and to ensure that plans are in place for orderly
succession to the Board and senior management positions.

THE YEAR AHEAD

We are committed to doing things in the right way and will
continue to strengthen our governance processes over the
coming year to ensure that we are aligned with best practice and
the 2018 Code and that our approach to disclosure remains
understandable and transparent.

We look forward to meeting with you at our upcoming AGM,
which will be held at Twickenham Stadium at 10.30am on
Thursday 6 February 2020.

sk

Paul Walsh
Chairman

26 November 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Strong, effective and experienced leadership

As at 30 September 2019, and as at the date of this Report, the Board of Directors was made up of 11 members,

comprising the non-executive Chairman, three executive directors and seven non-executive directors. The roles of Chairman

and Group Chief Executive Officer (Group CEO) are separate and clearly defined, with the division of responsibilities set out in writing
and agreed by the Board.

L

Paul Walsh, Chairman

Dominic Blakemore, Group Chief Executive Officer

Anne-Francoise Nesmes, Non-Executive Director

Stefan Bomhard, Non-Executive Director

John Bason, Senior Independent Director

Ireena Vittal, Non-Executive Director, and designated NED for workforce engagement

OO h WN =
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All of the non-executive directors are considered by the Board (and by the definition contained in the UK Corporate Code 2016) to be
independent of management and free of any relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement. The Company’s policy relating to the terms of appointment and the remuneration of both executive and non-executive
directors is detailed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report, which is on pages 98 to 121.

9JoUBUIBA0D)

7  Karen Witts, Group Chief Financial Officer

8 Gary Green, Group Chief Operating Officer, North America

9 Nelson Silva, Non-Executive Director

10 Carol Arrowsmith, Non-Executive Director

11 John Bryant, Non-Executive Director

12 Alison Yapp, Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PAUL WALSH
Chairman

o®

Joined as a non-executive director in January 2014. Appointed Chairman
in February 2014.

Key skills and competencies

Paul has significant experience in marketing, M&A and retail operations
as well as substantial corporate leadership experience.

Current external appointments

Non-executive director of McDonald’s Corporation and FedEx
Corporation and a director of Bespoke Capital Acquisition Corp. (a
special purpose acquisition company). Advisor to TPG Capital LLP (TPG)
affiliates and, at times, a nominee director of various companies, as
required by TPG. Chairman of Chime Communications Limited

(a private company).

Previous experience

Paul was formerly Chairman of Avanti Communications Group plc and
Ontex Group N.V., Chief Executive of Diageo plc, Chief Executive Officer
of the Pillsbury Company, director of GrandMet, non-executive director of
RM?2 International S.A., HSBC Holdings plc, Simpsons Malt Limited,
Unilever PLC, Centrica plc and United Spirits Limited, nominee director
of Pace Holdings Corp, Business Ambassador on the UK Government’s
Business Advisory Group and Chairman and a Council Member of the
Scotch Whisky Association.

DOMINIC BLAKEMORE
Group Chief Executive Officer

©®®

Joined the Board in February 2012. Dominic previously held the roles

of Group Finance Director and Group Chief Operating Officer, Europe.

In October 2017, Dominic was appointed Deputy Group CEO.

He assumed the role of Group CEO in January 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Dominic has extensive financial management experience in a number of
international businesses together with general operational management
experience. Dominic is a chartered accountant.

Current external appointments

Dominic will join the board of London Stock Exchange Group (LSEG) as a
non-executive director with effect from 1 January 2020 and will become
the chairman of the audit committee of LSEG following the conclusion of
LSEG's 2020 AGM. Dominic is also a member of the Council of University
College London.

Previous experience

Dominic was formerly non-executive director of Shire plc and Chief
Financial Officer of Iglo Foods Group Limited. Before joining Iglo Dominic
was European Finance & Strategy Director at Cadbury Plc having
previously held senior finance roles at that company. Prior to his role at
Cadbury Plc, Dominic was a director at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

GARY GREEN

Group Chief Operating Officer, North America

®®

Joined the Board in January 2007. Appointed Group Chief Operating
Officer, North America in April 2012.

Key skills and competencies

Gary brings strong business and operational leadership as well as
business development and wide ranging sales experience. Gary is a
chartered accountant and in 2001 received an honorary doctorate from
Johnson & Wales University in the USA.

Current external appointments

None.

Previous experience

Gary joined the Group in 1986 in a senior finance role in the UK and
became a UK director in 1992. He relocated to the USA in 1994 as Chief
Finance Officer of the Group’s North American business and in 1999
became Chief Executive Officer, North America.

KAREN WITTS
Group Chief Financial Officer

©0D®®

Joined the Board as Group Chief Financial Officer in April 2019.

Key skills and competencies

Karen is an experienced Chief Financial Officer with a strong background
in finance and management across a variety of sectors in global
organisations. Karen is a chartered accountant.

Current external appointments

Non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of
Imperial Brands plc.

Previous experience

Karen joined Compass from Kingfisher PLC where she was Group Chief
Financial Officer and a member of the board of directors for over six
years. Prior to working at Kingfisher, Karen held senior finance positions
at Vodafone Group PLC and BT PLC and was a former non-executive
director of Wolseley plc. Karen’s early career included finance roles at
Mars, Paribas, Grand Metropolitan and Ernst & Whinney.

JOHN BASON

Senior Independent Director

Appointed to the Board in June 2011. Appointed SID in June 2018.
Key skills and competencies

John brings significant financial and international experience to the

Board, gained from his long career with major global businesses. John is
a chartered accountant.

Current external appointments

Finance Director of Associated British Foods plc and Chairman of the
charity FareShare.

Previous experience

John was previously Finance Director of Bunzl plc and a former trustee of
Voluntary Service Overseas.

CAROL ARROWSMITH
Non-Executive Director

WONW®

Appointed to the Board in June 2014.

Key skills and competencies

Carol brings extensive advisory experience, especially of advising boards
on executive remuneration across a range of sectors. Carol is a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development.

Current external appointments

Member of the Advisory Group for Spencer Stuart, non-executive director
of Vivo Energy PLC, director and trustee of Northern Ballet Limited and
director of Arrowsmith Advisory Limited.

Previous experience

Carol is a former partner and advisor of Deloitte LLP and was Vice
Chairman of their UK business and former director of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and non-executive director of TMF Group Limited.

Board committee membership

(®) Audit Committee p.82 (@ General Business Committee p.73 @ cChairman

© Corporate Responsibility Committee p. 90 @ Nomination Committee p. 94 . Secretary

@ Disclosure Committee p. 73 ® Remuneration Committee p.98 Designated NED for workforce
(E) Executive Committee p. 22 engagement
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STEFAN BOMHARD

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in May 2016.

Key skills and competencies

Stefan brings extensive experience of working in international

environments, particularly relating to the operation, sales and marketing
of well-known consumer food and drink brands.

Current external appointments
Chief Executive Officer of Inchcape plc.
Previous experience

Stefan was previously Regional President, Europe, Geneva at Bacardi
Martini for five years and held a number of worldwide senior positions at
Cadbury Plc, Unilever PLC, Diageo plc, Burger King and Procter

& Gamble.

JOHN BRYANT

Non-Executive Director

WOM®

Appointed to the Board in September 2018.

Key skills and competencies

John brings over 30 years’ experience to the Board with a particular
focus on finance, operations, M&A, strategy and portfolio transformation.
Current external appointments

Non-executive director of Ball Corporation and Macy’s Inc.

Previous experience

John was the former Executive Chairman and CEO of global consumer

goods company Kellogg. Prior to joining Kellogg in 1998, John held
strategic and operational roles in several companies, worldwide.

ANNE-FRANCOISE NESMES
Non-Executive Director

WoOMm®

Appointed to the Board in July 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Anne-Francoise has a wealth of experience in finance and

accounting gained in international organisations with a strong focus

on strategy, M&A and governance. Anne-Francoise is a chartered
management accountant.

Current external appointments

Chief Financial Officer, Merlin Entertainments plc and a director of Merlin
Entertainments plc's subsidiary companies: Sea Life Trust Limited,
Merlin Entertainments Share Plan Nominee Limited, Merlin’s Magic
Wand Trustees Limited and Sea Life Trustees Limited.

Previous experience

Prior to joining Merlin, Anne-Francoise was the Chief Financial Officer of
Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC and also held a number of senior finance
roles during her 16 year tenure at GlaxoSmithKline.
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NELSON SILVA
Non-Executive Director

(OX XOXGY

Appointed to the Board in July 2015.

Key skills and competencies

Nelson has considerable executive management experience in a variety
of senior leadership roles within major international companies, with a
particular focus on Brazil.

Current external appointments

Non-executive director of Cosan Limited and an advisor to Appian Capital
Advisory LLP and HSB Solomon Associates LLP.

Previous experience

Nelson was formerly an executive director of Petrdleo Brasileiro S.A. and
President of the Aluminium business unit at BHP Billiton, based in the
UK. Prior to joining BHP Billiton, Nelson held a number of senior
positions at Vale, including Sales and Marketing Director based in
Belgium, Japan and Brazil. Nelson was also Managing Director of
Embraer for Europe and Africa, based in France, and Chief Executive
Officer of All Logistica in Argentina.

Nelson previously held the position of Senior Vice President of BG
Group plc responsible for Brazil, Bolivia and Uruguay. He is a former
board member of the Brazilian Institute of Oil and Gas, the Brazilian
Association of Petroleum Companies and of the Social and
Development Council of Brazil’s Presidency. Nelson was formerly a
senior consultant to BHP Billiton Brazil and a board member of the
Brazilian Symphonic Orchestra.

IREENA VITTAL
Non-Executive Director

WOM®®

Appointed to the Board in July 2015. Designated NED for workforce
engagement, effective October 2019 for a period of two years.

Key skills and competencies

Ireena brings strong advisory, business and operational experience
across a variety of retail businesses, with a particular focus on India.
Current external appointments

Non-executive director of Godrej Consumer Products Limited, WIPRO
Limited, Titan Company Limited and Housing Development Finance
Corporation Limited.

Previous experience

Ireena was formerly a non-executive director of The Indian Hotels
Company Limited, Cipla Limited, Tata Global Beverages Limited, Tata
Industries, Zomato Media Private Limited, GlaxoSmithKline Consumer
Healthcare and Axis Bank Limited, Head of Marketing and Sales at
Hutchinson Max Telecom and partner at McKinsey and Company.

ALISON YAPP
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

AODE®OE@MR

Joined the Group in August 2018. Appointed Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary in October 2018.

Key skills and competencies

Alison is a solicitor with more than 25 years’ international experience in
FTSE and NYSE listed companies across the services, industrial and
engineering sectors. She has significant experience in strategic M&A,
crisis and change management.

Current external appointments

None.

Previous experience

Alison was formerly Chief General Counsel and Company Secretary of
Amec Foster Wheeler plc, Company Secretary and General Legal Counsel
of Hays plc and Company Secretary and Group Legal Advisor of Charter
plc. Prior to joining Charter, Alison held a number of senior legal roles at
Johnson Matthey plc.
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Corporate governance

BOARD COMPOSITION, DIVERSITY AND ACTIVITIES?

BOARD TENURE

\

28%

9%
45%

> 5 years Non-Executive Chairman
3-5 years ! Non-Executive

[ 1-3years I Executive

M <1year

BOARD SKILLS
AND EXPERIENCE

. 18%

7
I
L
L 64%
North America

Health, safety and sustainability

International/specialist region Europe
knowledge experience B Rest of World
Sector experience

[0 Financial and accounting expertise
I strategy/M&A
[ Corporate/operational leadership

HOW THE BOARD GOVERNS THE COMPANY

The Board leads the Group’s governance structure. It is
responsible for setting the strategic targets for the Group,
monitoring progress made, approving proposed actions and
for ensuring that the appropriate internal controls are in place
and that they are operating effectively. The Board is assisted
by four principal committees (Audit, Corporate Responsibility,
Nomination and Remuneration), each of which is responsible
for reviewing and dealing with matters within its own terms

of reference.

The minutes of all Committee meetings are circulated at
scheduled Board meetings.

The Company also has a number of executive management
committees (Disclosure, Executive and General Business).
These have been established in order to consider various
matters for recommendation to the Board and its principal
committees or to deal with day to day matters within the
authority granted by the Board. The formal terms of reference
for the principal committees, approved by the Board and
complying with the Code, are available from the Group General

1. Information as at 30 September 2019.
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DIRECTOR BALANCE

NATIONALITIES BY
REPORTING REGION

HAMPTON-ALEXANDER 2020
TARGET: % FEMALE

— 3
33%

B compass
Hampton-Alexander 2020 target

PROPORTION OF TIME SPENT
ON KEY AREAS

11%

79 16%
299 19%

Business and operational review
Strategy
Financial review including tax, treasury
Sector/Regional Business Reviews

%] M&A and Cap Ex

M Risk

M Governance and IR

Counsel and Company Secretary and can also be found at
www.compass-group.com. Terms of reference are reviewed
annually by their respective committees and updated when
necessary to reflect changes in legislation or best practice.
The matters reserved for the Board and the terms of reference
of the principal committees were thoroughly reviewed

and updated in the year under review and can be found

at www.compass-group.com.

Directors who are not members of individual Board committees
may be invited to attend one or more meetings of those
committees during the year.

The Chairman of each of the principal committees attends the
AGM to respond to any shareholder questions that might be
raised on committee activities. The Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to all Board Committees.

Our governance structure is supported by the Group’s
standards, policies and internal controls, which are described
in more detail over the following pages.



GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

SHAREHOLDERS

We have a geographically diverse shareholder
base of 39,494, comprising 4,146 institutional
investors and 35,348 private investors (as at
30 September 2019).

AGM

The Company’s Annual General Meeting provides
an ideal opportunity for the Board to meet with
investors. At the 2020 AGM, shareholders will
vote on 23 resolutions dealing with key
governance matters, including payment of

the final dividend, appointment/reappointment
of directors and the reappointment of the auditor.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We have an active Investor Relations engagement
programme. During the year, the Company held
around 335 meetings with investors through a
combination of one to one meetings, group
meetings and telephone calls, around 71 of which
were attended by the Group CEO and Group CFO.
The Chairman, SID and Remuneration Committee
Chairman also held meetings with investors.

A

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the performance and
long term success of the Company, including
health and safety, leadership, strategy, values,
standards, controls and risk management.

CHAIRMAN

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of
the Board and for ensuring there is effective
debate and challenge.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group CEQ’s role entails being ultimately
responsible for day to day operational
management decisions and for implementing the

Company’s long and short term plans. The Group
CEO acts as a direct liaison between the Board
and management.

SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The role of SID is to provide a sounding board for
the Chairman and to serve as an intermediary for
other directors and shareholders where necessary.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for
ensuring good information flow to the Board

and its committees and between senior
management and the non-executive directors;
and for advising the Board, through the Chairman,
on governance matters.

OPERATIONAL
GOVERNANCE
The operational
governance of the
Company is the
responsibility of
the Group CEO.

The various
operational
governance
structures in place
are maintained
and overseen by
the Executive
Committee, which

>< is led by the Group

CEO and
comprises

the executive
directors, regional
managing
directors and
other members

of senior
management,
whose biographies
are on pages 24
and 25.

into account the
overall strategic plan
and other factors.

reporting and
effectiveness of the
internal and external
audit functions.

See page 82 See page 90

Disclosure Committee

directors and senior
managers to ensure
reward is aligned to

of skills, experience and
diversity to oversee the
delivery of strategy.

shareholders’ interests.

See page 94 See page 98

General Business Committee

N\ v
BOARD COMMITTEES
Corporate
Audit Responsibility Nomination Remuneration Executive
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Responsible for the Advises the Board on Ensures the Board has Determines the reward  Day to day
Group’s financial broad CR policy taking  the necessary balance strategy for executive operational

management and
implementation
of strategy.

See page 22

other public announcements (as necessary).

Oversees the disclosure of market sensitive information and

The Disclosure Committee comprises the Group CFO, the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, Group

Conducts the Company’s business within clearly defined

limits delegated by the Board and subject to the matters

reserved for the Board.

Financial Controller, Group Internal Audit Director, Group
Director of Strategy and M&A and Group Investor Relations
and Corporate Affairs Director. The Committee meets as and
when required. A quorum for a meeting is two, one of which
must be either the Group CFO or Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary. Only members of the Committee have
the right to attend meetings, although other individuals may
be invited to attend as and when appropriate.

The General Business Committee comprises all of the
executive directors and meets as required. A quorum for a
meeting is two.

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
meetings, although other individuals may be invited to
attend as and when appropriate.
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BOARD ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

INSIGHT INTO THE BOARDROOM

The following is a summary of the key matters considered by the Board throughout the year:

November (UK)

February (UK)

March (USA)

HSE performance

Group CEQ’s review

M&A and strategy update
capital expenditure

and contracts

financial performance
draft final results
announcement

final dividend parameters
draft Annual Report

and Accounts

succession planning update
DOR sector update
changes to composition of
Executive Committee
approved formation of
Treasury Management
Committee and approval
of Group Treasury policies
Chairman/Group CEO/NEDs
private meeting

May (UK)

HSE performance and safety share video
— Living with allergens

Group CEQ’s review

M&A and strategy update

capital expenditure and contracts
financial performance

AGM

trading update

Healthcare & Seniors sector update
Treasury approvals and approval of
Treasury Management Committee terms
of reference

review of Nomination Committee
membership — Group CEO stepping
down from Committee

Chairman/Group CEO/NEDs private
meeting (including Group CEO
evaluation)

July (Japan)

HSE performance

Group CEQ’s review

Education sector update

capital expenditure and contracts
financial performance

North America business review
including: Performance, People and
Purpose update

meetings with local management
including attending Envision Summit
Group strategy review including:
Performance, People and Purpose
update (which included an initiative by
the Group’s Australian business to
promote mental health support:
#gotyourback)

review of International Clients and
Market Development and M&A strategies
review of IT/cyber risk strategy
stakeholder engagement update
Chairman/Group CEO/NEDs

private meeting

September (UK)

HSE performance

Group CEQ’s review

M&A and strategy update
capital expenditure

and contracts

financial performance

draft interim results
announcement

interim dividend parameters
UK&I business review
appointment of committee to

deal with interim results matters

Treasury/insurance update
Tax update

biannual major risk assessment

succession planning
Chairman/Group CEO/NEDs
private meeting

HSE performance

Group CEQ’s review

M&A and strategy update

capital expenditure and contracts
financial performance

draft Q3 trading update

conflicts of interest

APAC business review

Japanese and Indian business reviews
CAMEAT & DOR business reviews
shareholder engagement
stakeholder engagement including
appointment of designated NED for
workforce engagement

town hall for Japanese operations
hosted by the Chairman, Group CEO,
Regional MD, APAC, and MD, Japan
Chairman/Group CEO/NEDs

private meeting

HSE performance

Group CEQ’s review

M&A and strategy update

capital expenditure and contracts
financial performance

2019-2020 budget and three year plan
annual litigation update

Investor Relations update

biannual major risk assessment

review findings of external

Board evaluation

approve matters reserved for the Board,
Committee terms of reference and role
descriptions (Chairman, Group CEO
and SID)

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS AND TRAINING

The Board meets regularly during the year as well as on an ad
hoc basis, as required by business needs. The Board met six

times during the year and attendance is shown in the table on
page 66.

If a director is unable to attend a Board or committee meeting, .
the Chairman of the Board and/or committee Chairman are

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its
decision as follows:

® purpose, strategy and management
e values, culture and stakeholders

informed and the absent director is encouraged to communicate

comments and opinions on the matters to be considered. Each
director also attends the AGM to answer shareholder questions.

Board membership and other appointments
e financial and other reporting and controls

e audit, risk and internal controls

e contracts and capital structure

e communication
Board activities are structured to help the Board achieve its ® remuneration

goals and to provide support and advice to the executive « delegation of authority

management team on the delivery of Group strategy within a

robust governance framework.
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Throughout the year, the Board received presentations from
colleagues across the Group and regularly reviewed the
periodic financial results, market consensus, competitor
updates, merger and acquisition opportunities, capital
expenditure and other matters.

Meetings between the Chairman and non-executive directors,
both with and without the presence of the Group CEO, are
scheduled in the Board’s annual programme. During the year,
the non-executive directors met regularly without the presence
of the executives, typically around each Board meeting. These
meetings were encouraged by the Chairman and provide the
non-executive directors with a forum in which to share
experiences and to discuss wider business topics, fostering
debate in Board and committee meetings and strengthening
working relationships.

In addition to routine financial and operating reports

and updates (including health and safety), the Board spends
time debating and formulating Group strategy and reviewing
its performance.

Each year, the Board aims to hold two meetings overseas. By
visiting operations, the directors are able to meet with a diverse
group of colleagues on a more informal basis which greatly
assists in the succession planning process. These visits provide
an opportunity to assess local management performance and
potential, to gain further insight into how the business works on
a day to day basis and to speak first hand to local management
and listen to their views. The format of visits often comprises a
macroeconomic overview of the country, its social and political
systems, challenges and opportunities, a review of the
competitive landscape, and a detailed review of the relevant
sectors in which the business operates, its people, as well as the
three year plan. The Board also uses these opportunities to hold
town halls with employees, undertake visits to Company and
client sites and to meet with high potential employees and
country and regional management teams.

This year, the overseas Board meetings were held in the USA
and Japan. The Board received presentations on the North
American and APAC regions from local management. During the
visit to Japan, the Board also received detailed reviews of the
Japanese and Indian operations and the Chairman hosted a
town hall event for local employees with the Group CEO,
Regional MD, APAC, and MD, Japan. The Board also attended a
number of evening receptions and dinners in both the USA and
Japan to enable the directors to meet with senior management
and high potential employees in a more relaxed, informal setting.

The Board has established a procedure for directors, if deemed
necessary, to take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in the furtherance of their duties. Every
director also has access to the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, who helps to ensure that Board procedures
are followed, and that good corporate governance and
compliance are implemented throughout the Group. Together
with the Group CEO and the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that the Board is
kept properly informed and is consulted on all issues reserved
for it. Board papers and other information are distributed in a
timely fashion to allow directors to be properly briefed in
advance of meetings. In accordance with the Company’s articles
of association, directors have been granted an indemnity by the
Company to the extent permitted by law in respect of liabilities

incurred as a result of their office. The indemnity would not
provide any coverage where a director is proved to have acted
fraudulently or dishonestly. The Company has also arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors and officers.

In accordance with best practice, the Chairman addresses the
developmental needs of the Board as a whole, with a view to
further developing its effectiveness as a team and ensures that
each director refreshes and updates his or her individual skills,
knowledge and expertise. A formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction is given to all directors following their appointment,
including access to external training courses, visits to key
locations within the Group and meetings with members of the
Executive Committee and other senior executives. The induction
also covers a review of the Group’s governance policies,
structures and business, including details of the risks and
operating issues facing the Group. Details of Karen Witts’
induction can be found on page 96.
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Ensuring that Compass retains its disciplined approach to long
term growth, its focus on food as its core competence, and its
delivery of value for all of its stakeholders is dependent on the
successful implementation of the strategy set by the Board.
While the Group’s strategy is continuously discussed and refined
throughout the year, the Board takes time out of its regular
schedule every year to debate and reflect on broader strategic
issues. This is supported by strategy updates at every Board
meeting. The Board held a strategy day in the USA in March
when it discussed the Group's strategy at length. More
information about the Group’s strategy can be found on

pages 1 to 63.

Succession planning is a key area of focus for the Board and it
undertook a detailed succession planning review twice in the
year with the Group Chief People Officer.

The Company’s articles of association provide that one third of
the directors retire by rotation each year and that each director
will seek re-election at the AGM every three years. All directors
submit themselves for annual re-election by shareholders. New
directors may be appointed by the Board but are subject to
election by shareholders at the first opportunity after their
appointment. The articles of association limit the number of
directors to not less than two and not more than 20, save where
shareholders decide otherwise. Non-executive directors are
normally appointed for an initial term of three years, which is
reviewed and may be extended by two further three year terms.
It is Board policy that non-executive director appointments
should last for no more than nine years.
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BOARD ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

BOARD EVALUATION

The Chairman is responsible, with assistance from the
Nomination Committee, for ensuring that the Company has an
effective Board with an appropriate range of skills, expertise and
experience. Every year, a performance evaluation of the Board
and its committees is carried out to ensure that they continue to
be effective, that each of the directors demonstrates
commitment to his or her respective roles and has sufficient
time to meet his or her commitment to the Company.

The Board evaluation is used to provide a full and frank appraisal
of the contribution of each individual director and the
effectiveness of the Board and its committees.

Internal review: progress made during the year

In 2018, the performance and effectiveness of the Board and its
committees was assessed by way of an internal evaluation. As a
result of the assessment, it was concluded that the performance
of each director continued to be effective and that both the
Board and its committees continued to provide effective
leadership and exert the required levels of governance and
control, which aligned with observations made by the Chairman,
committee chairmen and other non-executive directors as part
of the evaluation process and throughout the year.

The agreed actions from the internal evaluation included
providing support for the Group CEO as he transitioned into the
role as well as the appointment and induction of two new
non-executive directors, who were expected to join the Company
in 2018. These matters were progressed with the appointments
of Anne-Francoise Nesmes and John Bryant.

External review process

In May 2019, an independent formal external evaluation was
conducted in line with the mandated triennial external
requirement set out in the Code. The selection process for the
external provider was led by the Chairman and the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary. The credentials of
three providers were assessed including their experience and
independence. All were considered to be independent and
experienced in board evaluation. Particular emphasis was
placed on the ability of the chosen firm to assist the Board on an
ongoing basis over the longer term. This was to ensure year on
year performance could be measured and learnings captured,
taking into account strategic and regulatory context, culture and
the Board’s cycle. The firm chosen to perform the evaluation
was Lintstock Limited (Lintstock). Lintstock is independent of
and has no other links with the Company or its directors in
connection with the brief.

FINDINGS OF BOARD EVALUATION

Board Stakeholder Board Management and Board
composition oversight dynamics focus of meetings support

The composition of The Board's The dynamic between The management The quality of Board
the Board was highly understanding of the the non-executives of meetings was papers received a
rated. No pressing Company's and senior rated highly. high rating. It was
gaps were identified stakeholders was management was concluded that a

in the skillset of the
Board.

A number of
suggestions were
made regarding
desirable attributes in
future potential
candidates, including
technology and
sector/market and
ESG expertise.

Maintaining sufficient
experience of the UK
PLC environment was
also considered to be
important, including
familiarity with
corporate governance
demands and
reporting
requirements.

rated positively. The
importance of
selecting the
mechanisms by which
the Board would
engage with
employees was
considered to be key,
taking into account
the number of
employees and their
dispersion
internationally.

Devoting time at
Board meetings to the
topic of culture as a
business driver was
also identified as an
area of focus.

considered to be
constructive with an
open and inclusive
dialogue with the
Group CEO.

Non-executives
provided effective
support and challenge
whilst fostering a
supportive
atmosphere for senior
managers below
Board level who
attended Board
meetings.

It was agreed that
the duration of some
committee meetings
should be lengthened
in conjunction with

a more disciplined
approach to agenda
management to
ensure efficient use
of time.

more succinct
approach in some
areas would assist
understanding of the
information
presented.

The circulation of
analyst and broker
reports was valued.

The induction,
training, advice and
Company Secretariat
support provided to
the Board received a
high rating.
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Scope, timing and nature of review

The Chairman and the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary agreed the timing, scope and nature of the review
including key themes for exploration and approach that would
be adopted to ensure that the evaluation process was
challenging and comprehensive. The following key themes
were agreed:

e Board composition, dynamics and support

e stakeholder oversight

e strategic oversight

® Board committees

e management and focus of meetings

¢ risk management and internal control

e succession planning and people management
e priorities going forward

Initial information gathering took place in April 2019 following
which participants, including Palmer Brown, who acted as
interim Group CFO in the period leading up to Karen Witts’
appointment, completed online Board and committee surveys
that had been tailored as appropriate. Based on agreed themes,
the surveys were designed to be objective, thought provoking
and to encourage candid responses. The information acquired
from the completed surveys was used by the evaluation team at
Lintstock to structure their approach in advance of one on one
interviews with members of the Board and the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary.

In May and June 2019, Lintstock ran detailed interviews with
Board members (except Karen Witts who had only recently
joined the Company) and the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary. All Board members were interviewed to a
clear agenda, unique to Compass, taking into account the
interviewees' observations contained in the survey results.
During each session, the three members of the evaluation team
were assigned a specific task to ensure that any responses by
participants meriting further attention could be fully addressed.

Between May and July 2019, Lintstock collated and analysed
responses with a view to summarising their findings for
presentation to the Board for discussion at its meeting in
September 2019.

Findings of review

Reports on the performance of the Board, the Chairman and its
committees were compiled by the Lintstock evaluation team
based on information and views supplied by those interviewed
and all recommendations made by Lintstock were based on best
practice. Lintstock’s conclusions were initially shared with the
Chairman and Group General Counsel and Company Secretary.
The reports were circulated to participants in mid-August so as
to give participants time to digest the contents of the reports in
advance of the September Board meeting when Lintstock
reviewed its findings with the Board.

e
<
()
=
3
Q
=
(2]
@

Strategic
oversight

Risk management
and internal control

Succession planning

and people management Priorities

The March strategy session
held in the USA was
considered to represent
continued improvement on
similar such sessions held in
the past with an open
dialogue and communication.

The KPIs provided to inform
the Board’s analysis of
business performance
received high ratings, as did
the understanding of the
Group’s performance
relative to its main
competitors, and the
awareness of the markets in
which the Group operates.

Key strategic issues for the
Group were identified as: i)
accelerating growth outside
the USA; ii) technology and
disruption; iii) maintaining
sustainable growth; iv)
succession planning and
acquisition and development
of talent; and v) responding
to developing trends and
expectations.

Health and safety is included
at the start of every agenda
of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee,
recognising its importance.

The Board’s focus on risk
was considered to be
appropriate. It was
suggested that the focus on
CR risk should be broadened
and in this regard the
Corporate Responsibility
Committee’s remit has been
enhanced and its terms of
reference revised to increase
focus in the areas of health
and safety (including food
safety), sustainability, people
(including workforce
engagement and employee
voice), ethics and
compliance.

The opportunity for further
enhancement of the
organisation’s approach
to risk and risk appetite
was noted.

The structure of the Group at e continued

senior levels was rated implementation and
highly. The careful balance development of the
between central oversight Group strategy

and local accountability was e succession planning and
noted with the need to talent acquisition and
carefully prioritise development

investment in central e continued oversight of
functions, based on risk
supporting the businesses. e furthering the Corporate

Responsibility strategy
® supporting senior
management

The effectiveness of the
process of selecting and
appointing the new Group
CFO was commented on

The areas for attention
favourably.

identified in this year’s
review and how they have
been addressed will be
reported in the 2020
Annual Report and
Accounts.

The Board’s oversight of
succession of the Board
and Executive Committee
received a high rating as
well as the transition of the
new Group CEQ into role.
The processes for
managing and developing
talent had improved and
there was an increased
emphasis on people.
Employee engagement and
culture were identified as
continued areas of focus.

The content of Lintstock’s report and the conclusion of the Board discussion were recorded by the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary in the minutes of the September meeting.
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BOARD ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

As part of their ongoing development, the executive directors
may seek one external non-executive role on a non-competitor
board, for which they may retain the remuneration in respect of
the appointment. In order to avoid any conflict of interest, all
appointments are subject to Board approval and the Board
monitors the extent of directors’ other interests and the time
commitment required to fulfil those interests to ensure that its
effectiveness is not compromised.

Each director has a duty under the Companies Act 2006

(CA 2006) to avoid a situation in which he or she has or can have
a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or possibly may conflict
with the interests of the Company. This duty is in addition to the
obligation that he or she owes to the Company to disclose to the
Board an interest in any transaction or arrangement under
consideration by the Company. The Company'’s articles of
association authorise the directors to approve such situations
and to include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest to

be dealt with. The Board follows an established procedure when
deciding whether to authorise an actual or potential conflict of
interest. Only independent directors (i.e. those who have no
interest in the matter under consideration) will be able to make
the relevant decision and, in making the decision, the directors
must act in good faith and in a way they consider will be most
likely to promote the Company’s success. Furthermore, the
directors may, if appropriate, impose limits or conditions when
granting authorisation. Any authorities are reviewed at least
every 15 months.

The Board considered and authorised each director’s reported
actual and potential conflicts of interest at its July 2019 Board
meeting and considers any changes on an ad hoc basis
throughout the year.
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Throughout the Governance and Directors' Report, we
have set out how we have applied the main principles and
complied with the relevant provisions of the Code.

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE
Responsibility for good governance lies with the Board.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is
committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance as set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2016 (the Code). The Code can be found on

the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) website at
www.frc.org.uk.

This Corporate Governance Report, together with the
Directors’ Remuneration Report set out on pages 98
to 121, describes how the Board has applied the main
principles of good governance and complied with the
relevant provisions as set out in the Code for the year
under review.

The Directors’ Report also contains information required
to be disclosed under the UK Listing Authority’s (UKLA)
Rules and under the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules (DTR). To the extent necessary,
certain information is incorporated into this Report

by reference.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

It is the Board’s view that for the year ended

30 September 2019 the Company has been fully
compliant with all of the principles and provisions set out
in the Code.

The Company’s auditor, KPMG LLP, is required to review
whether the above statement reflects the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Code specified for
its review by the UKLA Rules and to report if it does not
reflect such compliance. No such report has been made.

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 September 2019.

This Corporate Governance Report on pages 64 to 121
and the Other Statutory Disclosures on pages 122 to 127
together with the Directors’ Responsibilities statement on
page 130 and the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 63 which
have been incorporated into this Report by reference,
make up the Directors’ Report.



2018 UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Moving towards the new code

Alison Yapp
Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary

Compass will

report against the
2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the
2018 Code) from the
financial year ending
30 September 2020.

Over the past year, we
have been reviewing our
governance framework
and reflecting on how
we engage with our key
stakeholders in
preparation for the
change in emphasis
brought about by the
2018 Code.

Culture and values

Remuneration

Workforce and
stakeholder engagement

A board should establish the
company’s purpose, values
and strategy, and satisfy itself
that these and its culture are
aligned. All directors must
act with integrity, lead by
example and promote the
desired culture.

This year, there was a renewed
focus on ethics and compliance
to further embed a culture of
integrity and to empower
employees to continue to speak
up and raise concerns. We
appointed a Group Head of
Ethics and Compliance as we
continue to improve our key
policies and procedures in

this area.

Various initiatives are taking
place across the Group to
reinforce the values and
behaviours that support the
Group’s strategy, some of which
are set out below.

® we launched our set of three
Compass commitments —
Respect, Growth and
Teamwork — that define what
our people can expect when
they work for us

® e are reviewing our Ethics
and Compliance programme
which is aligned to our culture
and values and informed by
best practice. The
programme will focus efforts
on culture and ethics to
strengthen controls. It will
incorporate regulatory and
stakeholder requirements to
manage our risks
appropriately

® an ethical leadership
programme is being
developed in conjunction
with the People function

® preparations are underway to
launch a refreshed Code of
Business Conduct and
awareness campaign in 2020,
including the creation of an
ethics champion network,
briefings, webinars and an
engagement pack

Remuneration policies and
practices should be designed to
support strategy and promote
long term sustainable success.
Executive remuneration should
be aligned to company purpose
and values, and be clearly linked
to the successful delivery of the
company'’s long term strategy.

A formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy
on executive remuneration and
determining director and senior
management remuneration
should be established. No
director should be involved in
deciding their own remuneration
outcome.

Our remuneration policies and
practices are designed to
support our strategy and
promote long term sustainable
success. Executive
remuneration is aligned to
Company purpose and values
and is clearly linked to the
successful delivery of the
Company’s long term strategy.

Details of some of the actions
taken during the year are set
out below.

® the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee
were refreshed to align with
the provisions of the 2018
Code and other sources of
best practice and regulation

e the Committee received a
detailed update on the wider
workforce policies and
practices in place in the
business for review, in
preparation for requirements
of the 2018 Code

In order for a company to meet
its responsibilities to
shareholders and stakeholders,
the board should ensure
effective engagement with,

and encourage participation
from, these parties.

To succeed in the long term,
companies need to build and
sustain relationships with a wide
range of stakeholders and, in
particular, employees. These
relationships work well if they
are based on trust and respect
and are mutually beneficial.

We know how important our
employees are to our

continued success and we
welcome the emphasis that the
2018 Code places on promoting
effective engagement with
stakeholders and, in particular,
workforce engagement and
employee voice.

Details of some of the actions
taken during the year are set
out below.

® elected a designated NED for
workforce engagement who,
together with the Group Chief
People Officer and the Group
Engagement Director, will
ensure that the voice of our
workforce is clearly heard at
Board level

e conducted a global
engagement survey to enable
us to track people’s
experience against our
Commitments

® initiatives are underway to
improve existing processes
which are in place for
engaging with other
stakeholder groups
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholder oversight

The Chairman ensures that the Board maintains an appropriate  throughout the year, with a particular intensity leading up to,
dialogue with shareholders. The Group CEO, Group CFO and the  during and after shareholder meetings. Although the non-
Group Investor Relations and Corporate Affairs Director regularly  executive directors are not formally required to meet the

meet with institutional investors to discuss strategic issues and shareholders of the Company, their attendance at presentations
to make presentations on the Company’s results. Non-executive  of the interim and annual results is encouraged. All of our
directors develop an understanding of the views of major shareholders are invited to attend our AGM, which provides a
shareholders through regular updates from the Group Investor forum in which they can put questions to the Board and the
Relations and Corporate Affairs Director. The Group General committee chairmen. It also provides shareholders with an
Counsel and Company Secretary also acts as an important focal ~ opportunity to meet with directors and other senior executives
point for communications on corporate governance matters on a more informal basis at the meeting.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS HOW THE BOARD IS KEPT INFORMED

details of our employee engagement survey results, updates on diversity and inclusion
and cultural awareness initiatives, measurement and performance, and our succession planning and
talent development initiatives.

[@Sg Our people The Board receives regular People strategy updates from the Group Chief People Officer, including

Our The Board is kept informed of initiatives taking place within the communities in which Compass
communities operates principally through the activities of the CR Committee, which receives regular reports on
CR progress across the Group from the Group Safety and Sustainability Director.

2

Our clients The Group Director International Clients & Market Development keeps the Board informed of new
and evolving trends and the aspirations and requirements of our international client base. She is
supported in providing a comprehensive overview of the international client landscape by regional
client and market development teams and executive management at country and Group level.

O

Our consumers  The Board receives updates on sector trends from our sector heads including opportunities,
challenges and developments in consumer food services trends including innovation of product and
experience and consumer interest in brand responsibility and sustainability.

o

Our suppliers The Board is kept informed on supply chain initiatives through the CR Committee, which receives
reports from the Group Safety and Sustainability Director and from the Group Head of Ethics and
Compliance, including our work to prevent modern slavery and human trafficking in our business
and supply chain.

Qo

D Our Annual Report and Accounts: this provides an opportunity to communicate to our shareholders and
W/ shareholders other stakeholders the Group’s financial performance, its strategy, risks and opportunities with
content that is fair, balanced and understandable and is accessible to a wide range of audiences.
Investor Relations: more details of our AGM and Investor Relations programme can be found on
pages 73 and 81.

Website: the Company's website provides an excellent means of communicating with and receiving
communications from shareholders, potential investors and the wider stakeholder community.

It contains an archive of information on the Company’s history, leadership, governance, policies,
financial results, dividend history and up to date share price information.

(=

NGOs The Board is kept informed of Group collaborations with non-governmental organisations which
support us with knowledge and expertise on key social, environmental and economic issues through
the CR Committee which receives reports on key areas of focus such as human rights, climate
change and animal welfare from the Group Safety and Sustainability Director.

Governments The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, Group Head of Tax and other subject matter
and regulators  experts regularly update the Board on matters affecting the Group as a result of actions being taken
by regional and national government bodies and agencies which implement and enforce laws
and regulations.

ED| Ta
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CONSIDERING STAKEHOLDERS IN DECISION-MAKING

When making its decisions, the Board considers the impact on stakeholders. Examples include:

Digital innovation

Investing in our people

Reducing waste

Technology is changing the way in
which consumers engage with
products and services. As a business,
Compass is taking a more proactive
approach to identifying and investing in
technology, in particular to enhance
the consumer experience. One
example is cashierless and cashless
payment options which are in use
across the Group. This technology
provides a better consumer experience
by improving speed of service and also
by driving efficiencies and reducing the
risks from cash handling. Some
countries are taking the lead in
developing next generation tools. For
example, our French business has
started using Smart Checkout. This
award winning concept uses camera
based technology and artificial
intelligence to recognise the precise
dishes on the tray, map them to the
Electronic Point of Sale System and
price them for the consumer. Smart
Checkout also has the potential to
increase consumer sales by promoting
complementary products such as
beverages or desserts, tailored to the
individual consumer’s buying habits.

As a Group, we are proud of our gender
diversity. As at 30 September 2019,
women represented 36% of our Board
members, 38% of our Executive
Committee members, and 31% of our
global leadership team. However, there
is still more to do and we are focusing
on a number of initiatives to further
promote diversity and inclusion as part
of our People strategy. Our unit
managers are absolutely critical to the
success of our business. They set the
tone for the unit, hire people, buy food,
are responsible for health and safety
and deal with daily operational issues.
We want to make our unit managers’
lives easier by reducing their
administrative burden so that they

can focus more attention on our clients,
our consumers and our employees.
Following the successful completion

of pilots in our two largest markets,

a development programme is being
rolled out to all of our unit managers
globally — around 40,000 people in

45 countries.

As a Group, we are championing
initiatives that help the environment.

In 2017, Compass founded Stop Food
Waste Day — a global awareness
programme which in 2019 reached

89 million people on social media and
more than 10 million people through
food waste engagement activities. We
continue to explore the most effective
and practical ways to measure waste
through various food waste
management systems. In the UK,
technology is being trialled which

will allow the business to more
accurately record and reduce waste. We
are also considering other new initiatives
around packaging and plastics that are
better for the environment and are
seeking to persuade our consumers to
adopt more sustainable behaviours.
Good progress is being made, but there
is more to do. Investing in the business
for the future is important. It helps the
Company to build on its competitive
advantage and to capitalise on our
structural growth opportunities with the
aim of delivering better quality,
sustainable long term growth.
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PROMOTING THE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s success is the driving factor behind all decisions
made by the Board. Decision making processes are structured
to enable directors to evaluate the merit of proposed business
activities and the likely consequences of its decisions over the
short, medium and long term. The Board carefully considers the
impact of the business on the communities and environments

in which the Group operates. Due consideration is paid

to Compass’ stakeholders, including but not limited to

our customers, suppliers, business partners, employees

and shareholders.

In all of its activities, and those of the Group, the Board requires
that our employees and partners conduct business to the
highest ethical and professional standards. The CR Committee
oversees Compass’ commitment to make a positive contribution
to the health and wellbeing of our consumers, the communities
where we work and the world in which we live.

Kate Postans
Interim Group
Investor Relations
and Corporate
Affairs Director

HOW WOULD YOU DESCRIBE THE IR FUNCTION?
The IR function is very 'client' focused and during 2019,
we met with over 400 buy-side institutions. The team is
quick to respond to any investor interest and they devote a
lot of time to producing high quality collateral to effectively
sell our investment case.

HOW DOES COMPASS SEEK FEEDBACK FROM
ITS INVESTORS?

In addition to having a very open dialogue with investors
at meetings, in July we conducted an investor survey.
This provided detailed feedback from shareholders,
non-shareholders and some of the sell-side population
from around the world. Our Chairman, our SID and
Remuneration Committee Chairman also engage with
major shareholders.
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John Bason
Chairman of the Audit Committee

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

monitors the integrity of the Company’s and Group’s
published financial statements and related disclosures
monitors any formal announcements relating to the
Group's financial reporting issues and key accounting
and audit judgements made in connection with

the preparation of the Company’s and Group’s

financial statements

reviews the Company’s arrangements for its workforce/
stakeholders to raise concerns in confidence about
possible improprieties in financial reporting or other
matters and ensures that they are investigated

reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, including the
going concern and viability statements, and provides
assurance to the Board

monitors and reviews the role, mandate and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function
manages the appointment, independence, effectiveness
and remuneration of the Group’s external auditor,
including compliance with the non-audit services policy
advises the Board on how it has discharged its
responsibilities and considers whether the Annual Report
and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides assurance to the Board

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE

Member Eligibleto Meetings
Member since attend! attended
John Bason Jun 2011 3 3
Carol Arrowsmith Jun 2014 3 3
Stefan Bomhard May 2016 3 3
John Bryant Sep 2018 3 3
Anne-Francoise Nesmes?  Jul 2018 3 2
Nelson Silva Jul 2015 3 3
Ireena Vittal Jul 2015 3 3

1.

2.

The maximum number of meetings that a member was eligible

to attend.

Ms Nesmes was unable to attend the November meeting due to an
unavoidable prior commitment and provided her feedback on the
papers in advance.

82 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Audit Committee’s Report for the financial year ended
30 September 2019.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

The Audit Committee (the Committee) works to a structured
agenda linked to events in the Group’s financial reporting
calendar. Throughout the year, the Committee continued to
support the Board, playing a key role in overseeing the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements and the robustness of the
Group’s systems of internal control and financial and regulatory
risk management.

As in previous years, the Committee’s primary focus was on

the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting activities. In
considering the financial statements for 2019, the Committee
concentrated on accounting and disclosures related to the
process of selling or exiting operations in a number of countries
and sectors, the Group’s cost action programme, the quality of
profits, supplier rebates and discounts, post employment benefit
obligations, the carrying value of assets, goodwill recognition
and the Group’s tax position. The Committee concluded that
executive management had adopted an appropriate approach in
all significant areas.

During the year, the Committee was updated on the Group’s IT
strategy including an overview of the IT controls framework and
infrastructure and the ability to quickly detect and defend
against cyber attack. The Committee also spent time reviewing
the disclosures made by management in respect of the new
accounting standards IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, both of which
were implemented at the start of the financial year under review,
and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ which will be adopted by the Group on

1 October 2019. Time was dedicated to considering
management’s response to the UK’s withdrawal from the EU,
the continued uncertainty about the full impact and timeframes
of a withdrawal and the impact of the risk for the Group as a
whole. The Committee is satisfied that the statements made by
executive management on pages 41 and 44 of the Risk
Management and Principal Risks sections of this Annual Report
are appropriate based on what is currently known to
management as at the date of this Report.

During the year, the Committee reviewed its terms of reference
to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose. The review was
undertaken, with guidance from the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, in the context of changes to regulations and
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 2018 Code),
which the Company will report against from the financial year
ended 30 September 2020. Consideration was also given to the
Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC) guidance for audit
committees and other sources of best practice.



The new terms of reference were adopted by the Committee at
its meeting on 18 September 2019 and approved by the Board
on the same day.

A copy of the terms of reference can be found on the Company’s
website www.compass-group.com.

Committee evaluation

Each year, the Audit Committee critically reviews its own
performance and considers where improvements can be made
and in so doing it considers, amongst other things, those matters
discussed by the Audit Committee, such as:

e composition, structure and activities

e how well the Committee oversees the financial
reporting process

e its review of the work of the internal audit function and the
external auditor

e the effectiveness of the process for raising concerns

e its monitoring of the management of risk

e how well it understands and evaluates the effectiveness and
conclusions of internal control and the adequacy of the
related disclosures

e whether the Committee’s terms of reference are appropriate
for the particular circumstances of the Company and comply
with prevailing legislation and best practice

e whether the number and length of time of Committee
meetings are sufficient to meet the role and responsibilities of
the Committee and coincide with key dates within the
financial reporting and audit cycle

e identification of additional training needs for
Committee members

This is underpinned by the annual performance evaluation of the
Board and its committees, referred to on pages 76 and 77.

This year’s external Board and Committee evaluation was
conducted by Lintstock.

Overall, the performance of the Audit Committee was rated
highly, with an appropriately balanced and engaged
membership. In its findings, Lintstock identified a number of
areas to assist the Committee in support of its continuous
improvement, including:

e allocating more time to meetings to reflect the increasing
responsibilities of the Committee

e greater use of the external auditor to keep the Committee
up to date on key topics in light of the continuously changing
regulatory environment

e undertaking deep dives into specific risk topics in order to
further develop the non-executive directors’ understanding of
the controls and risk mitigation plans that are in place

As a result, appropriate arrangements have been made
within the Committee schedule for the coming year and | look
forward to reporting on our progress in next year’s Audit
Committee Report.
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THE YEAR AHEAD

In the coming year, the Committee will continue to work together
with the Board and the other committees to monitor and review
the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting and risk
management and internal control framework. In addition, we
will continue to focus on the resilience of our cyber security and
IT controls and on ensuring that all new accounting standards,
relevant legislation and guidance, including the provisions of the
2018 Code, are being met.

John Bason
Chairman of the Audit Committee

26 November 2019
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RISK APPETITE, PRINCIPAL OPERATIONAL RISKS AND
RISK ASSURANCE

The Board’s attitude to and appetite for risk are communicated
to the Group’s businesses through the strategy planning
process. In determining its risk appetite, the Board recognises
that a prudent and robust approach to risk mitigation must be
carefully balanced with a degree of flexibility so that the
entrepreneurial spirit which has greatly contributed to the
success of the Company is not inhibited. The Committee and the
Board remain satisfied that the Company’s internal risk control
framework continues to provide the necessary element of
flexibility without compromising the integrity of risk management
and internal control systems.

We continue to develop and grow our business but, of course, in
some of the territories where we operate, the concept of
corporate governance is still underdeveloped. In these regions in
particular, it is important to have a clear, well-established
system of risk management and internal control to ensure that
growth is underpinned by solid business practice. In this regard,
we have further strengthened our Regional Governance
Committees (RGCs) with the aim of further embedding the
Group’s risk management culture within the business.

The Group Risk Management Committee (RMC), comprising a
multi-disciplinary team of key individuals, assists the Audit
Committee with its work. The Chairman of the RMC Committee
is the Group CFO and the membership comprises the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary, the Director of Group
Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controller, the Group Investor
Relations and Corporate Affairs Director, the Group Chief People
Officer and the Group Director of Strategy and M&A. The RMC,
in conjunction with the efforts of its colleagues in the Group’s
RGCs, further embeds the Group’s risk management culture
within the business. It also provides an additional layer of
oversight to help underpin the assurances given by the Audit
Committee to the Board in connection with the appropriateness
of the Group’s financial reporting, the effectiveness of the
internal and external audit functions, the management of the
Group’s systems of internal control and business risks, and
related compliance activities.

The Committee had oversight of a robust annual review and
assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group. The review was conducted internally by a multi-
disciplinary team.
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The purpose of the review was to determine in the context of the
macro environment and Group strategy:

if the principal risks and uncertainties disclosed in the
2018 Annual Report and Accounts applied to the current
financial year

i. whether there had been any year on year variance in the
status of each risk

iii. what should be removed or added

As set out in the Principal Risks section on pages 41 to 45, last
year’s risks continue to be pertinent, albeit our perception of
how these risks have, as appropriate, remained static, increased
or diminished, may have changed.

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the Code) provides
that, through its financial reporting, the Board should provide a
fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s prospects. At the Board’s request, the Committee
has reviewed the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts to
determine whether it considered that the document, taken as a
whole, meets this standard and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position
and performance, business model and strategy. The Committee
has concluded that this requirement has been met.

Throughout the Annual Report and Accounts, we track our
performance against a mix of financial and non-financial KPIs,
which the Board and executive management consider best
reflect our strategic priorities. The Committee has considered
these KPIs and is satisfied that the information that has been
selected by the Board and the executive management will help
to convey an understanding of the culture of the business and
the drivers which contribute to its ongoing success and will be of
interest to stakeholders.



ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
The key matters reviewed and evaluated by the Committee
during the year are set out below:

Financial reporting and significant accounting issues
e the appropriateness of the interim and annual financial
statements (including the announcements thereof to the

London Stock Exchange) with both management and the

external auditor, including:

— at the Board’s request, whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy

— the clarity of disclosures and compliance with financial
reporting standards and relevant financial and governance
reporting requirements and guidelines, including the
European Securities and Markets Authority Guidelines
on Alternative Performance Measures

— discussing the critical accounting policies and use of
assumptions and estimates, as noted in section B of
the accounting policies on page 146 of this Annual Report,
and concluding that the estimates, judgements and

assumptions used were reasonable based on the information

available and had been used appropriately in applying the
Company’s accounting policies. This included, for example,
the consideration of any goodwill impairment assessments
and how these were addressed

e the material areas to which the Committee dedicated the

most time:

— considering the nature and quantum of the purchasing income

earned by the Group during the financial year. It also assessed
the extent to which the amounts recognised required
estimation and reviewed the recoverability of amounts accrued
at the year end with reference to aged analyses and
subsequent cash receipts. Nothing arose during the course of
this review to indicate that anything but limited judgement was
required, or that purchasing income had not been accounted
for in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies

— the level of provisioning for liabilities (including tax) where

management, accounting and legal judgements are important.
The Committee discussed with management the key
judgements made, in particular, the policy efforts being led by
the EU and OECD which may have a material impact on the
taxation of all international businesses, including relevant legal
advice. The external auditor also reported on all material
provisions to the Committee

the adoption in the year of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ and the

appropriateness of disclosures included in the Annual Report
and Accounts

preparation for the adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ in the financial

year ending 30 September 2020 and the disclosures included

in the Annual Report and Accounts

® the going concern and viability statements

non-financial information

In addition to its key role in the financial reporting process, the Committee considered the following at its meetings:

2018 2019

November May

September
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e full year results
— summary of 2018 Preliminary Results
— certificates of assurance

— year end accounting and
control matters

— tax update
— draft press release

— draft Annual Report and
Accounts (including the report of
the Audit Committee)
— fair, balanced and understandable
annual report reading guide
® going concern and viability statements

e KPMG report to the Audit Committee
onthe 2017-2018 audit and key issues
e |nternal Audit update
e Regional Governance
Committees update
e use of auditor for non-audit services
e private discussion with auditor

e KPMG External Audit Plan

2018-2019
2019 interim results review

key accounting and reporting
matters and tax update

feedback from country interim
certificates of assurance

going concern
KPMG report on interim
results review

Internal Audit activity report
GDPR update

Regional Governance
Committees update

use of auditor for
non-audit services

private discussion with auditor

e year end matters

— accounting issues and financial
reporting update

— tax update

— KPMG early issues report

Internal Audit

— activity report (including key financial
controls update) (May-July 2019)

— approval of 2019-2020 Internal
Audit Plan

Regional Governance Committees update
2019 Annual Report and Accounts
— draft Audit Committee Report,
Principal Risks and Internal
Controls report
Digital & Technology Solutions update
GDPR update
terms of reference annual review
use of auditor for non-audit services
private discussion with auditor
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

GOVERNANCE

The Audit Committee comprises John Bason, Chairman, and

all of the non-executive directors in office at the date of this
Report. Members of the Committee are appointed by the

Board following recommendation by the Nomination

Committee. The Committee’s membership is reviewed and
assessed in the context of the range of skills, knowledge and
experience required by the Code, by the Board and as part of the
annual evaluation process.

The Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board on

the activities of the Committee and keeps in touch with key
individuals involved with the Company’s governance, including
the Group CEO, Group CFO, the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, the Group Internal Audit Director and the
external Senior Statutory Auditor, and attends the AGM to
respond to any shareholder questions that might be raised
concerning the Committee’s activities. The remuneration of the
members of the Audit Committee and the Company’s policy with
regard to the remuneration of the non-executive directors are set
out on page 109.

Members of the Committee are required to have broad financial
and commercial experience which is needed by the Committee
to undertake its duties effectively. Each member brings an
appropriate balance of senior level financial and commercial
experience in multinational and/or complex organisations,
combined with a sound understanding of the Company’s
business, and is therefore considered by the Board to be
competent in the Company’s sector. The expertise and
experience of the members of the Committee are summarised
on pages 70 and 71. The Board considers that each member of
the Committee is independent within the definition set out in the
Code and is capable of assessing the work of management and
the assurances provided by the internal audit function and the
external auditor. The Audit Committee’s Chairman is the
Finance Director of Associated British Foods plc and is
therefore considered by the Board to have significant, recent
and relevant financial experience and to be competent in
auditing and accounting.

All members of the Audit Committee are given an appropriate
induction. Topics covered include the role and remit of the
Committee and an overview of the business, its financial
dynamics and its risks. Where appropriate, meetings are held
with key individuals in the Group. Members are expected to have
an understanding of the principles of, and recent developments
in, financial reporting, including the applicable accounting
standards and statements of recommended practice,

key aspects of the Company’s policies, financing, internal
control mechanisms, and matters that require the use of
judgement in the presentation of accounts and key figures as
well as the role of internal and external auditors. Ongoing
training is undertaken as required.

The Committee meets at least three times a year. A quorum
for a meeting is two.
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The Committee’s agenda is linked to events in the Company’s
financial calendar. Members of the Audit Committee may
require reports on matters of interest in addition to the regular
items. The Audit Committee met three times during the year,
with an appropriate interval between each of the meetings to
ensure that work arising from Committee meetings could be
carried out and reported back to the Board, as appropriate.
Attendance is shown in the table on page 82.

In addition to Committee members, the Chairman, the Group
CEO, Group CFO, Group Financial Controller and the Group
Internal Audit Director, together with senior representatives of
the external auditor, also attended meetings by invitation during
the year. The Audit Committee reserves time for discussions
without invitees and executive management being present at the
end of each meeting. Other members of senior management are
invited to present such reports as are required for the Committee
to discharge its duties.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

An external audit tender and appointment process was
concluded in 2014. The Committee considers that the Company
has complied with the legal requirements relating to the
frequency and governance of tenders for the appointment of the
external auditor and the setting of a policy on the provision of
non-audit services.

In line with applicable legislation and best practice, at the end of
a five year tenure, Mr Anthony Sykes ceased to be the Senior
Statutory Auditor on completion of the external audit of the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2018. He was succeeded by Mr Paul Korolkiewicz.

To ensure objectivity, key members of the external audit team
rotate off the Company’s audit. To safeguard the independence
of the Company’s external auditor and the integrity of the audit
process, the recruitment of senior employees from the
Company’s auditor is not permitted for a period of at least two
years after they cease to be involved in the provision of services
to the Company.

The Committee currently intends to tender its audit in
2023-2024 with a view to the chosen firm being appointed
in 2024.



EXTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee is responsible for the development,
implementation and monitoring of the Company’s policy on
external audit. The Committee reserves oversight responsibility
for monitoring the auditor’s independence, objectivity and
compliance with ethical, professional and regulatory
requirements. The Audit Committee is responsible for the
retendering selection process and recommends the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the Company’s
external auditor, and considers the risks associated with its
withdrawal from the market in its risk evaluation and planning.

The Audit Committee also reviews and sets the terms, areas of
responsibility and scope of the audit as set out in the external
auditor’'s engagement letter; the overall work plan for the
forthcoming year, together with the associated fee proposal and
cost effectiveness of the audit; the external auditor’s
independence; any major issues which arise during the course
of the audit and their resolution; key accounting and audit
judgements; the level of errors identified during the audit; the
recommendations made to management by the auditor and
management’s response; and the auditor’s overall performance.

During the year, the Committee also considered the findings of
the FRC’s Audit Quality Review on KPMG and, in particular, how
KPMG were addressing the points raised.

The Company operates a policy on non-audit fees which it
reviews annually and discloses the ratio of audit to non-audit
fees paid in each financial year.

The Committee monitors the extent of non-audit work which the
external auditor can perform, to ensure that the provision of
those non-audit services that can be undertaken by the external
auditor falls within the agreed policy and does not impair its
objectivity or independence. In line with the Group’s policy on
non-audit services, the external auditor is, in general, excluded
from providing the Company with general consultancy and all
other non-audit services, unless there is no other competent and
available provider. Engagements for non-audit services that are
not prohibited are subject to formal approval by the Audit
Committee based on the level of fees involved. Non-audit
services that are pre-approved are either: routine in nature (i.e.
the half year limited review) with a fee that is not significant in
the context of the audit; or are audit related services.

Within the constraints of applicable UK rules, the external
auditor could undertake certain non-audit work. The provision of
non-audit services within such constraints and the agreed policy
is assessed on a case by case basis so that the best placed
advisor is retained. In accordance with the Group’s policies, the
Group CFO approves individual non-audit services with fees up
to £50,000 and non-audit services with combined fees up to
£100,000. Audit Committee approval is sought for non-audit
services over and above these limits. There were no services for
the Audit Committee to approve during the year. As set out in
note 3 on page 165, fees paid for non-audit services were below
the threshold requiring approval by the Audit Committee related
to non-statutory audit and review work.

During the year, the Committee reviewed KPMG'’s fees for its
services performed to 30 September 2019, its effectiveness and
whether the agreed audit plan had been fulfilled and the reasons
for any variation from the plan. The review included a formal
evaluation process involving the use of questionnaires
completed by finance teams around the Group.

The Audit Committee also considered the robustness of the
2019 audit, the degree to which KPMG was able to assess key
accounting and audit judgements and the content of the audit
committee report issued by the external auditor. On the basis of
the Committee’s evaluation and taking into account the views of
other key internal stakeholders, the Committee concluded that
both the audit and the audit process were effective.

The total fees paid to KPMG in the year ended 30 September
2019 were £6.5 million, of which £0.4 million related to
non-audit work (2018: £7.0 million of which £0.7 million related
to non-audit work). Further disclosure of the non-audit fees paid
during the year can be found in note 3 on page 165.

REAPPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

There are no contractual restrictions on the Company’s choice
of external auditor and, in making its recommendation to
shareholders on the reappointment of KPMG, the Committee
took into account, amongst other matters, the tenure, objectivity
and independence of KPMG and its continuing effectiveness
and cost as well as the availability of firms within the wider

audit market.

The Committee also considered the report on KPMG, as a firm,
of the Audit Quality Review team of the FRC.

KPMG has expressed its willingness to continue as auditor of the
Company. Separate resolutions proposing KPMG's
reappointment and the determination of its remuneration by the
Audit Committee will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

DISCLOSURE OF RELEVANT AUDIT INFORMATION

The directors confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which KPMG is unaware and
each director has taken all the steps that ought to have been
taken as a director to be aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that KPMG is aware of that information.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OUR STANDARDS

The Company remains committed to the highest standards of
business conduct and expects all of its employees to act
accordingly. The Group’s Speak Up policy (an extension of the
Code of Ethics incorporated within the Group’s Code of Business
Conduct (CBC) which is available in 40 languages) sets out
arrangements for the receipt, in confidence, of complaints on
accounting, risk issues, internal controls, auditing issues and
related matters which would, as appropriate, be reported to the
Audit Committee. Speak Up is a standard review item on all
internal audit work programmes. The Corporate Responsibility
Committee retains overall responsibility for the Group’s CBC
programme, the training of employees and the way in which
management obtain assurance in this area, including the annual
self-certification process which saw more than 3,014 key
employees of influence confirm their continued compliance with
the CBC and the Code of Ethics in the year ended 30 September
2019. The CBC and Code of Ethics are available on the
Company’s website www.compass-group.com.

The Audit Committee also receives updates on any allegations of
bribery and fraud in the business at every meeting, with
individual updates being given to the Audit Committee, as
needed, in more serious cases of alleged bribery, fraud or
related activities. The Group’s theft and anti-fraud policies are a
subset of the CBC, which does not tolerate any activity involving
fraud, dishonesty or deception. These policies, for which the
Audit Committee retains overall responsibility, set out how
allegations of fraud or bribery are dealt with, such as by the local
People function or finance team, and the frequency of local
reporting that feeds into the regular updates, which are
presented to the Audit Committee. Reporting of these matters to
the Audit Committee is managed and overseen by the internal
audit function. The Speak Up policy operates when a complaint
is received through the whistleblowing channel and that policy
redirects the fraud or bribery allegation for investigation at the
most appropriate level of the organisation which may, for
example, be by a member of the local People function or, on
occasion, the Audit Committee itself.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and its relationship with the external
auditor, including internal audit resources, plans and
performance as well as the degree to which the function is free
of management restrictions. Throughout the year, the Audit
Committee reviewed the internal audit function’s plans and its
achievements against those plans. The Audit Committee
considered the results of the audits undertaken by the internal
audit function and the adequacy of management’s response
to matters raised, including the time taken to resolve any

such matters.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Committee also reviews the integrity of any material
financial statements made by the Company. It monitors and
conducts a robust review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems, accounting policies and practices and
compliance controls (including key financial controls) as well as
the Company’s statements on internal control before they are
agreed by the Board for each year’s Annual Report and
Accounts. The Board retains overall responsibility for internal
control and the identification and management of business risk
and is assisted in this regard by a top down and bottom up
process of risk identification and management which is the
subject of regular interim review by the RGCs and the RMC.

The key features of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems that ensure the accuracy and reliability of
financial reporting include clearly defined lines of accountability
and delegation of authority, policies and procedures that cover
financial planning and reporting, preparing consolidated
accounts, capital expenditure, project governance and
information security and the Group’s CBC. The internal audit
function is involved in the assessment of the quality of risk
management and internal control and helps to promote and
further develop effective risk management within the business.
Certain internal audit assignments (such as those requiring
specialist expertise) continue to be outsourced by the Group
Internal Audit Director as appropriate. The Audit Committee
reviews internal audit reports and considers the effectiveness of
the function.

In a group where local management have considerable
autonomy to run and develop their businesses, a well designed
system of internal control is necessary to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. The
directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for
risk management, the Group’s systems of internal control, for
reviewing the effectiveness of those controls and for ensuring
that an appropriate culture has been embedded throughout the
organisation. In accordance with the guidance set out in the
FRC’s Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and
Related Financial Business Reporting 2014, and in the Code
itself, an ongoing process has been established for identifying,
managing and evaluating the risks faced by the Group. This
process has been in place for the full financial year and up to the
date on which the financial statements were approved.



The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate

the risk of failure to achieve the Group's strategic objectives,
safeguard the Group’s assets against material loss, fairly report
the Group’s performance and position, and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislation, regulation and best
practice including that related to social, environmental and
ethical matters. The systems provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Such systems are reviewed by the Board to deal with

changing circumstances.

A summary of the key financial risks inherent in the Group’s
business is given on pages 41 to 45. Risk assessment and
evaluation are an integral part of the annual planning cycle.
Each business documents the strategic objectives and the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control. As part
of the review, each significant business and function has been
required to identify and document each substantial risk,
together with the mitigating actions implemented to manage,
monitor and report to management on the effectiveness of these
controls. Senior managers are also required to sign biannual
confirmations of compliance with key procedures and to report
any breakdowns in, or exceptions to, these procedures.
Summarised results are presented to senior management
(including to the RGCs) and to the Board.

These processes have been in place throughout the financial
year ended 30 September 2019 and have continued to the date
of this Report. Taken together, these processes and the reports
they generate, which are considered by the Audit Committee,
constitute a robust assessment of key risks and the internal
controls that exist, and are designed to mitigate these risks.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control for the year under review and a summary of
the principal control structures and processes in place across
the Group is set out in this Report.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Whilst the Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, it
has delegated responsibility for the operation of the internal
control and risk management programme to the Executive
Committee. The detailed review of internal control has been
delegated to the Audit Committee. The management of each
business is responsible for internal control and risk management
within its own business and for ensuring compliance with the
Group’s policies and procedures. Each business has appointed a
risk champion whose primary role in such capacity is to ensure
compliance by local management with the Group’s risk
management and internal control programme. The internal
auditors and external independent auditor have reviewed

the overall approach adopted by the Group towards its

risk management activities so as to reinforce these

internal control requirements.

CONTROL PROCEDURES

The Board reviews its strategic plans and objectives on an
annual basis and approves Group budgets and strategies in light
of these. Control is exercised at Group, regional and business
level through the Group’s MAP framework (as well as through
the RGCs), monthly monitoring of performance by comparison
with budgets, forecasts and cash targets, and by regular visits to
Group businesses by the Group CEO, Group CFO, Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary, Group Chief People Officer,
Group Director of Strategy and M&A and the Group Director
International Clients & Market Development.
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This is underpinned by a formal major risk assessment process,
which is an integral part of the annual business cycle and is also
a robust process adopted to support the viability statement.
Each of the Group’s businesses is required to identify and
document major risks facing their business and appropriate
mitigating activities and controls, and to monitor and report to
management on the effectiveness of these controls on a
biannual basis. These reports, together with reports on internal
control and departures, if any, from established Group
procedures prepared by both the internal and external auditors,
are reviewed by the Group CFO and the Audit Committee.
Group companies also submit biannual risk and internal

control assurance letters to the Group CFO on internal control
and risk management issues, with comments on the control
environment within their operations. The Group CFO
summarises these submissions for the Audit Committee, and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board on
any matters that have arisen from the Committee’s review of the
way in which risk management and internal control processes
have been applied.

The Board has formal procedures in place for the approval of
client contracts, capital investment and acquisition projects,
with clearly designated levels of authority, supported by post
investment review processes for selected acquisitions, client
contracts and major capital expenditure. The Board considers
social, environmental and ethical matters in relation to the
Group’s business and assesses these when reviewing the risks
faced by the Group; further information regarding environmental
and ethical matters is available on pages 52 to 63. The Board is
conscious of the effect such matters may have on the short and
long term value of the Company.

The external auditor of the Company and the Group Internal
Audit Director attend Audit Committee meetings and receive its
papers. Committee members meet regularly with the external
auditor and with the Group Internal Audit Director, without the
presence of executive management.

There were no changes to the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the year ended

30 September 2019 that have affected materially, or are
reasonably likely to affect materially, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.
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Corporate Responsibility Committee Report

¢l

Nelson Silva
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

e reviewing and monitoring the implementation and
effectiveness of the Group’s Safety and Sustainability and
People strategies, policies and practices

e receiving updates on non-financial related reports from
the whistleblowing helpline Speak Up

® reviewing/recommending for approval the Company’s
annual Modern Slavery Act statement

e monitoring the implementation of the Group’s
governance, ethics and compliance strategy and policies
and alignment to our culture, purpose and values

e overseeing implementation of the Group’s ethics and
compliance programme/controls for prevention of
unethical business practices and misconduct

e overseeing appropriate and effective engagement with
the Company’s stakeholders including employees

e approving the content of the CR Report and the CR
Committee’s Report for the Annual Report and Accounts

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE
Member Eligibleto Meetings

Member since attend! attended
Nelson Silva Jul 2015 3 3
Carol Arrowsmith Jun 2014 3 3
John Bason Jun 2011 3 3
Dominic Blakemore Jan 2018 3 3
Stefan Bomhard May 2016 3 3
John Bryant Sep 2018 3 3
Robin Mills? Nov 2015 3 3
Anne-Francoise Nesmes®  Jul 2018 3 2
Johnny Thomson* Dec 2015 1 1
Ireena Vittal Jul 2015 3 3
Paul Walsh Jan 2014 3 3
Karen Witts® Apr 2019 2 2
Alison Yapp® Oct 2018 3 3

1. The maximum number of meetings that a member was eligible to attend.
2. Ceased to be a member of the Committee on 25 November 2019.

3. Ms Nesmes was unable to attend the November meeting due to an
unavoidable prior commitment and provided her feedback on the
papers in advance.

Ceased to be a director on 31 December 2018.

Appointed to the Committee on 8 April 2019.

Ceased to be a member of the Committee on 1 October 2019.

oo~
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DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Corporate
Responsibility Committee’s (the CR Committee) Report for the
financial year ended 30 September 2019.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Corporate responsibility is a key area of focus for both the
Company and its stakeholders. As the Company increases its
focus on the impact of its operations, the oversight, remit and
responsibilities of the CR Committee increase proportionately.
During the year, we conducted an extensive review of the role
and responsibilities of the Committee. This exercise was
undertaken as part of a wider governance review in the context
of changes to regulations and best practice, including the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 2018 Code), as more
fully described on page 79, and enables the Committee to
support the delivery of the Company’s evolving CR strategy. The
CR Committee’s terms of reference have been substantially
refreshed in the year as a result of this review. The updated
terms of reference can be viewed on our website
WWW.COmMpPass-group.com.

In light of the CR Committee's evolving responsibilities, we have
increased the frequency of Committee meetings and, going
forward, a minimum of three meetings of the CR Committee will
be held each year.

In May 2019, the Company undertook an external evaluation of
the Board and its committees. As part of this review, the
performance of the CR Committee was assessed and the
outcome can be found on page 93.

In the pages which follow, we provide an insight into the
Committee’s activities during the year.

(e

Nelson Silva
Chairman of the Corporate Responsibility Committee

26 November 2019



CR STRATEGY AND KPIs

In 2019, the Company delivered on its corporate
responsibility (CR) initiatives against its three sustainability
strategy pillars which are underpinned by our People strategy
and the Company’s safety culture:

* Health and Wellbeing
e Environmental Game Changers
e Better for the World

HEALTH, SAFETY AND SUSTAINABILITY

The safety of employees, clients and consumers remains a top
priority for Compass and our safety culture continues to be
strengthened throughout the business. In this regard, the CR
Committee supports the Group’s ambition of zero harm and
creating a culture of interdependence where caring for each
other is second nature. The health and safety and food safety
performance is considered by the CR Committee at each
meeting against agreed KPIs. Both our global lost time incident
rate and our global food safety incident rate have improved since
2015 by 38% and 35% respectively. Whilst these results suggest
progress in the right direction, we recognise that there is no
room for complacency.

At the start of each meeting, the CR Committee considers a
safety moment. This helps the Committee to develop a deeper
understanding of the health and safety risks facing the business
and to consider how the lessons learned from specific incidents
can be applied to help prevent similar incidents from recurring.
Safety walks have also been introduced as a leading indicator for
all leaders above unit manager. This encourages conversations
about safety within our businesses and helps to support a strong
safety culture.

Sadly, during the year there were two fatalities in the Group, an
incident in our South African business and a road traffic
accident in our USA business. In each instance, a full
investigation was conducted and the outcome reported to the
directors and senior executives. Support was provided by our
local operations to the families of the deceased. In the USA, the
road traffic accident investigation was conducted by the police.
In South Africa an investigation was conducted by our local
business, in conjunction with the client on whose site the
accident took place. Mr Blakemore and Ms Witts’ entitlements
to bonus relating to the achievement of LTIFR related targets
were reduced to zero to recognise that the Group had suffered a
fatality in South Africa during the year which occurred whilst the
employee had been at work, albeit that management were not
considered to be culpable. This recognises the seriousness with
which the Company takes HSE outcomes.

During the year, the Committee received an update on the
Group’s Global Safety Standards, including the Group’s Allergen
Management Plan which focuses, amongst other things, on
improving labelling, food preparation, training and
communication to help safeguard our consumers. Consideration
was also given to further improving our supply chain standards
and practices.

In the course of its work to review and monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of the Group’s Safety and
Sustainability and People strategies, policies and practices, the
Committee received updates from a number of senior executives
including the Group Safety and Sustainability Director. The
updates included details of work and initiatives taking place
throughout the Group, aligned to the Company’s sustainability
strategy pillars, aimed at improving health, safety and
sustainability performance in support of the Company’s Social
Purpose, a number of examples of which are set in the CR report
on pages 52 to 63.
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The Company seeks to ensure that its CR strategy remains
aligned to the Company’s values and goals and more details of
performance during the year can be found in our CR report on
pages 52 to 63. The Committee will review the KPIs for the
coming year to ensure that they continue to be aligned to the
Company’s social purpose and demonstrate our commitment to
continuous improvement.

ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Board continued to focus on continuous
improvements in the Group’s ethics and compliance
programmes and, in support of this aim, the Company appointed
a Group Head of Ethics and Compliance who reports to the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary. The Group
Head of Ethics and Compliance attends each meeting of the CR
Committee by invitation to provide updates on ethics

and governance matters.

The Group Head of Ethics and Compliance is reviewing the
ethics and compliance framework with relevant stakeholders to
ensure that our practices, policies and procedures are up to
date and reflect best practice. He is also taking a leading role in
ensuring compliance with the various data privacy controls that
are in place across the Group.

HUMAN RIGHTS AND MODERN SLAVERY

The Company will publish its fourth Modern Slavery Act (MSA)
statement in December. This year’s statement, which was
reviewed by the Committee on behalf of the Board, has been
refreshed to create a more insightful document with a
perspective of the challenges and opportunities a group the
scale of Compass faces when assessing the human rights and
modern slavery risks across its businesses and supply chain. A
copy of this document can be found on our website
www.compass-group.com. In the coming year, the Company
will proceed with a comprehensive human rights impact
assessment. The project will be supported by a Human Rights
Working Group which is sponsored by the Group Chief People
Officer. The assessment will be conducted across the Group’s
businesses and global supply chain in conjunction with
independent consultants. This assessment will give the
Company a much clearer and transparent understanding of
human rights and related risks in our supply chain and with third
parties. This work will support a review of the Company’s third
party due diligence process as part of an update to our policies
and procedures to ensure it remains effective.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Activity during the year

The key matters considered and discussed by the Committee during the year are set out below:

in the 2018 Annual Report CR Report/
CR Committee Report
e governance and regulatory update

2018 2019

November May September

e safety moment e safety moment e safety moment

e health and safety performance e health and safety performance e terms of reference review

e CR strategy and KPIs for inclusion in and sustainability update ¢ health and safety performance and
the 2018 Annual Report e governance update sustainability update

e Modern Slavery Act statement e ethics and compliance update e social purpose strategy update

e CR —social purpose e annual review of Charitable e human rights impact assessment

e review final draft content for inclusion Donations Policy e ethics and compliance update

e governance and regulatory update

Below are examples of some of the governance and regulatory
matters considered by the Committee during the course of
the year:

e the provisions of the 2018 Code and The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018

e reporting requirements such as the obligation to produce a
statement in accordance with Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 (CA 2006)

e the Company’s arrangements for workforce engagement
and the methodology to be used for providing feedback to
the Board

e proposed reform of the UK audit framework including
proposed changes to the UK audit market and how it is
structured and regulated

e the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
Regulations 2018

e the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private
Companies 2018

The Committee will continue to keep the Board informed about
the developments in governance and regulatory matters and to
ensure that the Company is compliant with regulatory and best
practice guidelines, including the 2018 Code, which the
Company will report against from the financial year ending

30 September 2020.
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GOVERNANCE

The CR Committee comprises Nelson Silva, Chairman, and all
of the non-executive directors in office at the date of this Report.
Other members include Paul Walsh, Chairman of the Board;
Dominic Blakemore, Group CEO and Karen Witts, Group CFO.

Only members of the CR Committee have the right to attend CR
Committee meetings. Other individuals, such as the Group
Safety and Sustainability Director, Group Head of Ethics and
Compliance, Group Engagement Director and external advisors,
may be invited to attend for all or part of any meeting, as and
when appropriate.

A quorum for a meeting is two. The CR Committee met three
times during the year. Attendance is set out in the table on
page 90.

The objective of the CR Committee is to assist the Board and the
Company in fulfilling its corporate responsibility in line with the
Company’s strategy, policies and practices.

The CR Committee receives reports from the Global Safety and
Sustainability Director, Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary, Group Head of Ethics and Compliance, Group Chief
People Officer and other senior managers to ensure that
progress is being made towards meeting the Group’s specific
CR KPIs and our ongoing CR commitments.




The CR Committee Chairman reports the outcome of its
meetings to the Board.

The CR Committee’s remit includes monitoring and ensuring
executive management and the Board are appropriately
prepared for changes in the legislative, regulatory and best

practice landscape and in this regard, is supported by the Group

General Counsel and Company Secretary. During the year, the
CR Committee thoroughly reviewed its terms of reference to
align them more closely to the Company's strategy, including
its Performance, People and Purpose strategic initiatives, the
provisions of the 2018 Code and best practice. Going forward,
the CR Committee will also oversee compliance with the 2018
Code requirements in relation to stakeholder engagement
from 1 October 2019, including workforce engagement and
employee voice.

The CR Committee is authorised to seek information from any
employee of the Group to enable it to perform its duties, and if
necessary, at the expense of the Company, can obtain legal

or other independent professional advice on matters covered
by its terms of reference. The terms of reference of the CR
Committee are reviewed annually to ensure that they continue
to be fit for purpose.

The CR Committee Chairman attends the AGM to meet
with shareholders and to answer any questions on the
Committee’s activities.

PERFORMANCE

The CR Committee’s performance was assessed as part of the
independent external evaluation of the Board and its
committees undertaken by Lintstock during the year.

The CR Committee’s performance and composition were rated
positively, as was the effectiveness of the Chairman. Its
monitoring of corporate governance developments relating

to the Group also received high ratings. The corporate
responsibility KPIs were positively rated and it was noted that
these were in the process of being developed to align with the
Company’s strategy.

In order to reflect the broader scope of matters falling within
the CR Committee’s remit, it was agreed that the number of
meetings would increase from two to a minimum of three each
year and that the duration of the meetings should also be
increased. It was noted that the terms of reference of the CR
Committee had been revised in the year to ensure alignment
with the Company'’s strategy and to reflect the provisions of
the 2018 Code, regulations and best practice.

Other priorities identified for improvement in the CR
Committee’s performance in the coming year included
enhanced focus on food safety and sustainability.

An update on progress will be provided in the 2020 Annual
Report and Accounts.
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Nomination Committee Report

Paul Walsh
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

e reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board and its committees, making recommendations
to the Board regarding any changes considered
necessary in the identification/nomination of new
directors, the reappointment of existing directors and
Committee appointments

e ensures there continues to be an appropriate balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity

e reviews the senior leadership needs of the Group to
enable the Group to compete effectively in
the marketplace

e advises the Board on succession planning for executive
director appointments

e oversees a formal and rigorous annual evaluation of the
performance of the Board, its committees and
individual directors

e oversees the Company’s policy, objectives and strategy
on diversity and inclusion

e the Committee also has standing items that it
considers regularly, e.g. the annual review of its own
terms of reference

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE
Member Eligibleto Meetings

Member since attend! attended
Paul Walsh Jan 2014 2 2
Carol Arrowsmith Jun 2014 2 2
John Bason Jun 2011 2 2
Dominic Blakemore? Jan 2018 — —
Stefan Bomhard May 2016 2 2
John Bryant Sep 2018 2 2
Anne-Francoise Nesmes Jul 2018 2 2
Nelson Silva Jul 2015 2 2
Ireena Vittal Jul 2015 2 2

1. The maximum number of meetings that a member was eligible
to attend.
2. Stepped down from the Committee on 1 February 2019.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Nomination Committee’s (the Committee) Report for the
financial year ended 30 September 2019.

YEAR IN REVIEW
Succession planning continues to be the primary focus of the
Committee’s work.

During the year, the Committee considered the appointment of
Karen Witts as Group Chief Financial Officer (Group CFO), the
reappointment of Stefan Bomhard and the extension of my own
tenure for a further three years. | am very happy to report that in
each case, the Committee’s recommendations were
subsequently endorsed by the Board. | have gained much in
terms of challenge and development during my two terms as
Chairman at Compass and | look forward to working with the
Board and executive management in steering the Company to
continued success over the coming years.

A key component of work for the Committee this year was the
annual review of the Committee’s terms of reference in the
context of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 2018
Code). The new terms of reference have been updated to reflect
the 2018 Code and have been in use since 1 October 2019. The
Committee will report against the 2018 Code in next year’s
Annual Report.

The Committee assessed the time commitment needed from
non-executive directors and from me in my capacity as
Chairman of the Board, to ensure that each individual has
sufficient time to devote to their duties, together with any
training and development needs. To enable Karen Witts to
embrace her new role as Group CFO as speedily as possible, the
Committee ensured that an appropriate induction programme
was prepared for her and details can be found on page 96.

Over the next 12 months, with support from my colleagues, we
will continue to focus on the need to refresh the membership of
the Board and its committees to help the Company achieve its
strategic objectives.

Srhsaat
Paul Walsh

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

26 November 2019



GOVERNANCE

The Nomination Committee’s key objective is to review and
monitor the Board’s composition and to ensure that the Board
comprises individuals with the right blend of skills, knowledge
and experience to maintain a high degree of effectiveness in
discharging its responsibilities. The Committee meets at least
twice a year. A quorum for a meeting is three, the majority of
which must be independent non-executive directors.

The Chairman must not chair the meeting when it is dealing with
the appointment of his or her successor. A meeting to reappoint
the Chairman will be chaired by an independent non-executive
director. The outcome of Committee meetings is reported by the
Committee Chairman to the Board.

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
Committee meetings. Other individuals, such as the Group
CEO, the Group Chief People Officer and external advisors may
be invited to attend all or part of any meeting, as and

when appropriate.

The Committee is authorised to seek information from any
employee of the Group to enable it to perform its duties and, if
necessary, at the expense of the Company, can obtain legal or
other independent professional advice on matters covered by its
terms of reference.

The Committee Chairman attends the AGM to meet
with shareholders and answer questions on the
Committee’s activities.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The terms of reference of the Committee are reviewed annually
to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose.

A cross-functional working group was established in the year
under the stewardship of the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary to consider and implement the changes
required under the 2018 Code. As a result, the Committee’s
terms of reference have been substantially updated and the
Committee will report against the 2018 Code in next year’s
Annual Report. The terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website www.compass-group.com.

BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESS

The process for making new appointments to the Board is led by
the Chairman. The Nomination Committee has procedures for
appointing a non-executive or an executive director which are
set out in its terms of reference. For example, when appointing
a chairman, this includes an assessment of the time
commitment expected, recognising the need for availability in
the event of crises.

Prior to making an appointment, the Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge, independence,
experience and diversity on the Board and, in consideration of
this, prepares a description of the role and capabilities required,
with a view to ensuring that the best placed individual for the role
is recommended to the Board for appointment. The Board
promotes an environment which is supportive of all individuals
from diverse backgrounds and thus, in identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee normally:

e uses open advertising or the services of external advisors to
facilitate the search

e considers candidates from different genders and a wide range
of backgrounds such as ethnicity, race, religion
and education

e considers candidates on merit and against objective
criteria, ensuring that appointees have enough time to
devote to the position, considering other potentially
significant commitments

INDUCTION OF GROUP CFO

Karen Witts has been in role since 8 April 2019 and is bringing a
fresh perspective to the Board and its committees. As set out on
page 75, when a new Board member joins Compass they receive
a formal, comprehensive and tailored induction designed to suit
their individual needs and their role. The induction programme
includes activities and meetings with key personnel, technical
briefings and site visits. This is an effective way of introducing
them to the Group’s culture and of ensuring that they have the
information and support they need to understand the business
and to enable them to be productive in their role.
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REAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s policy is to ensure that the Board is made up of
members with a range of skills and qualities to meet its primary
responsibility for promoting the success of the Company in a way
that ensures that the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders are promoted and protected. The Board is
conscious of the length of tenure of non-executives when
formulating its succession planning process. Non-executive
directors and the Chairman are generally appointed for a period
of three years, which may be renewed for a further two terms.
Reappointment is not automatic at the end of each three year
term. The Nomination Committee considers the selection and
reappointment of directors carefully before making a
recommendation to the Board.

Stefan Bomhard completed his first three year term in May
2019. In making its recommendation for his reappointment,

the Committee considered the composition of the Board and the
skills, experience and expertise of its membership to ensure that
it had the variety of perspectives and skills needed to help the
Company achieve its strategic aims. Stefan’s performance and
ability to contribute effectively to Board discussion and to
challenge the performance of management were considered.
The Committee is satisfied that Stefan continues to be able to
devote enough time to his duties at Compass, taking into
account his position as CEO of Inchcape plc.

In February 2020, the Chairman’s second term in office will
come to an end. John Bason chaired that part of the relevant
Nomination Committee meeting which considered the
Chairman’s reappointment.

In recommending his reappointment, the Committee considered
the Chairman’s relationship and communications with Board
members, his management of Board meetings and his ability,
taking into account the responsibilities of his other mandates,

to devote sufficient time to Compass recognising the need for
availability in the event of crises.

The Committee concluded that the Chairman’s contribution to
Board leadership and Stefan’s contribution to Board and
committee discussion and debate remained both desirable and
valuable to the Company, resulting in the extension of both of
their tenures for a further term of three years.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

GROUP CFO INDUCTION
A comprehensive induction programme was arranged for Karen Witts to help her settle into her new role. This included meetings
with senior management and operational and functional teams around the Group and was structured to help Karen gain an insight
into how the business works on a day to day basis and to understand its strategic priorities, culture, values and people.

Since joining, Karen has attended business and budget reviews in the Asia Pacific, Continental Europe, Latin America, North
America and UK & Ireland regions. Site visits were arranged which included key locations in the Group. These visits gave Karen
an opportunity to meet with local management teams and other colleagues and to speak with them first hand and to listen to

their views.

Karen participated in the annual investor roadshow which was held in New York following the release of our half year results and
spent time meeting with investors. She has also had one to one meetings with her Board colleagues and has met with sector heads,
senior management and members of the Company’s governance and control functions.

Details of some of the activities undertaken by Karen are set out below:

Area

Provided by

Subjects covered and discussed

Global Business

Senior Management
Sector Heads

e APAC, Continental Europe, North America and UK & Ireland
business reviews

e APAC, Continental Europe, Latin America, North America and UK & Ireland
business budget reviews

e half year results roadshow

e various site visits, including the US operations based in Charlotte, USA

Governance Group General Counsel e review of the governance framework and landscape
legal and and Company Secretary e Board and committee matters
compliance e overview of the Group’s legal and compliance framework

and material litigation
Health, Group Safety and e execution of safety and sustainability strategies, priorities and initiatives and
safety and Sustainability Director their alignment to the Performance, People and Purpose strategy
sustainability
Strategic Group CEO e overview of the Group’s businesses and business model, three year business
plan and Group Director of Strategy plan and strategic aims

business model

and M&A

e review of the Group’s M&A strategy

Finance Group Financial Controller e financial control framework and governance processes
e internal and external reporting of the Company’s results
Tax Head of Group Tax e review of the Group’s tax strategy and profile, principal uncertain tax
positions and areas requiring the exercise of judgement
e tax governance procedures and control framework
People Group Chief People Officer e review of the Group’s People strategy including succession planning,

diversity and inclusion and engagement initiatives

Group Reward

Group Reward & Diversity
Director

e Group remuneration philosophy, executive remuneration and annual cycle
* |ong term incentive plan

International
Clients and
Market
Development

Group Director International
Clients & Market
Development

e overview of International Clients portfolio and pipeline
e growth and innovation strategy and digital structure for Rest of World
e sales and retention excellence programmes

Investor Interim Group Investor e Compass’ investment case, key areas of investor focus and
Relations Relations and Corporate IR annual programme
Affairs Director
Treasury Group Treasurer e overview of the Group’s treasury operations, governance, funding,
credit ratings, liquidity management, foreign exchange and interest rate
risk management
IT Group Chief Information e overview of the digital and technology function including in-depth reviews

Officer

on strategy, operating model, initiatives and cyber security

Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit
Director

e review of Group Internal Audit plan, internal control framework,
key financial controls, Speak Up programme and the biannual major
risk assessment process
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Activity during the year

The key matters considered and discussed by the Committee during the year are set out below:

2018 2019

October March September

e considered appointment of Karen Witts e considered renewal of Stefan e annual review of terms of reference
as Group CFO Bomhard's tenure for a further e considered renewal of Paul Walsh's

three year term

tenure for a further three year term
e reviewed time required from
the Chairman, SID and
non-executive directors
e considered training requirements
for the directors as part of the
annual performance evaluation
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TIME COMMITMENT AND TRAINING

In line with its terms of reference, the Committee performs an
annual review of the time required from the Chairman, SID and
non-executive directors to perform their duties. As part of this
process, the Committee reflects on a director’s attendance at
scheduled meetings and their availability at other times during
the year. In the year under review, directors were available, often
at short notice outside regular working hours, to discuss matters
that required a prompt decision, for example the approval of
various acquisitions and disposals and contract approvals that
did not fit with scheduled meetings.

In consultation with the Chairman, the Committee also
considered the training that had been received by directors in
the year, including technical updates from the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary and other in-house or external
subject experts and advisors, and future training needs that had
been identified to help promote a deeper understanding of the
business, technical, statutory or regulatory developments.

DIVERSITY

As a people business, our strength comes from an inclusive and
welcoming environment, where we recognise that the
experiences and perspectives which make us unique come
together in our shared values and vision. We strongly believe that
the more our people reflect the diversity of our clients and
consumers, the better equipped we are to service their needs. At
Board level, our approach to the appointment of new directors
and senior executives reflects our drive to develop people and
value diversity, to ensure the optimal balance of experience and
backgrounds on our Board and committees.

When recruiting new directors, we instruct the external
recruitment consultants to ensure that a balance of male and
female candidates is put forward for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. Following Karen Witts" appointment to
the Board in April 2019, female representation on our Board at
36% now exceeds the Hampton-Alexander target of 33% female
representation at Board level by 2020. This positive trend is also
reflected in the membership of the Executive Committee where
the percentage of female members increased in the year

to 38%.

HAMPTON-ALEXANDER 2020 TARGET: % FEMALE

—
33%

. Compass
Hampton-Alexander 2020 target

PERFORMANCE

The Committee is required to conduct a review of its own
performance, constitution and terms of reference to ensure that
it is operating at maximum effectiveness and to recommend any
changes it considers necessary to the Board for its approval.
During the year, an external evaluation of the Board and its
Committees took place and the outcome of this review can be
found on pages 76 and 77.

In the context of the external evaluation by Lintstock, the
performance of the Nomination Committee was very highly rated
and seen to benefit from an appropriate blend of expertise.

The ongoing support of the Group Chief People Officer, who
takes an active role in the appointment process of new Board
members, was also considered to be of particular importance.

The process by which Board appointments were made was rated
highly and was seen to have improved. The proactive approach
of the Chairman in keeping the Board up to date on progress
during the recruitment process was considered to be
constructive and inclusive.

It was agreed that, in the coming year, the Committee would
maintain its focus on management succession plans, including
the pipeline of new non-executive directors. Further priorities
identified to assist the Nomination Committee to further improve
its performance included:

e providing ongoing support to the new Group CFO

e following up on the agreed development plans for potential
succession candidates

e keeping abreast of fast-paced, disruptive changes affecting
the Group’s stakeholders, including wider society

e agreeing the Committee’s annual cycle of work to ensure that
the Committee has sufficient time for meetings in light of its
workload and increasing governance requirements

An update on progress will be provided in next year’s
Annual Report.

Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019 97



Directors’ Remuneration Report

Carol Arrowsmith
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES

In line with the authority delegated by the Board, the
Remuneration Committee (the Committee) sets the
Company’s Remuneration Policy and is responsible for
determining remuneration terms and conditions of
employment for the Chairman of the Board and members of
the Executive Committee, which comprises the executive
directors and other senior executives.

The Committee:

e ensures that the members of the Executive Committee
are appropriately incentivised to enhance the Group’s
performance and rewarded for their contribution to the
success of the business by designing, monitoring and
assessing incentive arrangements, including setting
stretching targets and assessing performance and
outcomes against them

e reviews the remuneration arrangements for other senior
executives within the Group, having regard to the wider
remuneration philosophy of the organisation when
developing policy and considering executives’ packages,
monitoring the relationship between them and those of
the wider workforce

e maintains an active dialogue with shareholders, ensuring
their views and those of their advisors are sought and
considered when setting executive remuneration

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE
Member Eligibleto Meetings

Member since attend! attended
Carol Arrowsmith Jun 2014 5) 5
John Bason Jun 2011 ) 5
Stefan Bomhard May 2016 5) 5
John Bryant Sep 2018 ) 5
Anne-Francoise Nesmes®  Jul 2018 5) 4
Nelson Silva Jul 2015 5) 5
Ireena Vittal Jul 2015 ) 5

1. The maximum number of meetings that a member was eligible
to attend.

2. Ms Nesmes was unable to attend the November meeting due to an
unavoidable prior commitment but provided her feedback on the
papers in advance.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Remuneration Committee’s Report for the financial year ended
30 September 2019 which is split into:

i. this Annual Statement with an ‘at a glance’ summary of the
remuneration decisions made during the year

ii. the summary of activities during the year

iii. the 2018-2021 Remuneration Policy (the Policy) (the
Policy Period)

iv. the Annual Remuneration Report on the implementation of
the Policy in the year ended 30 September 2019 and
proposed implementation for the next financial year

CONTEXT FOR EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

The last year has seen Compass perform well. The business
achieved strong growth in organic revenue and operating profit
through excellent performance in North America and
improvements in Rest of World. Although Europe’s revenue
increased, its operating profit declined, reflecting a more
uncertain macro environment. We have maintained a strong
Group margin by focusing on productivity and pricing to offset
inflation. Across the Group, we continue to focus on delivering
efficiencies through our management and performance (MAP)
framework. The Group has continued to strengthen and simplify
the portfolio and invested in bolt-on acquisitions and made
several disposals of non-core businesses. The business has
also made good progress with its focus on Performance,
People and Purpose. Increasingly, these initiatives have been
supported through technology and digital solutions designed
to drive efficiencies, optimise performance and improve
consumer experience.

REWARDING PERFORMANCE

The incentive outcomes for 2018-2019 were in line with our
approved Policy. Following strong overall performance, we
determined the outcomes of the annual bonus for Group and
North American performance as 78.3% and 98.3% respectively.
The Committee believes the bonus outcomes appropriately
reflect the overall performance in 2018-2019 and more details
are set out in the Annual Remuneration Report on pages 113
and 114.

For the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) which vested in 2019,
the TSR element vested in full because Compass ranked 16"
against other FTSE 100 companies (excluding the financial
services sector) over the performance period. The targets we set
based on growth in ROCE and cumulative AFCF were demanding
and were also met in full. The Committee considers this result to
be an appropriate outcome given the performance. This has led
to an overall outcome for the LTIP of 100% of the maximum
opportunity. Further details are set out in the Remuneration
Report on page 116.



Salary adjustments for executive directors are aligned with
increases paid to employees within their region. Accordingly,
Dominic Blakemore, Gary Green and Karen Witts will receive
salary increases of 2.6%, 3.1% and 2.1% respectively, which will
take effect from 1 January 2020.

DIRECTOR CHANGES

Johnny Thomson stepped down from the Board on

31 December 2018. His leaving terms were within the
approved Policy, consisting of remuneration until the end of
his employment. Payments in lieu of notice were subject to
mitigation and were reduced accordingly. All LTIP awards
which would have vested following his departure were forfeit.
The shares from Mr Thomson’s 2015-2016 LTIP award which
vested in November 2018 remain subject to a two year post vest
holding period. Mr Thomson was not eligible for an annual
bonus payment in respect of 2018-2019. These terms are
set out in more detail on page 119 and are in line with those
previously announced.

Karen Witts was appointed to the role of Group CFO in October
2018 and commenced employment on 8 April 2019. Details of
her terms set out on page 119 are in line with the announcement
made on 11 October 2018 and on page 91 of the 2018

Annual Report and Accounts.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DEVELOPMENTS

The Committee has reviewed the legislative and best practice
developments in respect of director remuneration and
welcomes change to raise the bar in this area. The introduction
of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 2018 Code)
which seeks to broaden the role of the Committee, as well as to
introduce additional measures concerning director pay, has
been carefully considered by the Committee during the year. In
July, the Committee received a detailed update on the wider
workforce policies and practices. This supplements other
regular updates; for example, at the time decisions are taken in
respect of salary review for executive directors and the Executive
Committee, the Remuneration Committee is updated on our
global salary review budgets and trends.

Over the course of the year, preparations have been
undertaken to ensure that the Committee is well placed to fully
comply with the 2018 Code, as well as with the Shareholders’
Rights Directive Il, both of which will be effective for Compass
from the financial year ending 30 September 2020. The
Company will report against the new regulations in next year’s
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The Committee also reviewed its terms of reference to ensure
that they continue to be fit for purpose and in line with best
practice. The review was undertaken with guidance from the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary.

The new terms of reference were adopted by the Committee at
its meeting on 18 September 2019 and approved by the Board
on the same day. A copy of the terms of reference can be found
on the Company’s website www.compass-group.com.

During 2020, the Committee will be undertaking a full review
of its Policy ahead of a vote at the 2021 AGM and will take
account of these governance developments as well as the
wider executive remuneration landscape. We are aware of
changing expectations and the drive for equalisation of terms
across the wider workforce over the next Policy Period. Further
consideration will also be given to aligning management
incentives to the Group’s strategic focus on Performance,
People and Purpose. These matters will be given careful thought
during the Policy review process. Engagement with our key
investors during our last Policy review in 2017 was constructive
and helpful. We look forward to engaging with them on the
Policy again in the coming year.
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COMMITTEE EVALUATION
The findings of this year’s external evaluation of the performance
of the Remuneration Committee can be found on page 101.

OTHER MATTERS

At our 2019 AGM, shareholders supported the resolution
seeking approval to pay the full fee to each non-executive
director in respect of each non-executive role they perform for
the Company without regard to the annual cap of £125,000 as
set out in the Policy. The Board has reviewed this element of
how we operate our Policy following changes to the Companies
(Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration
Report) Regulations 2019 which apply to companies reporting
on financial years starting on or after 10 June 2019. As a result
of the review, the Board concluded it would be more appropriate
to set the cap on directors’ fees by reference to the aggregate
cap in the Company’s articles of association of £2.25 million
which was approved by shareholders at the Company’s AGM in
February 2017. This allows the Company to allocate
appropriately compensated duties to individual directors as
required whilst retaining current limits on the total non-executive
director fees payable. Although this is not a matter for the
Remuneration Committee, as the non-executive director fees
must be included in the Remuneration Report, it is pertinent to
draw shareholder attention to the proposal.

More details of the proposed resolution can be found in the
2019 Notice of Meeting on pages 235 and 238.

CONCLUSION

The voting outcome at the 2019 AGM in respect of the Annual
Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2018
together with the results of voting on the Policy at the 2018 AGM
are set out on page 121.

| look forward to welcoming you and receiving your support at
the upcoming AGM.

() A E

Carol Arrowsmith
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

26 November 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

At a glance

REMUNERATION IN 2018-2019
MEASURING PERFORMANCE

Bonus LTIP
Measuring performance Strategic KPI Weighting?® Weighting?
Growing and retaining our customer Organic Revenue Growth (ORG) 25% -
base and driving volumes
Delivering profit from our operations Profit Before Interest & Tax (PBIT) 55% —
Turning profit into cash Adjusted Free Cash Flow (AFCF) 15% 33.3%
Delivery against investments Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) — 33.3%
Effectiveness of our safety culture Lost Time Incident Frequency Rate (LTIFR) 2.5% -
Providing safe food and of the right quality Food Safety Incident Rate (FSIR) 2.5% -
Delivering returns for shareholders Total Shareholder Return (TSR) = 33.3%
1. Based on Group performance measures and LTIP based on the Plan vesting in year.
REMUNERATION OUTCOMES AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019
Dominic Gary Karen
Element Blakemore Green Witts
Base salary at 30 September 2019 £975,000 US$1,442,000 £660,000
Pension (% of base salary) 20% 35% 20%
Benefits £34,000 US$76,000 £7,000
Annual bonus (% of max) 78.3% 98.3% 78.3%
LTIP (% of max) 100% 100% n/a

ANNUAL BONUS OUTCOME

The maximum annual bonus opportunity is 200% of base salary
for the Group CEO and 150% of base salary for other executive
directors. One third of the bonus is deferred into shares for
executive directors who have not achieved the pro-rata share
ownership guideline, with all other payouts in cash. All cash
bonus and Deferred Bonus Shares are subject to malus and
clawback. Performance measures and weightings are set out in
more detail on page 114.

The results below represent the Group’s results for 2018-2019.
Gary Green’s bonus outcome relates to regional performance as
shown on page 114.

Group results

PBIT
AFCF
ORG
N |
Threshold Target Max

* Health Safety and Environment (HSE) is the combined outcome of the
LTIFR and FSIR.

e Group payout at 78.3% of maximum bonus
e North America payout at 98.3% of maximum bonus
e subject to malus and clawback

Share ownership guidelines

LTIP OUTCOME

An award of 200% of base salary granted to Dominic Blakemore
and Gary Green vested in respect of the three year performance
period ended on 30 September 2019. The results below
represent the Group’s results and are applicable to both
executive directors. Karen Witts did not have any awards under
the LTIP vesting in 2019.

AFCF
ROCE

s
Threshold Target Max

e performance measured over the period 1 October 2016 to
30 September 2019

e payout of 100% of maximum performance
® two year holding period applies to vested shares
e subject to malus and clawback

The share ownership guidelines for executive directors are 300% of base salary for the Group CEO and 250% of base salary
for other executive directors which is to be achieved over a five year period. Details of current share ownership vs the guidelines

are on page 120.
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Committee summary

GOVERNANCE

The Committee consists entirely of independent non-executive
directors, as defined in the UK Corporate Governance Code
2016 (the Code).

The membership comprises Carol Arrowsmith, Chairman, and all
other non-executive directors in office at the date of this
Directors’ Remuneration Report (DRR). Biographical details of
the current members of the Committee are set out on pages 70
and 71. Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board
following recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

Meetings attendance
The Committee must meet at least twice a year. A quorum for a
meeting is two.

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend
Committee meetings. The Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Group Chief
People Officer and the Group Reward & Diversity Director attend
Committee meetings by invitation to advise the Committee on
Group policies and practice. Details of advisors to the Committee
can be found on page 121.

The Committee is authorised to seek information from any
employee of the Group to enable it to perform its duties and, if
necessary, at the expense of the Company, can obtain legal or
other independent professional advice on matters covered by its
terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Committee are reviewed annually
to ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose. A copy of the
Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Company
website www.compass-group.com.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee attends the AGM
to respond to any shareholder questions that might be raised on
the Committee’s activities.

COMMITTEE PERFORMANCE

This year’s external Board and Committee evaluation was
conducted by independent board effectiveness advisors
Lintstock. Overall the performance of the Remuneration
Committee was rated highly.

As part of the review, participants were asked to consider the
alignment of the Policy with the Company’s strategy. A number
of suggestions were made relating to the development of
management incentives and the Committee agreed that these
should be considered in the coming year in the context of the
next Policy review. To further enhance the effectiveness of the
Committee, the priorities identified going forward were:

e continuing to work with the executive team to evaluate
remuneration against the Company’s strategy and the
evolving external environment

e continuing to receive external input on key trends and
developments in remuneration

* maintaining an ongoing dialogue with investors and proxy
advisory firms

e devoting more time to understanding compensation for the
wider workforce beyond executive management

As a result of these findings, appropriate arrangements have
been made within the Committee’s schedule for the coming year
and an update on progress will be provided in next year’s report.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Committee summary (continued)

Activity during the year

The key activities of the Committee during the year ended 30 September 2019 are set out below. In addition, the Committee
also reviews performance in relation to the Group wide share plans, approves any discretionary matters applied for individuals
below executive director level and considers other governance matters on a regular basis.

Executive Committee effective
1 January 2019

performance outcomes for the LTIP

remuneration for the global
leadership team

e determined 2017-2018 e approved the Karen Witts
Restricted Share Award Plan

2018 2019
November March July
e reviewed salaries for the e received an overview of total e received an update on wider

employee remuneration and
employment practice

e received an update on corporate
governance from advisors

and bonus plans May

September

e approved draft DRR for 2017-2018

e set targets under the LTIP and
other incentive plans below
Executive Committee for
2018-2019

e settargets for 2018-2019
bonus plans

Ms Witts

e approved grant of LTIP and
Restricted Share awards for

e reviewed LTIP awards for the global
leadership team

e received an update on external
remuneration trends from advisors

e reviewed updated terms of
reference for the Committee

e reviewed the Chairman’s fee

e considered the draft DRR for
2018-2019

STRUCTURE AND CONTENT OF THE DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION REPORT (DRR)

This DRR has been prepared on behalf of the Board by the
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act (CA 2006) and the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 2013 (the 2013 Regulations). The policy

on remuneration of directors (the Policy) is set out on pages
103 to 109. The next two sections of the DRR cover the
following matters:

e the Company’s Remuneration Policy effective from

8 February 2018 and for three years thereafter, including

each of the components of directors’ remuneration (the

Policy Report) including:

— how decisions on directors’ remuneration will be made and
the philosophy and strategy behind those decisions

— the structure of remuneration packages for existing,
departing and new directors

— the impact of key performance measures on the potential
value of remuneration

— key contractual terms of existing and new directors
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e how the Policy approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM
was implemented in the year ended 30 September 2019
(the Annual Remuneration Report), the proposed approval of
an amendment to the operation of the Policy to replace the
annual cap of £125,000 on the total fees payable to each
non-executive director of the Company with the aggregate cap
on directors’ fees specified in the Company’s articles of
association and how the Policy will be implemented in the
next financial year

Auditable disclosures are the:

e executive directors’ single total figure of remuneration
(page 112)

¢ |ong term incentive awards (page 115)

e extant equity incentive awards held by executive
directors (page 118)

e director changes during the year (page 119)

® non-executive directors’ remuneration (page 120)

e directors’ interests (page 120)



Remuneration Policy

This DRR sets out our Remuneration Policy. We consulted with
shareholders extensively during 2017 when the Policy was being
formulated for shareholders’ approval. This Policy applied with
effect from 8 February 2018 when it was approved by
shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting and,
save in respect of the proposed amendment to the operation of
the Policy to replace the £125,000 individual annual fee cap for
each non-executive director, will, in all other respects, continue
to apply until 2021.

For unvested share awards only, made prior to

8 February 2018, the provisions of the Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders in 2015 will continue to apply until all
long term incentive awards granted under that Policy have
vested or lapsed.

The Committee reviewed the Company’s remuneration
philosophy and structure to ensure that remuneration supports
the Company’s strategic objectives, is in line with best practice
and can fairly reward individuals for the contribution that they
make to the business. In doing this, we have regard to the size
and complexity of the Group’s operations and the need to
motivate and attract employees of the highest calibre.

Our Policy is designed to maintain stability in the executive team
and to ensure appropriate positioning against our comparator
groups. We believe our approach to be balanced and that it will
stand the test of time.

The Committee considers general pay and employment
conditions of all employees within the Group and is sensitive to
these, to prevailing market and economic conditions and to
governance trends when assessing the level of salaries and
remuneration packages of executive directors and other
members of the Executive Committee.

Remuneration links corporate and individual performance with
an appropriate balance between short and long term elements,
and fixed and variable components. The Policy is designed to
incentivise executives to meet the Company’s key objectives. A
significant portion of total remuneration is performance related,
based on a mixture of internal targets linked to the Company’s
key business drivers which can be measured, understood and
accepted by both executives and shareholders.

The Committee considers that the targets set for the different
components of performance related remuneration are both
appropriate and sufficiently demanding in the context of the
business environment and the challenges which the Group faces
as well as complying with the provisions of the Code.

The Committee has the discretion to amend certain aspects of
the Policy in exceptional circumstances when considered to be
in the best interests of shareholders. Should such discretion be
used, this will be explained and reported in the DRR for the
following year.

Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019 103

e
<
()
=
3
Q
=
(2]
@




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Policy (continued)

COMPONENT PARTS OF THE REMUNERATION PACKAGE
The key components of executive directors’ remuneration for the Policy Period are summarised below:

Component and

link to strategy Operation of component Maximum opportunity Performance measures
BASE Base salaries are reviewed Whilst there is no prescribed None.
SALARY annually with any increases formulaic maximum, any increases
Reflects the normally taking effect on will take into account prevailing
individual’s role, 1 January of each year. market and economic conditions as
experience and Salaries are appropriately well as increases for the wider
contribution. benchmarked and reflect the workforce.
Set at levels to role, job size and responsibility  |creases may be above this when
_ aswellasthe performance and 5 ayecutive director progresses in
attractand retain  gtfectiveness of the individual. the role: gai bstantially i
individuals of the ; gains substantially in
calibre required experience; there is a significant
to lead the increase in the scale of the role; or
business. was appointed on a salary below
the market median. These will be
appropriately explained in the
relevant year’s annual report.
BENEFITS Benefits include, but are not The cost of providing these benefits ~ None.
AND limited to, healthcare can vary in accordance with market
insurance for executive conditions, which will, therefore,
fOEI:lOS_Idgla\l directors and their determine the maximum value.
conﬁpevtlitive level dep_enda_nts, limited financial For the Company’s pension cash
of benefits. advice, life assurance and allowance (or pension contribution
car benefit. as appropriate), from 8 February
These are offered to executive 2018 the annual maximum will be
directors as part of a 20% of base salary for new UK
competitive remuneration appointees and 35% phasing down
package. to 20% of base salary for current UK
Executive directors are invited ~ Pased executive directors. The
to participate in the Company’s reduction will Fake place ovgr a A
defined contribution pension three year period commencing in
scheme or to take a cash January‘2019. Dominic Blakemore
Bllowanceinlliculor voluntarily ellectgd to adopt the 20%
pension entitlement. rate of contribution from 1 January
2018. The annual maximum cash
allowance for Gary Green remains
at 35% of base salary.
ANNUAL The annual bonusis earned by ~ The target award for the Group CEO  Performance is measured over the financial year. Performance
BONUS the achievement of one year is 100% of base salary, with a measures are determined by the Committee each year and
Incentivise and performance targets set by the  further maximum of 100% for may vary to ensure that they promote the Company’s business
reward the Committee at the start of each enhanced performance. No bonus strategy and shareholder value.

achievement of
stretching one
year key
performance
targets set by the
Committee at the
start of each
financial year.

is payable for below threshold
performance but increases on a
straight line basis to target payout
and from target to maximum.

financial year and is delivered
in cash or a combination of
cash and Deferred Bonus
Shares.

The Committee retains the
discretion to adjust the bonus
outcomes to ensure that they
reflect underlying

business performance.

The target award for other
executive directors is 75% of base
salary, with a further maximum of
75% of base salary available for
enhanced performance. No bonus
is payable for below threshold
performance but increases on a
straight line basis to target payout
and from target to maximum.

The annual bonus is subject to
malus and/or clawback in the
event of discovery of a material
misstatement in the accounts
or in the assessment of a
relevant performance
condition or where the action
or conduct of a participant
amounts to fraud or serious
misconduct or has a
detrimental impact on the
reputation of the Group.

The performance measures and their percentage weightings
may vary, depending upon a director’s area of responsibility.

Performance measures may include, but are not limited to,
profit, revenue, margin and cash flow. Strategic KPIs may also
be chosen. However, the overall metrics would always be
substantially weighted to financial measures.

Annual bonus targets are set with reference to internal
budgets and analyst consensus forecasts, with maximum
payout requiring performance well ahead of budget.

A bonus underpin may be operated so that the bonus outcome
is reduced if underpin performance is not met.

Bonus will be deferred when share ownership guidelines have
not been met, usually with a minimum level of deferral of one
third of the bonus earned and typically deferred for a period of
three years.

Dividend equivalents may be accrued on Deferred

Bonus Shares.

Details of the specific measures and targets applying to each
element of the bonus for the year being reported on are shown
in the Annual Remuneration Report on page 114.
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Component and
link to strategy

Operation of component

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

LONG TERM INCENTIVE
PLAN (LTIP)

Incentivise and reward executive
directors for the delivery of longer
term financial performance and
shareholder value.

Share-based to provide alignment
with shareholder interests.

Return on capital employed
(ROCE)

ROCE supports the strategic focus
on growth and margin through
ensuring that cash is reinvested to
generate strong returns with capital
discipline.

Adjusted free cash flow
(AFCF)

The generation of cash is
fundamental to the ongoing success
of the Group and the use of AFCF as
an LTIP performance measure
directly aligns to this.

Relative total shareholder
return (TSR)

The third performance measure of
TSR provides direct alignment
between the interests of executive
directors and shareholders.

An annual conditional award of
ordinary shares which may be
earned after a single three year
performance period, based on the
achievement of stretching
performance conditions. Executive
directors normally hold vested LTIP
shares (net of any shares sold to
meet tax and social security
liabilities) for a period of two years
post vesting.

Calculations of the achievement of
the targets are independently
performed and are approved by the
Committee. To ensure continued
alignment between executive
directors’ and shareholders’
interests, the Committee also
reviews the underlying financial
performance of the Group and
retains its discretion to adjust vesting
if it considers that performance is
unsatisfactory.

Dividend equivalents may be
accrued on the shares earned from
LTIP awards.

Malus and clawback rules operate in
respect of the LTIP. The Committee
may decide at any time before an
award vests, or for a period of three
years after an award vests, that any
participant will be subject to malus
and/or clawback in the event of
discovery of a material misstatement
in the accounts or in the assessment
of a relevant performance condition,
or where the action or conduct of a
participant amounts to fraud or
serious misconduct or has a
detrimental impact on the reputation
of the Group.

Awards are delivered in shares.
However, the rules contain excepted
provisions to deliver value in cash

if necessary (for example, due to
securities laws), subject to the
discretion of the Committee,
determined at any time up to

their release.

In the event of a change of
control, any unvested awards
will vest immediately, subject to
satisfaction of performance
conditions and reduction on a
time apportioned basis.

Awards may be made at the
following levels of salary:

® Group Chief Executive: 300%
® QOther executive directors: 250%

In exceptional circumstances, such
as the appointment of a new
executive director, this could be
increased to 400% of base salary.
Any use of this exceptional limit
would be appropriately explained.

For performance measures, other
than TSR, 0% of the award vests for
below threshold performance,
increasing to 50% vesting on a
straight line basis for achievement of
on target performance, increasing to
maximum vesting on a straight line
basis for achievement of maximum
performance.

The element of an award based on
relative TSR will vest in full for top
quartile performance achievement
and 25% of that element of the
award will vest if performance is at
the median. Awards will vest on a
straight line basis between median
and top quartile performance
achievement. No shares will be
released for this element of an award
if the Company’s TSR performance
is below the median.

Performance is measured over three
financial years.

Performance measures are AFCF,
ROCE and TSR, with each applying
40%, 40% and 20% respectively.

Relative TSR is measured relative to
the companies comprising the TSR
comparator group at the start of the
period.

LTIP targets are set with reference to
internal budgets and analysts’
consensus forecasts, with maximum
payment requiring performance well
ahead of budget.

Details of the targets for LTIP awards
vesting and granted are set out as
required in the Annual
Remuneration Report on page 116.

For awards made prior to 8 February
2018, the awards were based on
AFCF over the three year
performance period, growth in ROCE
and the Company’s TSR over the
performance period relative to the
companies comprising the TSR
comparator group at the start of the
relevant period. Each measure
being equivalent to one third of

the total award.

NOTES TO THE REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

The Committee may make minor amendments to the Policy (for example for tax, exchange control, regulatory or administrative purposes) without obtaining

shareholder approval.

The Remuneration Policy for executive directors differs from that of other members of the Executive Committee solely in respect of quantum of the various
components and remuneration. Executive directors have a greater proportion of their total remuneration package at risk than other employees; however, the
structure and principles of incentives are broadly consistent. The wider employee population of the Group will receive remuneration that is considered to be
appropriate in relation to their geographic location, level of responsibility and performance.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Policy (continued)

CLOSED INCENTIVE PLANS

The LTIP described in the table on page 105 (known as The
Compass Group PLC Long Term Incentive Plan 2018) is the
primary form of equity incentive for executive directors. At the
date of this DRR, there are outstanding awards over 233,799
shares which have been made to executive directors under the
previous long term incentive plan, The Compass Group PLC
Long Term Incentive Plan 2010.

DILUTION LIMITS

All of the Company’s equity based incentive plans incorporate
the current Investment Association Share Capital Management
Guidelines (IA Guidelines) on headroom which provide that
overall dilution under all plans should not exceed 10% over a 10
year period in relation to the Company’s issued share capital (or
reissue of treasury shares), with a further limitation of 5% in any
10 year period for executive plans.

The Committee monitors the position regularly and prior to the
making of any award, ensures that the Company remains within
these limits. Any awards which are required to be satisfied by
market purchased shares are excluded from such calculations.
On 30 September 2019, the Company held 3,329,634 treasury
shares. During the financial year ended 30 September 2019,
242,307 shares were purchased in the market by the trustees of
The Compass Group PLC All Share Schemes Trust. 2,341,811
treasury shares and 54,852 market purchased shares were used
in the year to satisfy the Company’s obligations under the
Group’s employee equity incentive schemes. As at 30
September 2019, the Company’s headroom position, which
remains within the current I|A Guidelines, was as shown in the
charts below:

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

In order that their interests are linked with those of shareholders,
directors are expected to build up and maintain a personal
shareholding in the Company.

As a result of the Remuneration Policy review, and to bring the
share ownership guidelines (the guidelines) into line with
prevailing best practice, and as part of a rebalanced overall
remuneration package, with effect from 8 February 2018, the
requirement for the Group CEO was increased to a personal
shareholding of 300% of base salary and 250% for all other
executive directors. No changes were made to the level of
shareholding required for non-executive directors which remains
as a personal shareholding equal to the value of their base fee.

The guideline shareholding may be achieved by executive
directors retaining shares received as a result of participating in
the Company’s share plans. The guidelines specifically exclude
the need to make a personal investment should awards not vest.
Non-executive directors are generally expected to purchase
shares equating to a minimum value of one third of their net of
tax fee each year until the guideline is met. The required level of
executive shareholding is expected to be achieved within a five
year period, commencing from the date of appointment or date
of change of LTIP opportunity, whichever is the later.

Directors’ shareholdings are reviewed annually by the
Committee to ensure that directors are on course to achieve
their guideline shareholding within the period required.
However, if it becomes apparent to the Committee that the
guidelines are unlikely to be met within the timeframe, then the
Committee will discuss with the director a plan to ensure that
they are met over an acceptable timeframe. The grant of future
LTIP awards to an executive director will be conditional upon
reaching the appropriate threshold in the required timeframe.
Where executive directors have not achieved the minimum
guideline effective for the period, one third of their cash bonus
will be deferred into shares for three years.

Details of the interests of directors in shares and equity
incentives are set out on page 120, together with the extent to
which each of the directors has complied with the current
guidelines as at 30 September 2019.

— Headroom as at 30 September 2019
10% IN 10 YEARS

[ Headroom
Discretionary options
LTIP

5% IN 10 YEARS

[ Headroom
Discretionary options
LTIP
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ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The graphs below show an estimate of the remuneration that could be received by executive directors in office at 1 October 2019
under the Policy set out in this DRR for 2019-2020. Each bar gives an indication of the minimum amount of remuneration payable,
remuneration payable at target and at maximum performance to each director under the Policy.

Each of the bars is broken down to show how the total under each scenario is made up of fixed elements of remuneration, the annual
bonus and the LTIP.

fo)
Dominic Blakemore Gary Green! %
ILLUSTRATION OF PACKAGE ILLUSTRATION OF PACKAGE §
[}
(]
Minimum 1007% £1.2m Minimum 100% £1.6m
Target 33% 26% 417% £3.7m Target 227, 38% £3.9m
Maximum 20% 32% 48%  £6.1m Maximum 28% 46%  £6.Im
0 £1m £2m £3m £4m £6m £6m £7m 0 £1m £2m £3m £4m £5m £6m £7m
Karen Witts

ILLUSTRATION OF PACKAGE

Minimum £0.8m M Fixed Pay
Target 23% 40% £2.2m Annual Bonus
Maximum 29% 487 £3.4m LTIP

0 £1m £2m £3m £4m

The scenarios in the above graphs are defined as follows:

FIXED ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION
Fixed pay includes annual base salary, pension and benefits:

e annual base salary as at 1 October 2019
e value of benefits as noted in the single figure table on page 112
e pension cash allowance as at 1 October 2019

Minimum performance Target performance Maximum performance
ANNUAL BONUS 0% 50% 100%
(payout as a % of maximum opportunity)
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN 0% 52.5%2 100%

(vesting as a % of maximum opportunity)

1. Gary Greenis paid in US dollars. For reporting purposes, this pay is converted into sterling at an exchange rate of US$1.2762/£1 as used elsewhere in the
Annual Report.

2. Based on AFCF and ROCE performance measures vesting at 50% of maximum and the TSR measure paying out at 62.5% of maximum (midway between
threshold and maximum payout).

No share price growth or dividend accrual has been incorporated in the values relating to the LTIP.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Policy (continued)

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

The Committee will apply the same Remuneration Policy during
the Policy Period as that which applies to existing executive
directors when considering the recruitment of a new executive
director in respect of most elements of remuneration, that is:
base salary, pension and benefits, and short and long term
incentives. New UK executive directors will, however, be provided
with a pension cash allowance (or contribution) of 20% of base
salary, in line with the level of pension provided to Compass UK
management. It is envisaged that the maximum level of variable
remuneration which may be granted to a new executive director
would be within plan rules and identical to the Policy maximum
opportunity for existing executive directors and the Group CEO.
However, in exceptional circumstances such as the recruitment
of a new executive director, a maximum LTIP award of up to
400% of base salary may be awarded. Additionally, to support the
successful building up of a shareholding in compliance with the
share ownership guidelines, executives will also be required to
have one third of their annual bonus deferred into shares when
the share ownership guideline is not achieved. The required level
of shareholding is expected to be achieved within a five year
period in accordance with our share ownership guidelines.

Other arrangements may be established specifically to facilitate
recruitment of a particular individual, albeit that any such
arrangement would be made within the context of minimising the
cost to the Company. The policy for the recruitment of executive
directors during the Policy Period includes the facility to provide a
level of compensation for forfeiture of bonus entitlements and/or
unvested long term incentive awards from an existing employer, if
any, and the additional provision of benefits in kind, pensions and
other allowances, such as relocation, education and tax
equalisation, as may be required in order to achieve a successful
recruitment. Any arrangement established specifically to
facilitate the recruitment of a particular individual would be
intended to be of comparable form, timing, commercial value
and capped as appropriate. The quantum, form and structure of
any buyout arrangement will be determined by the Committee
taking into account the terms of the previous arrangement being
forfeited. The buyout may be structured as an award of cash or
shares. However, the Committee will normally have a preference
for replacement awards to be made in the form of shares,
deliverable no earlier than the previous awards. Where an
executive director is appointed from either within the Company or
following corporate activity/reorganisation, the normal policy
would be to honour any legacy incentive arrangements to run off
in line with the original terms and conditions.

The policy on the recruitment of new non-executive directors
during the Policy Period would be to apply the same
remuneration elements as for the existing non-executive
directors. It is not intended that variable pay, cash supplements,
day rates or benefits in kind be offered, although in exceptional
circumstances such remuneration may be required in currently
unforeseen circumstances.

The Committee will include in annual reports details of the
implementation of the Policy as utilised during the Policy Period
in respect of any such recruitment to the Board.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
It is the Company’s policy that executive directors have rolling
service contracts.

The current executive directors’ service contracts contain the
key terms shown in the table below:

Service contract key terms by provision
Provision Detailed terms

REMUNERATION e base salary, pension and benefits

e car benefit

e family private health insurance

e |ife assurance

e financial planning advice

e 25 days’ paid annual leave

e participation in the annual bonus
plan, subject to plan rules

e participation in the LTIP, subject to
plan rules

CHANGE OF .
CONTROL

no special contractual provisions
apply in the event of a change
of control

NOTICE PERIOD e 12 months’ notice from the Company
® 6 months’ notice from the director
(12 months from Mr Blakemore)

TERMINATION
PAYMENT

Payment in lieu of notice equal to:
e 12 months’ base salary
e pension supplement
e 10% of base salary in respect

of benefits
All of the above would be paid in
monthly instalments, subject to an
obligation on the part of the director to
mitigate his/her loss such that
payments will either reduce, or cease
completely, in the event that the
director gains new employment/
remuneration

RESTRICTIVE
COVENANTS

e during employment and for
12 months after leaving

The historic policy on the payment of bonus on termination,
which was in place prior to June 2008, was the provision of a
payment, at par or target, of bonus in respect of the notice
period, where the Company exercised its right to make a
payment in lieu of notice. Mr Green’s service contract is based
on this historic policy. When introducing the revised policy in
June 2008 and after careful consideration, the Committee
concluded that it was not in shareholders’ interests to migrate
such contracts onto the amended policy. Service contracts for
Messrs Blakemore and Thomson and Ms Witts fully comply with
the policy in effect from June 2008. All executive directors’
service contracts impose a clear obligation to mitigate such
payment should a departing executive director take on new
employment or receive alternative remuneration.

Mr Green’s service contract was entered into before 27 June
2012 and has not been modified or renewed on or after that



date. Consequently, remuneration payments or payments
for loss of office that are required to be made under

Mr Green’s contract are not required to be consistent with
the current Policy.

Whilst unvested awards will normally lapse, the Committee may
in its absolute discretion allow for awards to continue until the
normal vesting date and be satisfied or to be accelerated (for
example on death), subject to achievement of the attendant
performance conditions. In such circumstances, awards vesting
will normally be prorated on a time apportioned basis, unless the
Committee determines otherwise. Any such discretion in respect
of leavers would only be applied by the Committee to ‘good
leavers’ where it considers that continued participation is
justified, for example, by reference to performance prior to the
date of leaving. The malus and clawback provisions would
continue to apply in the event that any such discretion

was exercised.

Service contracts outline the components of remuneration paid
to the individual but do not prescribe how remuneration levels
may be adjusted from year to year.

The senior executives who are members of the Executive
Committee, and who are referred to in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 166, have similar
service contracts.

The executive directors in office at the date of this DRR have
served on the Board for the periods shown below and have
service agreements dated as follows:

Length of Board

service as at

Executive director Date of contract 30 Sep 2019
Dominic Blakemore 12 Dec 2011 7 years,
7 Nov 20171 7 months

Gary Green 29 Dec 2006 12 years,
27 Nov 20072 9 months

Karen Witts 10 Oct 20183 5 months

1. Appointment was formally revised from 1 October 2017.
2. Appointment was formally revised from 1 November 2007.
3. Ms Witts was appointed to the Board as Group CFO with effect from

8 April 2019.
CHAIRMAN
The fee for the Chairman is reviewed annually by the Committee
with any increase taking effect on 1 October. The Chairman is
not eligible for pension scheme membership, bonus or incentive
arrangements. Costs in relation to business and commuting
travel will be reimbursed. The Chairman’s appointment is
terminable without compensation on six months’ notice from
either side. Following a market review and consideration by the
Committee, from 1 October 2019 the Chairman’s fee was
increased from £560,000 to £575,000 per annum.

The Chairman has a letter of engagement dated 19 June 2013
in respect of his original appointment as a non-executive
director for a period of three years from 1 January 2014.

Mr Walsh became Chairman at the conclusion of the Company’s
AGM on 6 February 2014. Mr Walsh will complete his second
three year term as Chairman on 6 February 2020. At the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee, his term was
extended on 18 September 2019 for a further three year term
until February 2023.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees for the non-executive directors are reviewed and
determined by the Board each year to reflect appropriate market
conditions and may be increased if considered appropriate. The
fees for the year under review comprised a base fee of £86,000
per annum, which includes membership of the Audit, Corporate
Responsibility, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
From 1 October 2019, following a market review, the base fee
was increased to £88,000.

Subject to a cap on the maximum amount of fees payable to any
non-executive director of £125,000 per annum, an additional fee
of £30,000 per annum was payable where a non-executive
director acted as Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration or
Corporate Responsibility Committee and an additional fee of
£30,000 per annum was also payable to the director nominated
as Senior Independent Director (SID). These fees remain
unchanged for the coming year. Non-executive directors are

not eligible for pension scheme membership, bonus, incentive
arrangements or other benefits, save reimbursement of

travel costs.
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As more fully described in the Notice of Meeting on pages 235
and 238, at our 2019 AGM, we received shareholder approval to
pay the full fee to each non-executive director in respect of each
non-executive role they perform for the Company without regard
to the annual cap of £125,000 as set out in the Policy. We have
reviewed this element of how we operate our Policy and, as a
result of that review, we concluded that it would be more
appropriate to set the cap on directors’ fees by reference to the
aggregate cap in the Company'’s articles of association approved
by shareholders in 2017. No other changes are proposed to the
Company’s overall approach to the payment of fees to non-
executive directors, as set out in the shareholder approved Policy.

Non-executive directors have letters of engagement setting out
their duties and the time commitment expected. They are
appointed for an initial period of three years, after which the
appointment is renewable at three year intervals by mutual
consent. In accordance with the Code, all directors offer
themselves for annual re-election by shareholders. Details of the
appointments of non-executive directors (in office at the date of
this DRR) which are terminable without compensation are set out
in the table below, together with the dates on which their
appointments have been formally revised:

Total length
Original of service
Non-executive date of Letter of as at
director appointment engagement 30 Sep 2019
Carol Arrowsmith 1Jun2014 14 May 2014 5years,
8 Mar2017* 4 months
John Bason 21Jun2011 10May 2011 8 years,
8 May 2014* 3 months

8 Mar 2017*
Stefan Bomhard 5May 2016 5 May2016 3years,
13 Mar2019* 4 months
John Bryant 1Sep2018 17 May 2018 1 year,
1 month
Anne-Francoise 1Jul2018 17 May 2018 1 year,
Nesmes 3 months
Nelson Silva 16 Jul 2015 16 Jul 2015 4 years,
8 Mar2018* 2 months
Ireena Vittal 16 Jul 2015 16 Jul 2015 4 years,
8 Mar2018* 2 months

* Date on which appointment was formally revised.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Annual Remuneration Report

REMUNERATION IN DETAIL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2019

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

The performance graph below shows the Company’s TSR performance against the performance of the FTSE 100 over the 10 year
period to 30 September 2019. The FTSE 100 Index has been chosen as a broad equity market index of which the Company has been
a constituent member throughout the period.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN INDICES
COMPASS VS FTSE 100
700
600
500
400

300

M Compass
FTSE 100 100
(rebased) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 I
eptemoer)
PAY FOR PERFORMANCE

The Committee believes that the Policy and the supporting reward structure provide a clear alignment with the strategic objectives
and performance of the Company. To maintain this relationship, the Committee regularly reviews the business priorities and the
environment in which the Company operates. The table below shows the Group CEQ’s total remuneration over the last 10 years and
the achieved annual variable and long term incentive pay awards as a percentage of the plan maxima. The values disclosed for the
years ended 30 September 2018 and 2019 relate to Mr Blakemore and in earlier years to Mr Cousins.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018! 20192
Single total figure 5614 4,410 4,867 5,532 6,298 5,325 5,822 5,617 4,568 4,659
of remuneration
£000

Annual variable element:  96.0 75.0 71.8 84.5 87.3 88.7 85.8 68.9 95.9 78.3
award payout against

maximum opportunity

%

LTIP vesting rates 100 100 100 98.0 100 79.0 84.5 74.5 95.0 100
against maximum

opportunity

%

1. Mr Blakemore was Deputy Group CEO from 1 October 2017 to 31 December 2017 and Group CEO from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018.

2. Includes indicative LTIP vesting of £1.951 million calculated by reference to the average market price of Compass Group PLC shares over the three months
from 1 July 2019 to 30 September 2019 of £20.21.

3. LTIP indicative vesting amount of £1.853 million was disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts. Actual amount was £1.898 million.
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PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

For the year ended 30 September 2019, the Group CEO
received 10.8% more in salary, 5.6% less in bonus and the same
level of taxable benefits than the equivalent amounts for the year
ended 30 September 2018. This is as a result of the 2018-2019
year being the first full year Mr Blakemore was in the role of
Group CEO.

For the year ended 30 September 2019, all full-time equivalent
employees based in the UK received 3.5% more in salary, 5.8%
less in bonus and 4.9% less in taxable benefits compared to the
equivalent amounts for the year ended 30 September 2018. The
UK employee workforce was chosen as the most suitable
comparator group as the individual undertaking the Group CEO
role has been based in the UK during each relevant year and pay
changes across the Group vary widely depending on local
market conditions. The nature of the Group CEQ’s global role
and responsibilities makes meaningful comparisons with any
group of employees difficult and due caution should be
exercised in this regard.

The CEQ pay ratio will be published in next year’s report in
line with the timing of the regulatory requirement to do so.
This timing aligns to the next Policy review and the year in
which we will report on regulatory-driven changes on broader
considerations of the wider workforce employment.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The following table sets out the amounts paid in share buybacks,
dividends and total employee costs for the years ended

30 September 2018 and 2019.

2019 2018! Change
Dispersals £000 £000 %
Share buybacks? — - -
Dividends paid?® 611 548 11.4
Total employee costs* 11,370 10,556 7.7

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

2. Atthe AGM on 7 February 2019, shareholders approved resolution 21 to
give the directors authority to make limited on market purchases of up to
10% of the Company’s ordinary shares. No shares were repurchased
during the financial year ended 30 September 2019. However, the
directors consider it desirable for such general authority to be available to
maintain an efficient capital structure whilst at the same time retaining the
flexibility to fund any bolt-on acquisitions.

3. The total dividend paid during the year ended 30 September 2018 was
£548 million. The total share capital in issue on 30 September 2018
was 1,589 million ordinary shares of 11%o pence. At the date of this
report there were 1,589,736,625 ordinary shares of 11%o0 pence in issue
of which 3,301,961 were held in Treasury for the purpose of satisfying
the Company’s obligations under employee equity incentive schemes.
Shares held in treasury are not eligible to participate in dividends and do
not carry any voting rights. The total dividend paid during the year ended
30 September 2019 was £611 million and the share capital in issue
on 30 September 2019 was 1,589 million ordinary shares of 11%o0 pence
each. The total dividend per ordinary share for the year ended
30 September 2019 increased by 6.1%.

4. Total employee costs include wages and salaries, social security costs,
share-based payments and pension costs for all employees, including
directors. The average number of employees, including directors and
part-time employees in operations during 2019, was 596,452
(2018: 595,841).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Annual Remuneration Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION
The table below sets out in a single figure the total amount of remuneration, including each element, received by each of the
executive directors in office for the year ended 30 September 2019.

Dominic Gary Karen Johnny
Blakemore Green Witts Thomson

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed pay
Base salary!?23410 956 863 1,121 1,027 318 - 164 649

Taxable benefits?34510 34 34 59 55 7 - 19 32

Pension2346:10 191 201 392 360 64 — 58 227

Total fixed pay 1,181 1,098 1,572 1,442 389 — 241 908

Performance related pay
Bonus?347.10 1,527 1,617 1,665 1,552 374 - — 947

LTIP: Performance Shares?37810

Value delivered through corporate performance 1,301 1,203 1,849 1,506 — —

1,081

Value delivered through share price growth 650 650 925 815 — - — 584

LTIP: Restricted Shares® = - = - 394 - — _

Total long term incentives 1,951 1,853 2,774 2,321 394 —

1,665

Single total figure of remuneration 4,659 4,568 6,011 5,315 1,157 — 241 3,520

o o

0~

Dominic Blakemore's base salary was increased from £750,000 to £900,000 with effect from 1 January 2018 following his appointment as Group CEO on

1 January 2018, and subsequently increased from £900,000 to £975,000 on 1 January 2019.

Gary Green's base salary of US$1,442,000 and his other emoluments are shown in sterling at an exchange rate of US$1.2762/£1 (2018: US$1.3479/£1).
In US$ terms Mr Green’s base salary was paid at the annual rate of US$1,399,590 from 1 January 2018 and $1,442,000 from 1 January 2019, being an
increase of 3%.

Johnny Thomson ceased to be a director on 31 December 2018. As set out in his Section 430(2B) Companies Act 2006 Statement published on the
Company’s website, in line with the current Policy, Mr Thomson received his current base salary of £658,000, 35% pension cash allowance and benefits to
this date. For the period from 1 January 2019 to 24 February 2019 he received a payment in lieu of notice (comprising salary, pension allowance and 10%
of his base salary in lieu of benefits) subject to an obligation to mitigate. From 25 February 2019 to 30 June 2019, a reduced payment was paid following
Mr Thomson mitigating his remuneration. The amounts shown in relation to 2019 in respect of salary and benefits are amounts paid during the year,
pro-rated by reference to the period during which he was an executive director of the Company. All of Mr Thomson’s extant LTIP awards lapsed when he
ceased to be a director on 31 December 2018. Mr Thomson was not eligible for an annual bonus payment in respect of 2018-2019.

Karen Witts commenced employment as Group CFO on 8 April 2019. On joining, Ms Witts received an annual remuneration package which included a base
salary of £660,000, bonus opportunity of up to 150% of base salary, prorated from her joining date for the first financial year and standard contractual
benefits including pension payments (cash allowance or contribution) equal to 20% of base salary. Ms Witts’ compensation is in line with the arrangements
announced on 11 October 2018.

Taxable benefits comprise healthcare insurance, limited financial advice, life assurance and car benefit.

In accordance with the Policy, a pension cash allowance of 35% of base salary was paid in monthly instalments in lieu of pension participation for

Messrs Green and Thomson. From 1 October 2017 to 31 December 2017, Mr Blakemore received a pension cash allowance of 35%. Mr Blakemore
voluntarily elected to adopt the 20% rate of contribution from 1 January 2018 following his promotion to Group CEO.

Details of the performance measures and weighting as well as the achieved results for the bonus and LTIP components are shown on pages 114 to 116.
The amount shown for the award vesting in 2019 is the indicative value based on the average market price of Compass Group PLC shares over the three
month period from 1 July 2019 to 30 September 2019 (£20.21) of LTIP awards that have become receivable as a result of the achievement of performance
conditions relating to the three year performance period to 30 September 2019. The amount shown for the comparative figure in 2018 is the indicative value
based on the average market price of Compass Group PLC shares over the three month period from 1 July to 30 September 2018 (£16.46). On 21 November
2018, Messrs Blakemore, Green and Thomson sold 52,612, 63,035 and 47,009 shares to settle tax and social security obligations for which they received
£887,222, £1,062,990 and £792,736 respectively, based on a sale price of £16.86 on that date. Theoretically, if they had sold all of their vested awards,
they would have received in aggregate £5,981,009, approximately £142,000 more than the indicative value reported in the comparative table in last

year's report.

Ms Witts was granted an award over 62,973 shares under the Karen Witts Restricted Share Award Plan on 16 May 2019 in recognition of awards forfeited at
her previous employer. 15,181 shares subject only to employment and 5,622 shares subject to financial underpins relating to net debt to underlying EBITDA
ratio and the ordinary dividend being at least in line with constant currency underlying basic earnings per share, vested on 1 July 2019. On the same day,
Ms Witts sold 9,808 shares for £18.94 per share to cover resultant tax and social security obligations. The remaining shares are not subject to a further
holding period, but will count towards her achievement of the share ownership guideline. The balance of the Award will vest, subject to continued
employment and financial underpins, in two further tranches on 1 July 2020 and 1 July 2021.

10. Richard Cousins was Group CEO until 31 December 2017. Total remuneration for 2018-2019 was nil (2018: £4,269 million)

112 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019



BASE SALARY
The annual rate of base salaries of the executive directors in office for the year ended 30 September 2019 was:

Director Base salary Effective date Increase Reason
Dominic Blakemore! £975,000 1 January 2019 8.3% Progression in role, gain in experience
Gary Green $1,442,000 1 January 2019 3% Relevant peer/market & performance
Karen Witts? £660,000 8 April 2019 - —
Johnny Thomson? £658,000 1 January 2018 - -

1. Dominic Blakemore's salary was reviewed in line with the commitment made in 2017 and 2018 to make increases to reflect experience and progression in
the role to bring his salary in line with that of his FTSE peers and reflects performance in the year. With effect from 1 January 2019, his salary was increased
to £975,000 with adjustments thereafter to be consistent with the range applicable to the wider workforce.

2. Karen Witts’ salary on commencement of employment was £660,000.

3. Johnny Thomson's salary was reviewed in January 2018. No further salary review occurred following this date.
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The proposed annual rate of base salaries of the executive directors in office from 1 January 2020 will be:

Director Base salary Effective date Increase Reason
Dominic Blakemore £1,000,000 1 January 2020 2.6% Relevant peer/market & performance
Gary Green $1,486,000 1 January 2020 3.1% Relevant peer/market & performance
Karen Witts £674,000 1 January 2020 2.1% Relevant peer/market & performance

Each director received a salary increase in line with those applied to the wider workforce in their respective geographies.

PENSIONS

At 30 September 2019, there were no executive directors actively participating in any Compass Group defined benefit pension
arrangements and none of the executive directors were accruing additional entitlement to benefit under any arrangements that
existed prior to their appointment as executive directors.

For the year under review a pension cash allowance equal to 20% of base salary for Mr Blakemore and Ms Witts and 35% of the base
salary for Messrs Green and Thomson was paid monthly in lieu of pension for the period of employment.

TOTAL DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
Fees and benefits received by the Chairman and non-executive directors are shown on page 120. The aggregate total amount of
remuneration received by all directors in office during the year ended 30 September 2019 is shown below:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Executive directors 12,068 17,672
Chairman and non-executive directors! 1,333 1,188
Total 13,401 18,860

1. Includes fees and taxable travel expenses.
2. 2018 figure restated to include non-executive director taxable travel expenses.

ANNUAL BONUS PLANS

2018-2019 BONUS

The financial targets for the bonus for the year ended 30 September 2019, and the extent to which they were achieved, are set out
on page 114. Group and regional targets are disclosed on a retrospective basis. The achievement of targets is calculated on a
straight line basis between Minimum and Target (par) and between Target (par) and Maximum, and by reference to budgeted
exchange rates.

As was the case for previous years, the measurement of the achievement of the AFCF and PBIT results is based on the underlying
outcome achieved in the financial year, with gains/losses attributable to currency movements, charges and the impacts of
restructuring and/or acquisitions/disposals usually being excluded.
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2018-2019 PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND TARGETS
Dominic Blakemore and Karen Witts

Financial measures! % Weighting Minimum Par (target) Maximum Achieved
PBIT?4 55 £1,774.2m £1,810.4m £1,846.6m £1,821.4m
AFCF3 15 £953.5m £983.0m £1,012.5m £1,204.0m
ORG® 25 3.6% 4.6% 5.6% 6.5%
Group HSE Improvement Target Achieved Achieved
Lost Time Incident Frequency Rate 2.5 2.99 291 No®
Food Safety Incident Rate 2.5 0.22 0.22 Yes
Gary Green

Financial measures! % Weighting Minimum Par (target) Maximum Achieved
PBIT?4 5 £1,774.2m £1,810.4m £1,846.6m £1,821.4m
RPBIT® 55 5.3% 6.3% 7.3% 7.9%
MAWC? 15 $(505.3)m $(525.3)m $(535.3)m $(556.2)m
RORG® 25 5.0% 6.0% 7.0% 7.7%

North America HSE Improvement

HSE for the North American business is measured through North American underlying PBIT.

2018-2019 OUTCOMES

Dominic Blakemore Gary Green Karen Witts
% of performance % of performance % of performance
Measure target achieved target achieved target achieved
PBIT/RPBIT?46 35.8/5524 58.3/60246 35.8/5524
AFCF3 15/15 — 15/15
MAWC” — 15/15 —
ORG/RORG>® 25/255 25/258 25/255
HSE 2.5/5 — 2.5/5
Total 78.3/100 98.3/100 78.3/100
1. Financial targets for 2018-2019 bonus purposes are all set and measured at 2019 foreign exchange budget rates, not actuals.
2. PBIT is underlying Profit Before Interest and Tax (Group).
3. AFCF is Adjusted Free Cash Flow (Group).
4. Messrs Blakemore and Green's and Ms Witts” entitlements to any bonus related to the achievement of PBIT were adjusted, in accordance with the
established framework, to exclude all unbudgeted M&A spend together with routine restructuring costs.
5. ORG is Organic Revenue Growth (Group).
6. RPBIT is underlying Profit Before Interest and Tax growth improvement for the North America region.
7. MAWC is Average Working Capital Balance for the North America region for Mr Green. The 2018-2019 target for Mr Green for MAWC is based on an
improvement in the value of MAWC over the designated period.

8. RORG is Organic Revenue Growth for the North America region
9. Whilst the LTIFR target was achieved, Mr Blakemore’s and Ms Witts” entitlements to bonus relating to the achievement of the LTIFR target were reduced to

zero to recognise that the Group had suffered a fatality in South Africa during the year which occurred whilst the employee had been at work, albeit that
management were not considered to be culpable. This recognises the seriousness with which the Company takes HSE outcomes.

2018-2019 PAYOUTS

The outcome of the annual bonus for the year ended 30 September 2019 was due to the continued strong underlying financial
performance aligned with the delivery of the Group’s long term strategy. The table below shows the resulting payout to each
executive director for the year:

2018-2019 bonus payment as

% of base salary as at 30 Sep 2019 Value of bonus
Dominic Blakemore 156.6% £1,526,951
Gary Green 147.4% US$2,125,256
Karen Witts 56.6% £373,805

No discretion was applied by the Committee in respect of the directors’ bonuses for the year under review. The bonus for Messrs
Blakemore and Green will be paid in cash as they have each met their share ownership guideline. The bonus for Ms Witts has been
prorated for the period of employment in the financial year from 8 April 2019 to 30 September 2019. A third of the bonus will be
deferred in shares for a period of three years in order to support the build up towards Ms Witts’ share ownership guideline. Dividend
equivalents may be accrued on Deferred Bonus Shares in line with the Policy.
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2019-2020 BONUS PERFORMANCE MEASURES
The annual bonus performance measures for executive directors for the year ending 30 September 2020 are unchanged. They are:

Measure Dominic Blakemore Gary Green Karen Witts

PBIT/RPBIT!? 55%! 60%? 55%!

AFCF3 15%3 — 15%°

MAWC* — 15%* —

ORG/RORG®*® 25%° 25%° 25%° 9

HSE’ 5% —7 5% g

Total® 100% 100% 100% §
(4]

1. Underlying PBIT (Group).

2. Underlying PBIT split between Group PBIT and PBIT for Region of responsibility for Mr Green: 5% Group/55% Regional.

3. AFCF is Adjusted Free Cash Flow (Group).

4. MAWC for Region of responsibility. The 2019-2020 target for Mr Green for MAWC is based on an improvement in the value of MAWC over the

designated period.

Organic Revenue Growth (Group).

Organic Revenue Growth for Region of responsibility.

HSE for the North American business is measured through underlying RPBIT.

Bonus payments may be reduced if the Remuneration Committee is not satisfied with the underlying financial performance of the Group.

O N O

The Committee has set the targets for the annual bonus plan for the year ending 30 September 2020 but has chosen not to disclose
the details in this DRR, as it is the opinion of the Committee that it may be seriously prejudicial to the interests of the Company to do
so. However, the specific targets and the extent to which the targets have been met (both at Group and Regional levels) will be
disclosed in next year’s DRR.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE AWARDS

During the year ended 30 September 2019, executive directors received a conditional award of shares which may vest after a three
year performance period which will end on 30 September 2021, based on the achievement of stretching performance conditions.
The maximum levels achievable under these awards are set out in the table below:

LTIPaward  Face value of award

Director (as a % of base salary) £000
Dominic Blakemore 300% 2,7001!
Gary Green 250% 2,72412
Karen Witts 250% 1,6503
Total 7,074

1. Face value of award as at the date of grant on 21 November 2018 is based on the closing market price of £16.73 per share on 20 November 2018.

2. Face value of award is converted to sterling at an exchange rate of US$1.2762/£1.

3. Face value of award as at the date of grant on 16 May 2019 is based on the closing market price of £17.78 per share on 15 May 2019. The Award relates to
the annual LTIP grant. Ms Witts also received awards in respect of forfeiture of incentives from her previous employer. These awards are set out in detail on
page 118.

Executive directors are required to hold vested awards for a period of two years following vesting so as to further strengthen the long

term alignment of executives’ remuneration packages with shareholders’ interests and, if required, to facilitate the implementation

of provisions related to clawback.

The table below sets out the performance measures for the awards under the Policy in operation during the financial year
under review:

Definition of measure

ROCE The definition aims to measure the underlying economic performance of the Company. ROCE is calculated at the end of the
three year performance period as net underlying operating profit after tax (NOPAT) divided by 12 month average capital employed
(see page 246 for full definitions).

Adjusted FCF The definition aims to measure the cash generation of the Company and is calculated as the three year cumulative
underlying FCF (see page 246 for full definition) adjusted for constant currency.

TSR Performance is compared to that of constituent members of the FTSE 100 (excluding the financial services sector). TSR is the
aggregate of share price growth and dividends paid (assuming reinvestment of those dividends in the Company’s shares during the
three year performance period).

In setting the performance targets, the Committee considers internal budgets and the Group’s strategic plan, market expectations
and general economic conditions. The table on page 116 shows the targets against which performance has been measured to
determine the vesting of the grant of awards for the year ended 30 September 2019 and forms part of the Policy detailed in the
Policy Report on pages 62 to 68 of the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts.
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2016-2017 award targets (for awards with a performance period ended 30 September 2019)

ROCE target

Level of performance Threshold Maximum Achieved
Vesting % of component 0% 100% 100%
As at date of award 18.1% 19.1% -
Reconciled at the end of the performance period! 18.18%  19.15%  19.73%
AFCF target

Level of performance Threshold Maximum Achieved
Vesting % of each component 0% 100% 100%
AFCF £2,609m £2,883m £3,156m
TSR target Below Upper

Level of performance Median Median Quartile Achieved
Vesting % of each component 0% 25% 100% 100%

1. ROCE targets are updated at the end of the performance period to reflect actual acquisition spend and constant currency.

2016-2017 award performance

The Committee applied the established framework to deal with items that were unforeseen at the time the targets were set in
2016-2017 and which were in the long term interests of shareholders. Both the ROCE and AFCF measures were adjusted to exclude
a one-off capital investment in the North American business.

Each of the performance measures were met in full at the end of the three year performance period, such that the LTIP awards made
during the 2016-2017 financial year vested at 100% of the maximum. Shares will be delivered to individuals following the release of
the preliminary results for the year ended 30 September 2019.

Performance conditions

Value of

TSR % ROCE % AFCF %  Numberof  Number of shares

vested vested vested shares shares on vesting?

Director on maturity! on maturity on maturity awarded vested £000
Dominic Blakemore 100% 100% 100% 96,528 96,528 1,951
Gary Green 100% 100% 100% 137,271 137,271 2,774

1. TSR ranking was 16th in its comparator group.

2. The indicative value of the shares on vesting has been calculated by reference to the average market price of Compass Group PLC shares over the three
months from 1 July 2019 to 30 September 2019 of £20.21 per share.

2019-2020 AWARD

The table below shows the targets against which performance will be measured to determine the vesting of the grant of awards to

be made in the year ending 30 September 2020 and forms part of the Policy detailed in the Policy Report on pages 103 to 109. In

order to minimise future adjustments, the Committee sets ROCE targets based on predicted spend on bolt-on acquisitions, however,

in line with our standard approach, targets will be updated at the end of the performance period to reflect actual spend. In setting

AFCF targets, the Committee took into consideration anticipated payroll timing and taxation phasing during the three year

performance period. The targets have been set on an IFRS 15 basis and will be restated for IFRS 16 in the 2020 Directors’

Remuneration Report.

ROCE and AFCF targets
Vesting %
of each
Level of performance component ROCE AFCF
Threshold 0% 17.39% £2,776m
Par (target) 50% 17.87% £2,922m
Maximum 100%  18.34% £3,068m
TSR target
Vesting %
of each
Level of performance component
Below Median 0%
Median 25%
Upper Quartile 100%
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The vesting of the shares under each performance condition is independent. Therefore, the total vesting amount is based on the
relevant percentage achievement for each performance measure. Awards vest on a straight line basis between Threshold and Par
and between Par and Maximum. If performance under the AFCF and ROCE component does not exceed the Threshold level, vesting
for that component will be nil. At the end of the performance period, the Committee will review the underlying financial performance
of the Company and retains its discretion to adjust vesting if it considers that financial performance is unsatisfactory.

The Committee considers the measures and targets set in respect of 2019-2020 to be appropriate and challenging. Calculations of
the achievement of the targets will be independently performed and approved by the Committee. The Committee retains discretion
to adjust for performance and the nature of any such adjustments will be disclosed in the DRR, together with details of the achieved
ROCE, AFCF and TSR performance, as determined by the above definitions, at the end of the performance period.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN HISTORIC AWARD VESTING
The table below sets out the percentage of each LTIP award made to executive directors within the last five years which has vested:

Maturity Performance ROCE % vested AFCF % vested TSR % vested
Year of award date conditions on maturity on maturity on maturity
2016-2017 10ct2019 ROCE/AFCF/TSR 100% 100% 100%
2015-2016 10ct2018 ROCE/AFCF/TSR 84.9% 100% 100%
2014-2015 10ct2017 ROCE/AFCF/TSR 23.5% 100% 100%
2013-2014 10ct2016 ROCE/AFCF/TSR 60.7% 92.7% 100%
2012-2013 10ct2015 ROCE/AFCF/TSR 74% 78% 85%

SHARE AWARDS FOR FORFEITURE

During the year ended 30 September 2019, in line with the recruitment Policy approved by shareholders and the disclosure made in
the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Report, Karen Witts received awards to compensate her for the forfeiture of incentive
compensation from her previous employment. These awards were valued, based on all information available to the Committee at the
time of appointment. The majority of these awards are subject to Compass’ performance. The face values of the awards and relevant
performance conditions are set out below:

Performance  Face value of award

conditions/underpin £000
Compass Group PLC LTIP 2018! Y 500
Karen Witts Restricted Share Award Plan® N 270
Karen Witts Restricted Share Award Plan3 Y 850

1. Face value of award as at the date of grant on 16 May 2019 is based on the closing market price of £17.78 per share on 15 May 2019. The award is subject
to Compass’ performance over the three year period ending 30 September 2021 as assessed by the Remuneration Committee against ROCE, AFCF and
relative TSR performance targets as applied.

2. Facevalue of award as at the date of grant on 16 May 2019 is based on the closing market price of £17.78 per share on 15 May 2019. The award of 15,181
shares vested on 1 July 2019.

3. Face value of award as at the date of grant on 16 May 2019 is based on the closing market price of £17.78 pence per share on 15 May 2019. The award is
subject to two financial underpins relating to net debt to underlying EBITDA ratio and the ordinary dividend being at least in line with constant currency
underlying basic earnings per share. The award is to vest in three tranches. The first tranche of 5,622 shares vested on 1 July 2019. A maximum of 20,804
shares are due to vest in July 2020 and 21,366 shares are due to vest in July 2021, each being subject to the two financial underpins.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Annual Remuneration Report (continued)

EXTANT EQUITY INCENTIVE AWARDS HELD BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Details of all existing equity incentive awards as at the date of this DRR, including the awards conditionally made under the long term
incentive plans to the executive directors at any time during the year ended 30 September 2019, are shown in the table below. None
of the executive directors hold any extant award under any previously operated share option scheme:

-e Asat Awarded during Released during Lapsed during As at Market price
30 Sep 2018: the year: the year: theyear: 30 Sep 2019: at date
number of number of number of number of number of of award: Date of Maturity
Director shares shares shares shares shares £ award date
Dominic 118,518 - 112,550 5,968 — 10.80 25Nov2015 10ct2018
Blakemore 96,528 - - - 96,528 13.26 23 Nov2016 10ct2019
178,390 - - - 178,390 15.13 9Feb2018 1 0ct2020
— 161,385 — - 161,385 16.73 21 Nov2018 1 0ct2021
Total 393,436 161,385 112,550 5,968 436,303
Gary 148,479 - 141,002 7,477 — 10.80 25Nov2015 10ct2018
Green 137,271 - - - 137,271 13.26 23 Nov2016 10ct2019
165,125 - - - 165,125 15.13 9Feb2018 1 0ct2020
— 162,810 — - 162,810 16.73 21 Nov2018 1 0ct2021
Total 450,875 162,810 141,002 7,477 465,206
Karen - 120,880 - - 120,880 17.78 16 May 2019 1 Oct2021
Witts
Total — 120,880 — — 120,880
Johnny 106,482 - 101,120 5,362 — 10.80 25Nov2015 10ct2018
Thomson 86,724 - - 86,724 — 13.26 23 Nov2016 10ct2019
108,685 - — 108,685 — 15.13 9Feb2018 1 0Oct2020
Total 301,891 — 101,120 200,771 —
Restricted Share Award (RSA)
Asat Awarded during Released during Lapsed during As at Market price
30 Sep 2018: the year: the year: theyear: 30 Sep 2019: at date
number of number of number of number of number of of award: Date of Maturity
Director shares shares shares shares shares £ award date
Karen Witts - 20,803 20,803 - — 17.78 16 May 2019 1Jul2019
- 20,804 - - 20,804 17.78 16 May 2019 1 Jul2020
— 21,366 — - 21,366 17.78 16 May 2019 1 Jul2021
Total — 62,973 20,803 — 42,170
NOTES TO TABLES

1. Each award granted is based on a three year performance period. Under the 2010 LTIP, awards are based one third on a ROCE target, one third on AFCF and
one third on the Company’s TSR relative to the FTSE 100, excluding the financial services sector. Awards granted under the 2018 LTIP are based 40% on a
ROCE target, 40% on an AFCF target and 20% on the Company’s TSR relative to the FTSE 100, excluding the financial services sector.

2. The performance period of the award granted on 25 November 2015 came to an end on 30 September 2018. This award vested in part at 95% of the
maximum award. The shares disclosed as lapsed during the year represent the proration of the original award.

3. Awards granted on 9 February 2018, 21 November 2018 and 16 May 2019 were made under the LTIP 2018. All other awards were granted under the

LTIP 2010.

4. On 21 November 2018, Messrs Blakemore, Green and Thomson sold 52,612, 63,065 and 47,009 shares respectively of LTIP awards that had become
receivable as a result of the achievement of performance conditions relating to the three year performance period to 30 September 2018 to settle resultant
tax and social security obligations. All of the vested LTIP awards were subject to a two year post vest holding period. Theoretically, if the directors had sold all
of their vested LTIP awards, they would have received in aggregate £5,981,009 based on a sale price of £16.86 on 21 November 2018. The closing share
price on the day preceding the release of their awards was £16.73 per share.

LN O

The performance period of the award granted on 23 November 2016 came to an end on 30 September 2019. The award vested in full.
All LTIP awards were granted for nil consideration.
Of the 120,880 LTIP awards granted to Ms Witts, 28,110 were in respect of the agreed buy-out arrangement for awards forfeited in her former employment.

Awards granted to Mr Thomson on 23 November 2016 and 9 February 2018 lapsed on 31 December 2018 when he ceased to be a director of the Company.
Ms Witts was granted an award over 62,973 shares under the Karen Witts Restricted Share Award Plan on 16 May 2019 in recognition of Awards forfeited at

her previous employer. 15,181 shares were subject only to employment and 5,622 shares are subject to financial underpins relating to net debt to underlying
EBITDA ratio and the ordinary dividend being at least in line with constant currency underlying basic earnings per share, vested on 1 July 2019. On the same
day, Ms Witts sold 9,808 shares for £18.94 per share to cover resultant tax and social security obligations. The balance of shares is not subject to a further
holding period, but will count towards her achievement of the share ownership guideline. The balance of the Award will vest, subject to continued
employment and financial underpins, in two further tranches on 1 July 2020 and 1 July 2021.
10. The highest mid-market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year ended 30 September 2019 was £21.38 per share and the lowest was £14.83
per share. The year end price was £20.93 per share.
11. The market price at the date of each award is shown to two decimal places.
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DIRECTOR CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

Karen Witts

As announced on 11 October 2018, Ms Witts” annual remuneration package, which is in line with the Company’s shareholder
approved Policy, includes the following:

e base salary of £660,000

e bonus opportunity of up to 150% of base salary, prorated from her joining date for the first financial year of her appointment. One
third of the bonus earned to be deferred for three years if the pro-rated share ownership guidelines have not been met

e an award of 250% of base salary under the LTIP 2018. This will vest based on performance over a three year performance period
as assessed by the Remuneration Committee, against ROCE, AFCF and relative TSR targets. The award will also be subject to a
two year post vest holding period

e standard contractual benefits including pension payments (cash allowance or contribution) equal to 20% of base salary
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The Company also agreed the following buyout arrangements to compensate for the forfeiture of incentive compensation from

Ms Witts” former employment, based on all known information at the time. The recruitment Policy approved by shareholders sets out
how to determine the buyout of outstanding incentives from a previous employer, namely, that awards should minimise the cost to
Compass and, where possible, should deliver any compensation in the form of Compass shares, delivered no earlier than the original
awards. In line with that policy, the buyout of current share-based incentives is a blend of restricted shares and performance shares
to replicate the form of awards forfeit. The timing of the payouts will be no earlier than the awards forfeited, and all awards will be
made in Compass shares with forward looking performance conditions applying where appropriate:

e an award of performance shares worth £500,000 which will vest subject to Compass’ performance over the three year period
ending 30 September 2021 as assessed by the Remuneration Committee, against ROCE, AFCF and relative TSR performance
targets as applied under the LTIP 2018

e an award of restricted shares with a value at the date of grant of £1,120,000 to vest in three approximately equal tranches over the
three financial years ending 30 September 2019-2021. The majority of the award is also subject to two financial underpins relating
to Compass’ performance, which are (i) the maintenance of net debt: underlying EBITDA (adjusted for M&A activity and changes
to accounting standards) and (ii) dividend at least in line with constant currency basic earnings per share

All net shares vesting must be retained until the Company’s share ownership guidelines for executive directors have been met.

At the time of appointment Ms Witts was expected to receive compensation, to be delivered in Compass shares, for the loss of any
2018-2019 annual bonus equal in value to the actual bonus that would have been paid by her former employer. This award was not
granted as her 2018-2019 annual bonus from her former employer was not forfeit.

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS

As announced on 4 July 2018 and 11 October 2018, Johnny Thomson stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2018. In line
with the current Policy, Mr Thomson received his current base salary, 35% pension cash allowance and benefits to this date, details
of which are included in the single figure table on page 112. For the period from 1 January 2019 to 24 February 2019, he received a
payment in lieu of notice (comprising salary, pension allowance and 10% of his base salary in lieu of benefits) subject to an obligation
to mitigate. From 25 February 2019 to 30 June 2019 a reduced payment was made following Mr Thomson mitigating his
remuneration. The total remuneration for the period 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019 paid to Mr Thomson was £207,593. All of

Mr Thomson'’s extant LTIP awards lapsed when he ceased to be a director on 31 December 2018. Mr Thomson was not eligible to
receive an annual bonus payment in respect of 2018-2019.

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
There were no loss of office payments made to former directors during the year.

EXTERNAL NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR APPOINTMENTS

Executive directors may take up one non-executive directorship outside the Group subject to the Board'’s approval, provided that
such appointment is not likely to lead to a conflict of interest. It is recognised that non-executive duties can broaden experience
and knowledge which can benefit the Company. Ms Witts received fees of £564,500 in respect of her directorship at Imperial Brands
plc. At the date of this DRR, Dominic Blakemore and Gary Green do not hold any paid external appointments.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of amounts received by Paul Walsh during the year ended 30 September 2019 are shown below:

Fees Benefits! Total 2019 Total 2018
Chairman £000 £000 £000 £000

Paul Walsh 560 2 562 541

1. Benefits for the year ended 30 September 2019 comprise the provision of costs in relation to commuting travel.

Details of the amounts received by each of the non-executive directors in office for the year ended 30 September 2019 are set out below:

Fees Benefits! Total 2019  Total 2018?

Non-executive director £000 £000 £000 £000
Carol Arrowsmith 116 10 126 125
John Bason?® 139 - 139 119
Stefan Bomhard 86 1 87 85
John Bryant* 86 18 104 7
Anne-Francoise Nesmes® 86 — 86 21
Nelson Silva 116 16 132 119
Ireena Vittal 86 11 97 97
1. Travel costs relating to attending Board meetings held in the UK are treated as a taxable benefit and have been included in the table above.

2. 2018 figures restated to include travel expenses.

3. With effect from 8 February 2019, Mr Bason was paid the full fee payable for each non-executive role performed.

4. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 1 September 2018.

5. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 1 July 2018.

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES AND DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
In order that their interests are aligned with those of shareholders, directors are expected to build up and maintain a personal
shareholding in the Company as set out in the share ownership guidelines as described on page 106.

The Committee reviewed and noted that the guidelines were satisfied by all directors in office during the year. The interests of the
directors in office during the year ended 30 September 2019 in shares (including the interests of Persons Closely Associated) and
share incentives are shown in the table below:

Beneficial Conditional
LTIP/RSA LTIP/RSA

Shares held as Shares held holdings as holdings Compliance with

at 30 Sep 2019 as at 30 Sep at 30 Sep 2019 as at 30 Sep Shareholding share ownership
Director or date of leaving 2018 or date of leaving 2018 required! guidelines
Carol Arrowsmith 10,333 10,121 n/a n/a 100% v
John Bason 14,288 11,976 n/a n/a 100% v
Dominic Blakemore 197,462 137,524 436,303 393,436 300% v
Stefan Bomhard 5,865 5,865 n/a n/a 100% v
John Bryant? 6,025 — n/a n/a 100% v
Gary Green 191,382 255,595 465,206 450,875 250% v
Anne-Francoise Nesmes? 2,122 — n/a n/a 100% v
Nelson Silva 7,884 7,884 n/a n/a 100% v
Johnny Thomson* 209,521 155,410 — 301,891 250% v
I[reena Vittal 5,350 5,241 n/a n/a 100% v
Paul Walsh 35,395 35,395 n/a n/a 100% v
Karen Witts® 10,995 — 163,050 n/a 250% See note 5
1. Asa percentage of base salary or fee.
2. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 1 September 2018.
3. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 1 July 2018.
4. Stepped down from the Board and its committees on 31 December 2018. The figure disclosed is Mr Thomson's holding at that date. Outstanding LTIP

awards lapsed on 31 December 2018.

5. Appointed to the Board and its committees on 8 April 2019. Under the current guidelines executive directors are required to achieve the % shareholding

shown in the table above, within a five year period in accordance with the Company’s share ownership guidelines. Compliance is assessed on a pro rata basis
for Ms Witts who is in her first year of build-up. In line with the guidelines, a proportion of Ms Witts’ 2018—2019 bonus will be deferred in shares for a period of
three years to support the build up of her shareholding.

There were no changes in directors’ interests between 30 September 2019 and 26 November 2019.
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REMUNERATION OF OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES AND MANAGEMENT

A number of senior executives and the executive directors comprise the Executive Committee. These key management roles
influence the ability of the Group to meet its strategic targets. The Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration for these
individuals and has regard to the remuneration level and structure of the wider business. Total remuneration including base salary
and other short term benefits, bonus and the expected value of long term incentives is summarised in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 166.

REMUNERATION ADVICE

The Chairman and the Group CEO, together with the Group Chief People Officer and the Group Reward & Diversity Director are
normally invited to attend each Committee meeting and provide advice and guidance to the Committee (other than in respect of
their own remuneration) for which they are not paid a fee in addition to their remuneration from the Company under their service
contracts. Details of the members of the Committee who served during the year ended 30 September 2019 are set out on

pages 70 and 71.
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WillisTowersWatson (WTW) was appointed by the Company in 2017. During the year, WTW advised the Committee on remuneration
related matters in respect of the executive directors and non-executive directors including detailed external information and
research on market data and trends and advice in relation to the appointment of Ms Witts for which it received total fees (based on
hours spent) of £30,150 (2018: £29,100). WTW provided services to the Company globally which comprised remuneration
benchmarking, insurance brokerage and other consultancy advice.

Alithos Limited (Alithos) was appointed by the Company in 2002. During the year, Alithos provided information for the testing of the
TSR performance conditions for the Company’s LTIP awards, for which it received fixed fees of £24,000 (2018: £24,000). It also
provided the TSR performance graph for the DRR, for which it received a fixed fee of £500 (2018: £500). Alithos did not provide any
other advice or services to the Company during the year.

The Committee is satisfied that the advice it received during the year was objective and independent, based on the experience of its
members generally, including Carol Arrowsmith, Chairman of the Committee, who was formerly a remuneration consultant with
Deloitte LLP.

SHAREHOLDER VOTE AT 2018 AND 2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS
The tables below show the voting outcomes at the AGMs held on 8 February 2018 for the Remuneration Policy which applies until
2021 and the 2016-2017 Remuneration Report, and on 7 February 2019 for the 2017-2018 Annual Remuneration Report:

2018
Number of votes
‘For’ & % of  Number of votes % of  Total numberof ~ Number of votes
‘Discretionary’ votes cast ‘Against’ votes cast votes cast ‘Withheld"
Remuneration Policy? 1,153,741,571 95.90 49,370,003 4.10 1,203,111,574 10,721,950
Annual Remuneration Report®>  1,161,167,059 96.58 41,072,852 3.42 1,202,239,911 11,593,421
2019
Number of votes
‘For’ & % of  Number of votes % of  Total numberof ~ Number of votes
‘Discretionary’ votes cast ‘Against’ votes cast votes cast ‘Withheld"
Annual Remuneration Report®  1,225,182,253 98.01 24,889,504 1.99 1,250,071,757 15,061,643

1. Avote withheld is not a vote in law.
2. Binding vote. Policy to apply until 2021.
3. Advisory vote.

The Committee welcomed the endorsement of the DRR by shareholders and took steps, wherever practicable, to understand
shareholders’ concerns when withholding their support.

At the 2020 AGM, shareholders will be invited to vote on the Annual Remuneration Report for 2018-2019 (advisory vote) and on the
approval for the Company to pay each of its non-executive directors the full fee payable for each role they perform for the Company
by reference to the aggregate cap on directors’ fees specified in the Company'’s articles of association.

On behalf of the Board

(4A) AT

Carol Arrowsmith
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Other Statutory Disclosures

This Directors’ Report forms part of the management report as
required under DTR 4. The Company has chosen, in accordance
with Section 414 C(11) of the CA 2006, and as noted in this
Directors’ Report, to include certain matters in its Strategic
Report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in this
Directors’ Report. The Strategic Report can be found on pages
1to 63 and includes an indication of future likely developments
in the Company, details of important events and the Company’s
business model and strategy. The Corporate Governance Report
on pages 64 to 121, the Other Statutory Disclosures on pages
122 to 127 and the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement on page
130 are incorporated into the Directors’ Report by reference.

Specifically, the following disclosures have been included
elsewhere within the Annual Report and are incorporated into
this Directors’ Report by reference:

Disclosure Page
Financial risk management 39
Future developments in the business 2
Statement of directors’ responsibilities including 130
disclosure of information to the auditor

Disclosure of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 60
Shareholder information 232
Viability statement 40
Going concern statement 40
DIRECTORS

Details of the directors in office at the date of this Report are listed
on pages 68 to 71. In accordance with the Code, each director will
retire and submit himself or herself for election or re-election at
the 2020 AGM. As announced on 11 October 2018, Karen Witts
joined the Board as Group CFO on 8 April 2019.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

In the year ended 30 September 2019, the Group delivered an
underlying profit before tax of £1,772 million (2018: £1,630
million), an increase of 8.7%; and a statutory profit before tax of
£1,469 million (2018: £1,523 million), a decrease of 3.5%".

A summary of the dividends on ordinary shares for the financial
year ended 30 September 2019 compared to the prior year is
shown below:

Year Dividend Pence per share?
2019 Final (recommended) 26.9
2019 Interim 13.1
2019 Total 40.0
2018 Final 25.4
2018 Interim 12.3
2018 Total 37.7

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated upon adoption of IFRS 15.

2. Dividends are paid gross. A dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) is available
to shareholders resident in the UK, EEA, Channel Islands and Isle of Man.
Details can be found on page 232. The latest date for receipt of elections
for the DRIP is 3 February 2020.

The 2019 interim dividend of 13.1 pence per existing ordinary
share (2018: 12.3 pence) was paid to shareholders on
29 July 2019.
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Payment of the recommended final dividend for the year ended
30 September 2019, if approved at the 2020 AGM, will be made
on 24 February 2020 to shareholders registered at the close of
business on 17 January 2020. The shares will be quoted
ex-dividend from 16 January 2020.

During the year, the trustee of the employee benefit trust, the
Compass Group PLC All Share Schemes Trust (ASST) (formerly
known as the Compass Group PLC Long Term Incentive Plan
Trust), which operates in connection with the Company’s share
plans, waived its right to receive dividends on any shares held by
it. Details of the ASST can be found on page 124 of this Report.
The value of dividends waived during the year ended

30 September 2019 in relation to the ASST was £6,351

(2018: £5,389).

At the date of this Report, there were 3,301,961 11%o0 pence
ordinary shares held in treasury for the purpose of satisfying the
Company’s obligations under the Company’s employee equity
incentive schemes. Shares held in treasury are not entitled to
receive dividends. Therefore, £1,378,421 (2018: £2,152,339)
worth of dividends were not paid during the financial year in
relation to treasury shares.

SHARE CAPITAL

General

At the date of this Report, 1,589,736,625 ordinary shares of

11 %20 pence each (of which 3,301,961 are held in treasury)
have been issued, are fully paid up and are quoted on the
London Stock Exchange. The total voting rights attaching to the
issued ordinary share capital (excluding treasury shares) at the
date of this Report is 1,586,434,664. In addition, the Company
sponsors a Level | American Depositary Receipts programme
with BNY Mellon, under which the Company’s shares are traded
on the over the counter market in the form of American
Depositary Shares.

During the year ended 30 September 2019, 431,955 options
were exercised and 1,964,708 awards released pursuant to the
Company’s share option schemes and long term incentive plans.
All options exercised and awards released were satisfied, as
appropriate, by the reissue of 2,341,811 treasury shares and the
release of 54,852 shares from the ASST. A further 27,673
treasury shares have been reissued and 5,076 shares released
by the Trust respectively since the end of the financial year to
the date of this Report to satisfy awards under these schemes.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company other than those restrictions which may
from time to time be imposed by law, for example, insider
trading law. With respect to EU Market Abuse Regulation,
certain employees are required to seek the approval of the
Company to deal in its shares.

The Company is not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities and/or voting rights.

The Company'’s articles of association may only be amended by
special resolution at a general meeting of shareholders.



The Company is not aware of any significant agreements to
which it is party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a
change of control of the Company following a takeover.

More detailed information relating to the rights and obligations
attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares, in addition to those
conferred by law, are set out in the Company'’s articles of
association, which are available on the Company’s website
WWW.COmMpass-group.com.

REPURCHASE OF SHARES

No shares were repurchased during the financial year ended
30 September 2019. No shares have been repurchased in the
period from 1 October 2019 to the date of this Report.

As at the date of this Report, there are 1,589,736,625 ordinary
shares of 11%0 pence inissue. Of these, 3,301,961 are held in
treasury for the purpose of satisfying the Company’s obligations
under employee equity incentive schemes. Shares held in
treasury are not eligible to participate in dividends and do not
carry any voting rights.

Returns to shareholders continue to be an integral part of our
business model and the Group’s cash flow generation remains
excellent. Our priorities for how we use our cash are to: (i) invest
in the business to support organic growth where we see
opportunities with good returns; (ii) grow the dividend in line with
underlying constant currency earnings per share; (iii) pursue
M&A opportunities; our preference is for small to medium sized
bolt-on acquisitions, where we look for returns greater than our
cost of capital by the end of year two; and (iv) maintain strong
investment grade credit ratings returning any surplus cash to
shareholders to target net debt to EBITDA of around 1.5x.

At the 2020 AGM, a special resolution will be proposed to renew
the directors’ limited authority (last granted at the 2019 AGM) to
repurchase ordinary shares in the market. Retaining the ability
to repurchase shares gives the Board the flexibility of electing to
repurchase shares where this is the most effective method of
returning cash to shareholders, or to fund bolt-on acquisitions.
The directors consider it desirable for this general authorisation
to be renewed in order to assist in maintaining the most efficient
capital structure for the business.

The authority sets the minimum and maximum prices which may
be paid and it will be limited to a maximum of 10% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital calculated at the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of AGM.
Any purchases of ordinary shares will be by means of market
purchases through the London Stock Exchange and any shares
purchased may be cancelled or placed into treasury in
accordance with Section 724 of the CA 2006.

1. PrelIFRS 16 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Group on 1 October
2019. The Group expects between £950-£1,050 million of additional debt
on its balance sheet on adoption.

ISSUE OF SHARES

At the 2020 AGM, the directors will ask shareholders to renew
the authority last granted to them at the 2019 AGM to allot
equity shares representing approximately one third of the issued
ordinary shares calculated at the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of the Notice of AGM (the section 551 authority)
and, in accordance with the Investment Association Share
Capital Management Guidelines, the directors propose to extend
this by a further one third of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital, provided that such amount shall only be used in
connection with a rights issue. If approved, the authority will
expire no later than 15 months from the date on which the
resolution is passed, or at the conclusion of the Company’s 2021
AGM, whichever is the sooner.
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The limited power granted to the directors at the 2019 AGM to
allot equity shares for cash, other than pro rata to existing
shareholders, expires no later than 6 May 2020. Subject to the
terms of the section 551 authority, this authority is in line with
the Statement of Principles on Pre-emption Rights issued by the
Pre-Emption Group and supported by the Investment
Association and the Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association
(the Principles). If granted, this authority will give the directors
the ability (until the 2021 AGM) to issue ordinary shares for
cash, other than pro rata to existing shareholders, in connection
with a rights issue or up to a limit of 5% of the issued ordinary
share capital (whether or not in connection with an acquisition
or specified capital investment) calculated at the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of AGM. In
accordance with the Principles, the directors propose to extend
this by an additional 5% of the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital calculated at the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of the Notice of AGM, provided that the additional
authority would only be used for the purpose of an acquisition or
a specified capital investment which is announced
contemporaneously with the issue or which has taken place in
the preceding six month period and is disclosed in the
announcement of the issue. In line with recommended best
practice, the Company has split the disapplication of pre-
emption rights authority into two separate resolutions. The first
resolution seeks authorisation for 5% of the issued ordinary
share capital to be issued on an unrestricted basis, whilst the
second resolution seeks authority for an additional 5% of the
issued ordinary share capital to be used for an acquisition or a
specified capital investment.

Also, in line with best practice, the Company has not issued
more than 7.5% of its issued ordinary share capital on a
non-prorated basis over the last three years. The directors have
no present intention to issue ordinary shares, other than
pursuant to the Company’s employee equity incentive share
schemes, and this authority will maintain the Company’s
flexibility in relation to future share issues, including any issues
to finance business opportunities, should appropriate
circumstances arise.
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OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Details of purchases and releases by the ASST, and the reissue
of treasury shares during the year, together with details of
options granted over unissued capital, are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 197 and 198.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The following major shareholdings have been notified to the
Company as at 30 September 2019 and up to the date of
this Report.

% of Compass

% of issued Group PLC’s

capital® voting rightst

Blackrock, Inc. 9.99 9.99
Invesco Limited 4.95 4.95
Massachusetts Financial 9.96 9.96

Services Company

1. Notified in accordance with DTR5.1.2. Since the notification date, the
shareholders’ interests in the Company may have changed.

The number of shares held by the directors as at

30 September 2019 can be found on page 120 in the

Directors’ Remuneration Report.

EMPLOYEE SHARE TRUSTS

The Compass Group Employee Share Trust (ESOP) was
established on 13 January 1992 in connection with the
Company’s share option plans. The Compass Group Long
Term Incentive Plan Trust was established on 5 April 2001

in connection with the Company’s long term incentive plans,
and in 2019, was adapted to allow it to source shares

for all of the Company’s share schemes and was renamed the
Compass Group PLC All Shares Schemes Trust (ASST).

Details of employee equity incentive schemes are set out

in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 98 to 121.
As at 30 September 2019, the trustees of the ESOP and ASST
held nil (2018: nil) and 187,455 (2018: nil) ordinary shares of
the Company respectively.

The Compass Group Executive Option Share Trust and

The Compass Group Executive Share Trust were established
on 15 and 22 February 2010 respectively in relation to the
operation of equity incentive schemes in Australia. No ordinary
shares were held by these trusts as at 30 September 2019
(2018: nil).

AWARDS UNDER EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

Details of awards made during the year and held by executive
directors as at 30 September 2019 are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 98 to 121.

Details of employee equity incentive schemes and grants made
during the year ended 30 September 2019, and extant awards
held by employees are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 197 to 199.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND INVOLVEMENT

The Group places particular importance on the involvement of
its employees, keeping them regularly informed through informal
bulletins and other in-house publications, meetings and the
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Company’s internal websites, on matters affecting them as
employees and on the issues affecting their performance. Group
businesses in the European Economic Area (EEA) are
represented on Compass Group’s European Works Council
(EWC), which provides a forum for exchanging information and
engaging in consultation on the Group’s performance and plans,
and relevant transnational issues affecting those countries in
the EEA. Employees from across the Group’s EEA business have
been elected to employee representative roles on the EWC.

Eligible employees in the UK are invited to join the Company’s
defined contribution pension arrangement, Compass Retirement
Income Savings Plan (CRISP). CRISP has a corporate trustee
and the Chairman, Nigel Palmer, is a former employee of

the Group. The other six trustee directors are UK based
employees of the Group, three of whom have been nominated

by CRISP members.

Those UK employees who transfer from the public sector under
TUPE have, typically up until 31 March 2015, been eligible to
join the Compass Group Pension Plan (the Plan), a defined
benefit pension arrangement which has otherwise been closed
to new entrants since 2003. However, under the Government’s
revised guidance for ‘Fair Deal for staff pensions’, the
expectation is and therefore the approach has been that the
Group participate in the relevant public-sector pension scheme
and close the Plan to future entrants. The Plan also has a
corporate trustee. Philip Whittome is the independent Chairman.
There are a further six trustee directors, five of whom are either
UK based employees or former employees of the Group (three of
whom have been nominated by Plan members), and the sixth is
an independent trustee director.

The Company is subject to the Pension Automatic Enrolment
Regulations for its workforce in the UK. All new UK employees
who meet the statutory eligibility criteria, and who do not join
CRISP, are automatically enrolled into the National Employment
Savings Trust (NEST). Responsibility for the Group’s ongoing
compliance with the pension automatic enrolment regulations
and for ensuring that the administration and investment of funds
relating to automatic enrolment remain appropriate lies with the
Group's Pension Automatic Enrolment Governance Committee.

Permanent employees outside the UK are usually offered
membership of local pension arrangements if and where
they exist and where it is appropriate to have Company
sponsored arrangements.

Employees are offered a range of benefits, such as private
medical cover, depending on the local environment. Priority is
given to the training of employees and the development of their
skills. Employment of people with disabilities is considered on
merit with regard only to the ability of any applicant to carry out
the role. Arrangements to enable people with disabilities to carry
out the duties required will be made if it is reasonable to do so.
An employee becoming disabled would, where appropriate,

be offered retraining.



The Group continues to operate on a decentralised basis. This
provides the maximum encouragement for the development of
entrepreneurial flair, balanced by a rigorous control framework
exercised by a small head office team. Local management
teams are responsible for maintaining high standards of health
and safety and for ensuring that there is appropriate employee
involvement in decision making.

NON-FINANCIAL REPORTING DIRECTIVE

The EU Non-Financial Reporting Directive (the Directive) which
was implemented into English law as the Companies,
Partnerships and Groups (Accounts and Non-Financial
Reporting) Regulations 2016 requires companies to disclose
non-financial information necessary to provide investors and
other stakeholders with a better understanding of a company’s
development, performance, position and impact of its activity.
The Audit Committee, which advises the Board on such matters,
has concluded that the Company is compliant with the Directive
and has included the necessary disclosures in this Report.

Throughout this Annual Report the directors have disclosed a
mix of financial and non-financial KPIs which they believe best
reflect the Group's strategic priorities; and which will help to
convey an understanding of the culture of the business and the
drivers which contribute to the ongoing success of the Company.
Please see the non-financial information statement on page 127
which sets out where stakeholders can find information relating
to non-financial matters.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

Our Code of Ethics was developed in consultation with the EWC
and the Institute of Business Ethics and sets out clear standards
of behaviour that we expect all of our people to demonstrate and
adhere to. The Code of Ethics, which is part of our CBC,
underpins our social, ethical and environmental commitments
and sends a clear message to our stakeholders of our
commitment to responsible business practice. The 10 principles
of the United Nations (UN) Global Compact, to which we are a
signatory, underpin our own Code of Ethics. This UN initiative
encourages companies to make human rights, labour standards,
environmental responsibility and anti-corruption part of their
business agenda. Our annual Communication on Progress can
be viewed at www.unglobalcompact.org.

Our people are instrumental in our success; we respect and
value the individuality and diversity that every employee brings
to the Group. We base our relationship with our employees on
respect for the dignity of the individual and fair treatment for all.
In December, the Company will publish its fourth statement in
accordance with the requirements of the Modern Slavery Act
2015 and a copy of the statement will be available on the
Company's website www.compass-group.com.

As at 30 September 2019, there were 596,452 (2018: 595,841)
people employed by the Group (average number of employees
including directors and part-time employees) of whom 351,860
were female (2018: 337,962) and 244,592 were male

(2018: 257,879). 620 were senior managers, 450 male, 170
female (2018: 537 male, 191 female), which includes members
of our global leadership team and statutory directors of

corporate entities whose financial information is consolidated in
the Group’s accounts in this Annual Report. As at 30 September
2019 there were 11 directors, seven of whom were male and
four were female. Prior to any appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee gives due regard to diversity and gender
with a view to recommending the appointment of the most
suitable candidate for the role.

We seek to create a positive, open working environment
wherever we operate. Our employee policies are set locally to
comply with local law within an overall Group framework and we
monitor our employee satisfaction and engagement through a
number of key performance indicators.
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We also consider the concerns of wider communities where we
operate, including national and local interests, utilising our
relevant expertise to help contribute to the wellbeing of
communities which are appropriate to our business objectives.
Furthermore, the Group supports the rights of all people as set
out in the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UN
Declaration) and considers carefully before doing any business
in countries that do not adhere to the UN Declaration.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REPORTING

The Company is required to state the annual quantity of
emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent from activities
for which the Group is responsible, including the combustion

of fuel and the operation of any facility. Details of our emissions
during the year ended 30 September 2019 are set out within
the Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic Report on
page 60 and form part of the Directors’ Report disclosures and
are incorporated by reference. Further details of the actions
which the Group is taking to reduce emissions can also be found
at www.compass-group.com. This Annual Report and Accounts
is certified carbon neutral by sponsoring a cause to offset
against the emissions arising from the production, printing and
delivery of this Report. This year, the Company has participated
in a project in Brazil which aims to prevent deforestation and
protect one of the world’s most biodiverse habitats.

DONATIONS AND POLITICAL EXPENDITURE

Charitable objectives support the Company’s CR strategy and
have primarily focused on improving the environment,
education, health and wellbeing, community engagement and
responsible business practice. Donations have included
employee involvement through fundraising and financial

support.

Group charitable donations £m
2019 11.5
2018 11.0

Since 2004, shareholders have passed an annual resolution, on
a precautionary basis, to approve donations to EU political
organisations and to incur EU political expenditure (as such
terms were defined under the then relevant legislation) not
exceeding a monetary limit approved by shareholders. The
Board has consistently confirmed that it operates a policy of not
giving any cash contribution to any political party in the ordinary
meaning of those words and that it has no intention of changing
that policy.
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OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

No material amount of corporate funds or paid employee time
has been utilised during the year for political activities and, in
accordance with the Company’s CBC, employees must not
engage in any form of lobbying or have contact with political
representatives, government employees or public interest
groups unless they are doing so legitimately and adhering to
internal control processes. Further information regarding the
CBC can be found on page 88 of this Annual Report and on the
Company’s website www.compass-group.com.

The directors propose to renew the authority granted at the
2019 AGM for the Group to make political donations and incur
political expenditure (as such terms are defined in sections 362
to 365 of the CA 2006) until the Company’s next AGM, which
they might otherwise be prohibited from making or incurring
under the terms of the CA 2006 and which would not amount to
‘donations’ in the ordinary sense of the word. It is proposed to
maintain the limit of such authority at £100,000.

COMMUNICATING WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company places considerable importance on
communication with its shareholders, including its private
shareholders. The Group CEO and the Group CFO are closely
involved in investor relations and a senior executive has day to
day responsibility for such matters. The views of the Company’s
major shareholders are reported to the Board by the Group CEO
and the Group CFO as well as by the Chairman (who remains

in contact with our largest shareholders) and are discussed at
its meetings.

There is regular dialogue with institutional shareholders, and
private shareholders at the AGM. Contact with institutional
shareholders (and with financial analysts, brokers and the
media) is controlled by written guidelines in the Company’s
Corporate Communications Code and Market Soundings Policy,
in compliance with EU Market Abuse Regulation requirements
to ensure the continued protection of share price sensitive
information that has not already been made generally available
to the Company’s shareholders. Contact is also maintained,
when appropriate, with shareholders to discuss overall
remuneration plans and policies.

The primary method of communicating with shareholders

is by electronic means, helping to make the Company more
environmentally friendly by reducing waste and pollution
associated with the production and posting of its Annual Report.
The Annual Report is available to all shareholders and can be
accessed via the Company’s website www.compass-group.com.
The Group’s annual and interim results are also published on the
Company’s website, together with all other announcements and
documents issued to the market, such as statements, interviews
and presentations by the Group CEO and Group CFO.

The Notice of Annual General Meeting is circulated to all
shareholders at least 20 working days prior to such meeting and
it is Company policy not to combine resolutions to be proposed
at general meetings. All shareholders are invited to the
Company’s AGM at which they have the opportunity to put
questions to the Board and it is standard practice to have the
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chairmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees available to answer questions.
The results of proxy voting for and against each resolution, as
well as abstentions, are announced to the London Stock
Exchange and are published on the Company’s website as soon
as practicable after the meeting. Further shareholder
information is available on pages 232 to 234.

CREST
The Company’s ordinary shares and sterling Eurobonds are in
CREST, the settlement system for stocks and shares.

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER

UK LISTING RULE 9.8.4

There are no disclosures required to be made under UK Listing
Rule 9.8.4 which have not already been disclosed elsewhere in
this Report. Details of long term incentive plans can be found in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 98 to 121 and
details of dividends waived by shareholders can be found on
page 122.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Details of services provided to shareholders can be found in the
Shareholder Information section on pages 232 to 234 and on the
Company’s website.

AGM

The Notice of Meeting setting out the resolutions to be proposed
at the 2020 AGM, together with explanatory notes, is set out on
pages 235 to 245 of this Annual Report and is also available on
the Company’s website www.compass-group.com. The directors
consider that each of the resolutions is in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole and recommend
that shareholders vote in favour of all of the resolutions.

On behalf of the Board

h . Dew

Alison Yapp
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

26 November 2019

Compass Group PLC
Registered in England and Wales, No. 4083914



NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

The table below sets out where stakeholders can find information in our Strategic Report that relates to non-financial matters
detailed under section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.

Where to read more in this report about our impact,

Reporting requirement Some of our relevant policies! including the principal risks relating to these matters Page
Environmental matters ~ Sustainability Strategy Corporate Responsibility 52-63
Environmental Policy Commitment to United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals 62—63
Statement GHG Emissions 60 5
Employees Code of Business Conduct Who we create value for — People 15 g
Workplace Health & Safety Chief Executive’s review — People 19 §
Policy Statement People Report — A renewed commitment 46-51
Principal Risks — Health and Safety, People 42
Safety culture 57
Human rights Code of Business Conduct Our Standards 88
Code of Ethics Slavery and Human Trafficking 91
Modern Slavery Act Employee diversity and Human rights 125
Transparency Statement
Human Rights Policy
Statement
Social matters Social Purpose Who we create value for — Purpose 15
Chief Executive’s review — Purpose 20
Corporate Responsibility 52-63
Anti-bribery and Code of Business Conduct Our values guide our actions and behaviours 51
corruption Code of Ethics Principal Risks — Compliance and Fraud 45
Group Speak Up Policy Our Standards 88
Sourcing Responsibly Supply Chain Integrity Standards 53
Business model Our Business Model 12
Non-financial KPIs Global Lost Time Incident Frequency Rate 3,27,57
Global Food Safety Incident Rate 3,27,57
Greenhouse gas intensity ratio 3,27,60
Women in global leadership team 50
Principal risks Identifying and Managing Risk 41-45

1. The Company’s policies, statements and codes are available on the Company’s website www.compass-group.com.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Annual Report and Accounts complies with the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the
United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority and the UK
Corporate Governance Code in respect of the
requirements to produce an annual financial report.

The Annual Report and Accounts is the responsibility of,
and has been approved by, the directors.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

e the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group’s position and performance, business model
and strategy

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole

e the Annual Report and Accounts includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

The directors have permitted the auditor to undertake
whatever inspections it considers to be appropriate for the
purpose of enabling the auditor to give its audit opinion.

On behalf of the Board

A Dew

Alison Yapp
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

26 November 2019
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group and Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and
of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
Group and Parent Company financial statements, the directors
are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant, reliable and prudent

e for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

e for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the Parent Company financial statements

e assess the Group and Parent Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006. They have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance
Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members

of Compass Group PLC

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We have audited the financial statements of Compass Group
PLC (‘the Company’) for the year ended 30 September 2019
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, the Parent Company Balance Sheet and the Parent
Company Statement of Changes in Equity, and the related notes,
including the accounting policies in notes A to T of the Group
financial statements and A to J of the Parent Company
financial statements.

In our opinion:

e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
30 September 2019 and of the Group’s profit for the year
then ended;

e the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union;

¢ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (‘ISAs (UK)') and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our report to
the Audit Committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on
14 March 2014.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the six
financial years ended 30 September 2019. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the
Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including
the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard

were provided.

Overview

£74 million (2018: £74 million)
5.0% (2018: 4.9%) of Group profit

Materiality:
Group financial

statements as a before tax
whole
Coverage 91% (2018: 97%) of Group profit
before tax
Key audit matters vs 2018
Event New: The impact of uncertainties A
driven due to the UK exiting the European
Union on our audit
Recurring risks Uncertain direct tax provisions <4
Supplier rebates & discounts <4
Recoverability of the parent <4

Company’s investment in and
amounts owed by Group undertakings

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT
OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified
by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

We summarise below the key audit matters, in arriving at our
audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to
address those matters and, as required for public interest
entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were
addressed, and our results are based on procedures
undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

The risk

Our response

The impact of
uncertainties due to
the UK exiting the
European Union on
our audit

Refer to page 41
(Principal Risks),
page 40 (Viability
Statement), page 82
(Audit Committee
Report) and page
172 (Financial
Disclosures).

Unprecedented levels of
uncertainty:

All audits assess and challenge the
reasonableness of estimates and
related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concern
basis of preparation of the financial
statements. All of these depend on
assessments of the future economic
environment and the Group's future
prospects and performance.

In addition, we are required to
consider the other information
presented in the Annual Report
including the principal risks
disclosure and the viability statement
and to consider the Directors’
statement that the Annual Report
and financial statements taken as a
whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

Brexit is one of the most significant
economic events for the UK and at
the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of
uncertainty of outcomes, with the full
range of possible effects unknown.

We developed a standardised firm-wide approach to

the consideration of the uncertainties arising from

Brexit in planning and performing our audits. Our

procedures included:

e Our Brexit knowledge: We considered the Directors’
assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk for the Group’s
business and financial resources compared with our own
understanding of the risks. We considered the Directors’
plans to take action to mitigate the risks.

e Sensitivity analysis: When addressing forecasts used in the
goodwill impairment testing for the UK and other areas that
depend on forecasts, we compared the Directors’ analysis to
our assessment of the full range of reasonably possible
scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty and, where
forecast cash flows are required to be discounted,
considered adjustments to discount rates for the level
of remaining uncertainty.

¢ Assessing transparency: As well as assessing individual
disclosures as part of our procedures we considered all of the
Brexit related disclosures together, including those in the
strategic report, comparing the overall picture against our
understanding of the risks.

Our results

We found the resulting estimates and related disclosures, and
disclosures in relation to going concern, to be acceptable.
However, no audit should be expected to predict the
unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a
company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Uncertain direct tax
provisions

Refer to page 85
(Audit Committee
Report), pages 146
and 149 (Accounting
Policies) and pages
168 and 169 and
page 205 (Financial
Disclosures).

Subjective estimate:

The Group operates across a large
number of jurisdictions and is subject
to periodic challenges by local tax
authorities on a range of tax matters
during the normal course of
business, including transfer pricing.
As a result of the complexities of tax
rules on transfer pricing and other tax
legislation the provisioning for
uncertain direct tax positions is
judgemental and requires the
Directors to make estimates in
relation to these uncertainties.

The Directors’ estimation includes
assessing the likelihood of potentially
material exposures as a result of
changes in local tax regulations and
evaluating ongoing inspections by
local tax authorities and international
bodies, which could materially
impact the amounts recorded in the
Group financial statements. In 2019
this included evaluating the impact
of the European Commission’s

state aid investigation into the

UK CFC legislation.

Our procedures included:

e Control design: Evaluating the design of the controls that the
Group has in place to identify and quantify its uncertain
direct tax exposures;

e Qur taxation expertise: With the assistance of our tax
specialists, we analysed and challenged the assumptions
used to determine provisions using our knowledge and
experience of the application of international and local
legislation by the relevant authorities and courts, and
assessing whether the approach applied by the Group is
supported by custom and practice;

e With the help of our tax specialists we considered whether
the judgements applied to each significant provision
including the maximum potential exposure and the likelihood
of a payment being required were appropriate;

e Test of detail: Examining the calculations prepared by the
Directors and agreeing key assumptions used to
underlying data;

® |nspecting correspondence with relevant tax authorities and
assessing third party tax advice received to evaluate the
conclusions drawn in the advice where relevant to the
significant exposures faced by the Group and how these have
been used by the Directors in their assessment of the
likelihood of any outflow and estimate of the provision; and

e Assessing transparency: Assessing the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures in respect of tax and uncertain direct
tax positions.

Our results

We found the carrying value of the tax provision to

be acceptable.
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The risk

Our response

Supplier rebates
and discounts
Refer to page 85
(Audit Committee
Report) and

page 149
(Accounting
Policies).

Rebates and discounts
processing error:

The Group has a variety of
agreements with suppliers
whereby rebates and discounts
are earned based on the quantity
of goods bought.

The majority of the rebates and
discounts due to the Group are
reflected in the net price charged
by its suppliers or are based on
fixed percentages linked to the
quantity of goods bought. There
is little estimation or judgement
involved in determining the
timing and amount to be
recognised. However, due to the
large number of agreements in
place across numerous
jurisdictions within the Group,
the complexity of transaction
processing as well as supplier
rebate periods frequently not
being coterminous with the year
end date, we consider that there
is a risk of error.

Our procedures included:

Control design: Evaluating the design of the controls that the
Group has in place over the accounting for supplier rebates

and discounts;

Accounting application: Inspecting underlying contractual terms
and supplier correspondence for a selection of arrangements in
place and considering whether the accounting policy had been
applied appropriately to the terms of the rebate and/or discount;
Test of details: Performing detailed testing on a sample basis of
the largest rebates and discounts recognised in the period, with
particular attention to the period in which the rebate was
recognised and rebates and discounts accrued at the year-end;
and

In addition we selected a sample of amounts invoiced as at the
balance sheet date and agreed the underlying calculation to
contractual terms and supplier correspondence.

Our results

The results of our testing were satisfactory and we found
the amount of supplier rebates and discounts recognised to
be acceptable.

Recoverability of
the parent
Company’s
investment in and
amounts owed by
Group undertakings
Investments
£1,061 million
(2018: £1,035
million)
Intercompany
receivables
£9,514 million
(2018: £10,035
million)

Low risk, high value:

The carrying amount of the
Company’s investments in
subsidiaries held at cost less
impairment and intercompany
receivables represent 98%
(2018: 94%) of the Company’s
total assets.

We do not consider the valuation
of these investments and
recovery of intercompany
receivables to be at a high risk of
significant misstatement, or to be
subject to a significant level of
judgement. However, due to their
materiality in the context of the
Company financial statements as
awhole, this is considered to be
the area which had the greatest
effect on our overall audit
strategy and allocation of
resources in planning and
completing our Company audit.

Our procedures included:

Test of details: Comparing a sample of the investment and
intercompany receivables’ carrying value to the net assets of the
relevant subsidiary included within the Group consolidation, to
identify whether the net asset value, being an approximation of
the minimum recoverable amount, was in excess of their
carrying amount;

Assessing subsidiary net assets: For the relevant subsidiaries
(investment holding companies), we compared the net assets of
the relevant subsidiary to the final net assets in the prior year
audited financial statements. Based on the knowledge acquired
during the audit of the consolidated Group, including reporting
received from component auditors for the underlying trading
operations, we considered whether there were any events
indicating that the net assets would be materially different from
the prior year position;

Test of details: Where the net assets of the relevant subsidiary
were insufficient to support the carrying value we considered the
performance of the underlying investments held by the relevant
subsidiary in order to assess whether there was an indication of
impairment;

Our sector experience: In addition, for certain investments and
receivables, we evaluated the assumptions used in the applicable
impairment model, in particular those relating to forecast profit
growth, using our knowledge and historic experience of the
profitability of the underlying trading Group; and

Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the assumptions in
the applicable impairment model for the investment to externally
derived data in relation to projected economic growth and
discount rates.

Our results
We found the carrying amounts of investments and intercompany
receivables to be acceptable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX GROUP MATERIALITY
£1.5 billion £74 million
(2018: £1.5 billion) (2018: £74 million)

£74 million

Whole financial statements
materiality (2018: £74 million)

£59 million

Range of materiality

at 16 components

(£2 million to £59 million)
(2018: £1 million to £59 million)

® Group profit before tax

. -
£3.7 million
Misstatements reported
to the Audit Committee
(2018: £3.7 million)

© Group materiality

GROUP REVENUE

@ Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2019

Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2018

® Residual components

GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX

® Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2019

Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2018

® Residual components

GROUP TOTAL ASSETS

@ Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2019

Full scope for Group audit
purposes 2018

© Residual components
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3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was
set at £74 million (2018: £74 million), determined with
reference to a benchmark of Group profit before tax of

£1.5 billion (2018: £1.5 billion), of which it represents 5.0%
(2018: 4.9%).

Materiality for the Parent Company financial statements as a
whole was set at £59 million (2018: £52.3 million), determined
with reference to a benchmark of Company total assets, of which
it represents 0.5% (2018: 0.4%).

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £3.7 million
(2018: £3.7 million), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Of the Group’s 52 (2018: 54) reporting components, we
subjected 16 (2018: 28) to full scope audits for Group purposes.

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated opposite.

The remaining 10% (2018: 4%) of total Group revenue, 9%
(2018: 3%) of Group profit before tax and 7% (2018: 3%) of total
Group assets is represented by 36 reporting components

(2018: 26 components), none of which individually represented
more than 1% of any of total Group revenue, Group profit before
tax or total Group assets. For these residual components, we
performed analysis at an aggregated Group level to re-examine
our assessment that there were no significant risks of material
misstatement within these.

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks
detailed above and the information to be reported back.

The Group team approved the component materialities,

which ranged from £2 million to £59 million (2018: £1 million
to £59 million), having regard to the mix of size and risk profile
of the Group across the components. The work on 13 of the 16
components (2018: 25 of the 28 components) was performed
by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the
Parent Company, was performed by the Group team.

The Group team visited 10 (2018: 8) component locations in
Brazil, Chile, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, Portugal,
Turkey, United Kingdom and United States (2018: in Canada,
China, France, Japan, Turkey, Spain, United Kingdom and the
United States) to assess the audit risk and strategy and direct
the audit work of component auditors.

Video and telephone conference meetings were also held with
these component auditors and all others that were not physically
visited. At these visits and meetings, the findings reported to the
Group team were discussed in more detail, and any further work
required by the Group team was then performed by the
component auditor.



4. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON GOING CONCERN
The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or the Group or to cease their operations, and as they
have concluded that the Company’s and the Group’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded
that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern
for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements (‘the going concern period’).

Our responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of
the Directors’ conclusions and, had there been a material
uncertainty related to going concern, to make reference to
that in this audit report. However, as we cannot predict all
future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor’s report is
not a guarantee that the Group and the Company will continue
in operation.

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered
the inherent risks to the Group’s and Company’s business model
and analysed how those risks might affect the Group’s and
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations
over the going concern period. The risks that we considered
most likely to adversely affect the Group’s and Company’s
available financial resources over this period were:

e Costinflation pressures leading to loss of revenue and profits;

¢ [nability to retain and/or secure new contracts may lead to loss
of market share to competition; and

e The impact of political uncertainties, for example the impact
of Brexit on the UK business, leading to a loss of confidence
and reduced spending on food services.

As these were risks that could potentially cast significant doubt
on the Group’s and the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, we considered sensitivities over the level of available
financial resources indicated by the Group’s financial forecasts
taking account of reasonably possible (but not unrealistic)
adverse effects that could arise from these risks individually and
collectively and evaluated the achievability of the actions the
Directors consider they would take to improve the position
should the risks materialise. We also considered less predictable
but realistic second order impacts, such as the impact of Brexit
and the erosion of customer or supplier confidence, which could
result in a rapid reduction of available financial resources.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if:

¢ we have anything material to add or draw attention to in
relation to the Directors’ statement in Note A to the financial
statements on the use of the going concern basis of
accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt over the Group and Company’s use of that
basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements; or

e the related statement under the Listing Rules set out on
page 40 is materially inconsistent with our audit knowledge.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did not
identify going concern as a key audit matter.

5. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express
an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit
work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit
knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic
report and the Directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the
financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and

e in our opinion those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of principal risks and longer-term viability
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our financial
statements audit, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

e the Directors’ confirmation within the viability statement on
page 40 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency
and liquidity;

e the Principal Risks disclosures describing these risks and
explaining how they are being managed and mitigated; and

e the Directors’ explanation in the viability statement of how
they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they considered that period
to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the viability
statement. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the context of
only the knowledge acquired during our financial statements
audit. As we cannot predict all future events or conditions and
as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time
they were made, the absence of anything to report on these
statements is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s
longer-term viability.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Corporate governance disclosures
We are required to report to you if:

¢ we have identified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit
and the Directors’ statement that they consider that the
Annual Report and financial statements taken as a whole is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
position and performance, business model and strategy; or

e the section of the Annual Report describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

We are required to report to you if the Corporate Governance
Statement does not properly disclose a departure from the
eleven provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT

BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you
if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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7. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 130,
the Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; assessing the Group and parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or
the parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so. In addition the Directors are responsible
for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or other
irregularities (see below), or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud, other irregularities or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC'’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably
be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements
from our general commercial and sector experience, and
through discussion with the Directors and other management
(as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the
Group’s regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed
with the directors and other management the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We
communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our
team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. This included communication from the
Group to component audit teams of relevant laws and
regulations identified at Group level.


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly
affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (including related companies legislation),
distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation and we
assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial
statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial
statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or
litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to
have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery and
employment law. Auditing standards limit the required audit
procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other management
and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Through these procedures, we became aware of actual or
suspected non-compliance and considered the effect as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items. The
identified actual or suspected non-compliance was not
sufficiently significant to our audit to result in our response being
identified as a key audit matter.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements,
the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by
auditing standards would identify it. In addition, as with any
audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of
irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance
and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws
and regulations.

8. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM
WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Sl ot

Paul Korolkiewicz (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square, London E14 5GL

26 November 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 September 2019

2018

2019 (restated")

Notes £m £m

Combined sales of Group and share of equity accounted joint ventures 2,35 25,152 23,147
Less: share of sales of equity accounted joint ventures 13 (274) (275)
Revenue 24,878 22,872
Operating costs 3 (23,308) (21,229)
Operating profit before joint ventures and associates 1,570 1,643
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates 2,13 31 50
Operating profit 2 1,601 1,693
Underlying operating profit? 2,35 1,882 1,744
Acquisition related costs 3 (54) (49)
One-off pension charge 22 (12) -
Cost action programme charge 3 (190) -
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates held for sale 13 (25) -
Tax on share of profit of joint ventures — (2)
Net loss on sale and closure of businesses 25 (7) (58)
Finance income 5 12 6
Finance costs 5 (122) (120)
Other financing items (loss)/gain 5 (15) 2
Profit before tax 6 1,469 1,523
Income tax expense 6 (351) (385)
Profit for the year 1,118 1,138

ATTRIBUTABLE TO

Equity shareholders of the Company 7 1,110 1,130
Non-controlling interests 8 8
Profit for the year 1,118 1,138
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (PENCE) 7 70.0p 71.3p
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (PENCE) 7 69.9p 71.3p

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional

information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

2. Underlying operating profit excludes acquisition related costs, one-off pension charge and cost action programme charge, but includes share of profit after
tax of associates and operating profit before tax of joint ventures, including those classified as held for sale. The reconciliation between statutory and

underlying results is provided in note 34.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2019

2018
2019 (restated!)
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 1,118 1,138
Other comprehensive income
Items that are not reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations — (loss)/gain 22 (357) 68
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income — gain 22 425 21
Tax charge on items relating to the components of other comprehensive income 6 (10) (29)
58 60
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Currency translation differences 131 (76)
Reclassification adjustment for movements in foreign exchange on sale of businesses 6 -
Tax on items relating to the components of other comprehensive income 6 (2) (1)
135 (77)
Total other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year 193 (17)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,311 1,121
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity shareholders of the Company 1,303 1,113
Non-controlling interests 8 8
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,311 1,121
1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional

information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 September 2019

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share Capital Non-
Share premium redemption Own Other Retained controlling
capital account reserve shares reserves earnings interests Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 September 2018, as reported 176 182 295 — 4,208 (2,246) 25 2,640
Impact of change in accounting standards —
IFRS 15 1 — — — — — 27 — 27
At 30 September 2018, restated! 176 182 295 - 4,208 (2,219) 25 2,667
Impact of change in accounting standards —
IFRS 9 1 — — — — — (15) — (15)
At 1 October 2018, restated! 176 182 295 — 4,208 (2,234) 25 2,652
Profit for the year — — — — — 1,110 8 1,118
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences — - — - 131 — — 131
Remeasurement of post employment benefit
obligations — loss 22 - — - — - (357) - (357)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest
income — gain 22 - - - - — 425 — 425
Tax on items relating to the components of other
comprehensive income 6 — — — - (2) (10) — (12)
Reclassification adjustment for movements in
foreign exchange on sale of businesses — — — — 6 — 6
Total other comprehensive income — — — — 135 58 — 193
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — 135 1,168 8 1,311
Fair value of share-based payments 24 - — - — 27 - - 27
Changes to non-controlling interests due to
acquisitions and disposals — — — — — — (1) (1)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 6 - — - — - 4 - 4
Change in the fair value of non-controlling
interest put options — - - - (8) - - (8)
Purchase of own shares to satisfy employee
share-based payments — - — (4) — — — 4)
Other changes — — — — — (3) — (3)
176 182 295 (4) 4,362 (1,065) 32 3,978
Dividends paid to shareholders 8 - — - - - (611) - (611)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests — — - — — — (5) (5)
At 30 September 2019 176 182 295 (4) 4,362 (1,676) 27 3,362

1. The Group has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ effective for the year ended 30 September 2019.
IFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively and comparatives for the prior year have been restated, whilst IFRS 9 has been applied prospectively from
1 October 2018 by adjusting the opening balance sheet at that date. Additional information about the transitional impact of these standards is included in note 1.

Adjustment
for non-
controlling
Share-based interest put
payment Merger  Revaluation Translation options  Total other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves
OTHER RESERVES Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2018 232 4,170 7 (130) (71) 4,208
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences - - - 131 — 131
Reclassification adjustment for movements in
foreign exchange on sale of businesses — - - 6 — 6
Tax on items relating to the components of other
comprehensive income 6 - - — (2) - (2)
Total other comprehensive income — — — 135 — 135
Fair value of share-based payments 24 27 - — — — 27
Change in the fair value of non-controlling
interest put options — — — — (8) (8)
At 30 September 2019 259 4,170 7 5 (79) 4,362

Own shares held by the Group represent 187,455 ordinary shares in Compass Group PLC (2018: nil ordinary shares) and are held by the Compass Group All
Share Schemes Trust (ASST). These shares are listed on a recognised stock exchange and their market value at 30 September 2019 was £3.9 million (2018:

£nil). The nominal value held at 30 September 2019 was £20,714 (2018: £nil).

ASST is a discretionary trust for the benefit of employees and the shares held are used to satisfy some of the Group’s liabilities to employees for long term

incentive plans.

The merger reserve arose in 2000 following the demerger from Granada Compass plc.
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share Capital Non-
Share premium redemption Oown Other Retained controlling
capital  account reserve shares  reserves earnings interests Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2017, as reported 176 182 295 - 4,320 (2,875) 22 2,120
Impact of change in accounting standards —
IFRS 15 1 - - - - - 22 — 22
At 1 October 2017, restated! 176 182 295 - 4,320 (2,853) 22 2,142
Profit for the year! - - - - — 1,130 8 1,138
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences - - - - (76) - - (76)
Remeasurement of post employment benefit
obligations — gain 22 - - - - - 68 - 68
Return on plan assets, excluding interest
income — gain 22 - - - - — 21 — 21
Tax on items relating to the components of other
comprehensive income 6 - - - - (1) (29) - (30)
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income - - - — (77) 60 — (17) g
Total comprehensive (loss)/income S
for the year! - - — — (77) 1,190 8 1,121 g
Fair value of share-based payments 24 - - - - 21 - - 21 3
=
Changes to non-controlling interests due to B
acquisitions and disposals - - - - — (5) 4 (1) 3
Tax on items taken directly to equity 6 - - - - - 1 - 1 “;'
Change in the fair value of non-controlling %
interest put options - - - - (56) - - (56) 3
Other changes - - - - - (4) - (4) Z
176 182 295 - 4,208 (1,671) 34 3,224
Dividends paid to shareholders 8 - - - - — (548) — (548)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - — (9) (9)
At 30 September 2018! 176 182 295 — 4,208 (2,219) 25 2,667

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group's retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional
information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

Adjustment
for non-
controlling
Share-based interest put
payment Merger Revaluation Translation options Total other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves
OTHER RESERVES Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2017 211 4,170 7 (53) (15) 4,320
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences - - - (76) — (76)
Tax on items relating to the components of other
comprehensive income 6 - - — (1) — (1)
Total other comprehensive loss - - - (77) — (77)
Fair value of share-based payments 24 21 - - - - 21
Change in fair value of non-controlling
interest put options - - - - (56) (56)
At 30 September 2018 232 4,170 7 (130) (71) 4,208
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 30 September 2019

30 September
2018 1 October 2017
2019 (restated?) (restated!)
Notes £m £m £m
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 9 4,576 4,270 3,994
Other intangible assets 10 1,426 1,105 836
Contract fulfilment assets and contract costs 11 976 838 738
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,052 1,006 1,000
Interests in joint ventures and associates 13 226 263 220
Other investments 14 96 73 63
Post employment benefit assets 22 448 346 259
Trade and other receivables 15 96 105 104
Deferred tax assets 6 76 45 132
Derivative financial instruments? 19 207 83 139
Non-current assets 2 9,179 8,134 7,485
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 16 404 353 353
Trade and other receivables 15 3,051 2,852 2,696
Tax recoverable 88 69 86
Cash and cash equivalents? 17 398 969 387
Derivative financial instruments? 19 — 34 4
3,941 4,277 3,526
Assets held for sale 2,25 190 236 —
Current assets 4,131 4,513 3,526
Total assets 2 13,310 12,647 11,011
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings? 18 (186) (813) (20)
Derivative financial instruments? 19 (6) (12) (6)
Provisions 21 (223) (167) (132)
Current tax liabilities (247) (227) (227)
Trade and other payables 20 (4,718) (4,317) (3,892)
(5,380) (5,536) (4,277)
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 2,25 (30) (72) —
Current liabilities (5,410) (5,608) (4,277)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings? 18 (3,679) (3,611) (3,939)
Derivative financial instruments? 19 (6) (33) (11)
Post employment benefit obligations 22 (259) (224) (231)
Provisions 21 (266) (227) (266)
Deferred tax liabilities 6 (114) (57) (58)
Trade and other payables 20 (214) (220) (87)
Non-current liabilities (4,538) (4,372) (4,592)
Total liabilities 2 (9,948) (9,980) (8,869)
Net assets 2 3,362 2,667 2,142
EQUITY
Share capital 23 176 176 176
Share premium account 182 182 182
Capital redemption reserve 295 295 295
Own shares (4) - -
Other reserves 4,362 4,208 4,320
Retained earnings (1,676) (2,219) (2,853)
Total equity shareholders' funds 3,335 2,642 2,120
Non-controlling interests 27 25 22
Total equity 3,362 2,667 2,142

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional

information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

2. Component of net debt.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 November 2019 and signed on its behalf by

Dominic Blakemore, Director
Karen Witts, Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 September 2019

2018
2019 (restated!)
Notes £m £m
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 26 2,396 2,270
Interest paid (116) (101)
Tax received 26 26
Tax paid 6 (354) (349)
Net cash from operating activities 1,952 1,846
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of subsidiary companies? 25 (451) (420)
Purchase of additional interest in joint ventures and associates 13 (27) (32)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary companies, joint ventures and associates net of exit costs? 101 39
Purchase of intangible assets (185) (164)
Purchase of contract fulfilment assets 11 (286) (261)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (352) (359)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets/contract fulfilment assets 47 b4
Purchase of other investments 14 (13) (8)
Proceeds from sale of other investments 14 3 1 9
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates?® 13 48 35 §
Interest received 9 6 §
Net cash from investing activities (1,106) (1,109) g_"
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES '5'1
Purchase of own shares to satisfy employee share-based payments* 4) - s
Receipts from issue of treasury shares to satisfy employee share scheme awards exercised — 1 §
Purchase of non-controlling interests = (5) g
Increase in borrowings 27 1,830 1,506 g’
Repayment of borrowings 27 (2,631) (1,074) o
Repayment of obligations under finance leases 27 4) (6) @
Equity dividends paid 8 (611) (548)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (5) (9)
Net cash from financing activities (1,425) (135)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 27 (579) 602
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 17,27 969 387
Currency translation gains on cash and cash equivalents 27 9 2
Total cash and cash equivalents 399 991
Cash reclassified as held for sale 25,27 (1) (22)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17,27 398 969

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. There is no
net cash impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. Additional information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

2. Net of cash acquired or disposed and payments received or made under warranties and indemnities.

3. Includes dividends received from joint ventures and associates classified as held for sale.

4. Including stamp duty and brokers’ commission.

RECONCILIATION OF FREE CASH FLOW

2018

2019 (restated!)

£m £m

Net cash from operating activities 1,952 1,846
Purchase of intangible assets (185) (164)
Purchase of contract fulfilment assets (286) (261)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (352) (359)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets/contract fulfilment assets 47 54
Purchase of other investments (13) (8)
Proceeds from sale of other investments 3 1
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 48 35
Interest received 9 6
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (5) (9)
Free cash flow 1,218 1,141
Add back: Cash related to cost action programme in the year 29 —
Underlying free cash flow 1,247 1,141

1. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group's retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. There is no
net cash impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. Additional information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2019

INTRODUCTION
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the Group’s financial statements are set out below:

A ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union that
are effective for the year ended 30 September 2019. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of certain financial instruments.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Group’s business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 63. The
financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position
and borrowing facilities are discussed in the Business Review on
pages 34 to 40. The Group has considerable financial resources
together with longer term contracts with a number of clients and
suppliers across different geographic areas and industries. As a
consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed
to manage its business risks successfully.

In the current financial year, the Group has adopted:

e |FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and
subsequent amendments 'Clarifications to IFRS 15

e |[FRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

e Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions’

e Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2014—2016 cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

e |FRIC 22 ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration’

The Group has updated its accounting policies to reflect the
impact of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 as described below. There is no
significant impact on the Group's consolidated results or
balance sheet as a result of adopting other new IFRS standards.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers'

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ and subsequent amendments ‘Clarifications to IFRS
15" on 1 October 2018. IFRS 15 sets out the requirements for
recognising revenue and costs from contracts with customers
and includes additional disclosure requirements. The standard
establishes a five-step model that applies to revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for goods and services and at
a point when the performance obligations associated with these
goods and services have been satisfied.

The Group has applied the standard on a fully retrospective
basis, restating prior period and year end comparatives and
electing to use the following expedients:
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e Expedient not to disclose the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an
explanation of when the Group expects to recognise that
amount as revenue for the comparative reporting periods
presented before 1 October 2018

e Expedients in relation to the use of hindsight in contracts with
variable consideration and contracts that were completed
and/or modified before the beginning of the comparative
periods presented

The adjustment to opening retained earnings at 1 October 2017
arising from the changes to revenue recognition amounted to
1% of total equity. Further details of the change in the Group’s
accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition and an
explanation of the impact on the Group's prior period financial
statements are set out in note 1.

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments'

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' on

1 October 2018. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a material
impact and the Group has adjusted opening retained earnings to
reflect additional provision for impairment of trade receivables
using the expected credit loss model. Further details of the
change in the Group's accounting policy in respect of the
classification and measurement of financial instruments and an
explanation of the impact on the Group's financial statements
are setoutin note 1.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following accounting standards, interpretations and
amendments that are applicable to the Group and effective in
future years have been issued by the IASB and endorsed by the
European Union:

e |[FRS 16 ‘Leases’
e |FRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’

e Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Prepayment features with negative
compensation’

¢ Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Long term interests in associates and
joint ventures’

Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement’

Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle

e Amendments to references to the conceptual framework in
IFRS standards

e Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Definition of a business’

e Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 ‘Definition of material’

The Group has not yet adopted these pronouncements and does
not currently believe that the adoption of these standards,
amendments or interpretations would have a material effect on
the consolidated results or financial position of the Group unless
stated otherwise.



IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease' and related
interpretations. The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and will be adopted by the
Group on 1 October 2019.

IFRS 16 changes lease accounting for lessees and will impact
the Group’s financial statements as follows:

® |ease agreements will give rise to the recognition of an asset
representing the right to use the leased item and a liability for
future lease payments. The liability recorded for future lease
payments will be for amounts payable for the ‘reasonably
certain’ period of the lease, which may include future lease
periods for which the Group has options to extend the
minimum lease term. Liabilities will be discounted at the
incremental borrowing rate for each lease based on factors
such as the lessee legal entity, lease term and currency.
Under IAS 17, future operating lease payments are generally
not recorded on the balance sheet but disclosed as
commitments on an undiscounted basis, see note 30

® |ease costs will be recognised in the form of depreciation of
the right to use the asset and interest on the lease liability.
Interest charges will typically be higher in the early stages of a
lease and will reduce over the term. Under IAS 17, operating
lease rentals have been expensed on a straight-line basis over
the lease term within operating expenses (see note 3)

e net cash inflows from operating activities and payments
classified within cash flow from financing activities will both
increase, as payments made at both lease inception and
subsequently will be characterised as repayments of lease
liabilities and interest. There is no net cash impact as a result
of the adoption of IFRS 16

Lessee accounting for finance leases will be similar under

IFRS 16 to existing IAS 17 accounting. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is also similar to existing IAS 17 accounting and is
expected to be materially the same for the Group.

The main judgement in applying IFRS 16 relates to the
determination of the lease term and whether optional periods
should be included. Lease terms under IFRS 16 may exceed the
minimum lease period and include optional lease periods where
it is reasonably certain that an extension option will be exercised
or that a termination option will not be exercised by the Group.
Lease terms are assessed based on the Group's business plans
and historical experience.

The Group will adopt IFRS 16 on a modified retrospective basis

with the initial cumulative impact of applying the standard as an
adjustment to retained earnings on the date of adoption with no
restatement of comparative information.

The Group intends to apply the following transition practical
expedients allowed under IFRS 16:

e the right of use assets will be measured at an amount equal to
the lease liability at adoption. Existing lease prepayments will
also be added to the value of the right of use assets on
adoption and existing lease provisions and accruals will be
deducted

e reliance will be placed on existing onerous lease assessments
under IAS 37 to impair right of use assets recognised on
adoption instead of performing a new impairment assessment
for those assets on adoption

® |eases with a lease term end date within one year of the date
of initial application will not be recognised on the balance
sheet

e no reassessment will be performed as to whether existing
contracts are, or contain, a lease at the date of initial
application

As an accounting policy choice, the Group will not recognise
leases for low value assets, which the Group considers to be
those with an initial fair value less than approximately £5,000, or
leases with a term of 12 months or less on the balance sheet.

The Group has finalised its IFRS 16 accounting policies,
determined the appropriate discount rates to apply to lease
payments, selected and implemented an IT system to collate
and report lease data and established procedures and controls
for accounting and reporting under IFRS 16.

The Group’s current estimate of the impact of these changes

on the consolidated balance sheet on adoption is the recognition
of an additional lease liability at 1 October 2019 of between
£950 million and £1,050 million. The additional lease liability will
not equal the operating lease commitment disclosed in note 30
primarily because: a) lease terms determined under IFRS 16
may be longer than under IAS 17; b) lease liabilities will be
discounted under IFRS 16; and c) low value and short term
leases will not be included in the Group's lease liability.

The right of use asset recognised at 1 October 2019 is expected
to be slightly lower than the lease liability, as the value of existing
lease prepayments added to the balance is expected to be lower
than the value of accruals and provisions for onerous leases that
are deducted. Overall, these adjustments are not expected to
have a material impact on Group retained earnings.

The net impact on the consolidated income statement for the
year to 30 September 2020 is expected to be immaterial. The
final impact of adopting IFRS 16 will depend on factors that may
occur during the year including new leases entered into,
changes or reassessments of the Group’s existing lease portfolio
and changes to exchange rates or discount rates.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

These impacts are based on the assessments undertaken to
date. The exact financial impacts of the accounting changes of
adopting IFRS 16 at 1 October 2019 may be revised. The Group
will issue further details on the impact of adopting IFRS 16 as
part of the condensed financial statements for the six months
ending 31 March 2020.

B CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These
estimates, judgements and assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The Group's accounting policies do not include any
critical judgements. The policies which require the most use of
management estimation are set out below, however none of
these estimates are expected to have a material adjustment in
the next financial year:

TAXES

The Group has operations in around 45 countries that are
subject to direct and indirect taxes. The tax position is often not
agreed with tax authorities until sometime after the relevant
period end and, if subject to a tax audit, may be open for an
extended period. In these circumstances, the recognition of tax
liabilities and assets requires management estimation to reflect
a variety of factors; these include the status of any ongoing tax
audits, historical experience, interpretations of tax law and the
likelihood of settlement.

The changing regulatory environment affecting all multi-
nationals increases the estimation uncertainty associated
with calculating the Group’s tax position. This is as a result
of amendments to tax law at the national level, increased
co operation between tax authorities and greater cross
border transparency.

The Group estimates and recognises additional tax liabilities as
appropriate based on management’s interpretation of country
specific tax law, external advice and the likelihood of settlement.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the results in the year in which such determination is
made. Further details of this are provided in note 6 and note 28.

In addition, calculation and recognition of temporary differences
giving rise to deferred tax assets requires estimates and
judgements to be made on the extent to which future taxable
profits are available against which these temporary differences
can be utilised.
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GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
section M on page 150. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (CGU) have been determined based on value in
use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions consistent with the most up to date budgets
and plans that have been formally approved by management.
The key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are
set out in note 9.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with |AS 19.
The present value of the defined benefit liabilities is based on
assumptions determined with independent actuarial advice. The
size of the net surplus/deficit is sensitive to the market value of
the assets held by the schemes and to actuarial assumptions,
which include price inflation, pension and salary increases, the
discount rate used in assessing actuarial liabilities, mortality and
other demographic assumptions and the levels of contributions.
Further details and sensitivities are included in note 22.

C BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial
statements of the Company, entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) and the Group’s share of interests in joint
arrangements and associates made up to 30 September

each year.

D SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
ARRANGEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has control.
Control exists when the Company has power over an entity,
exposure to variable returns from its involvement with an entity
and the ability to use its power over the entity to affect its
returns. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are also considered
when assessing control.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are undertakings that are not subsidiaries or joint
arrangements over which the Group has significant influence
and can participate in financial and operating policy decisions.
Investments in associated undertakings are accounted for using
the equity method. The consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the profit after tax of the associated
undertakings. Investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition and are carried in the Group balance
sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in value.



JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are entities in which the Group holds an
interest on a long term basis and which are jointly controlled by
the Group and other entities under a contractual agreement.
The Group accounts for its own share of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses measured according to the terms of the
agreements covering the joint operations. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

ADJUSTMENTS

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used
in line with those used by the Group.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The results of subsidiaries, associates or joint arrangements
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of

acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation. Where a Group subsidiary transacts
with a joint operation of the Group, profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
joint operation.

E ACQUISITIONS

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed are recognised at the fair values at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal
groups) that are classified as held for sale which are recognised
and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

The cost of the acquisition in excess of the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of the acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Where not all the equity of a subsidiary is acquired, the non-
controlling interest is recognised at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the net assets of the subsidiary. Put
options over non-controlling interests are recognised as a
financial liability measured at fair value which is re-evaluated at
each year end with a corresponding entry in other reserves.

F FOREIGN CURRENCY
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in sterling,
which is the functional and reporting currency of the Company.

In preparing the financial statements of individual companies
within the Group, transactions in currencies other than the
companies’ functional currency are recorded at the rates of
exchange on the dates of the transaction. At each balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates on the balance
sheet date. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are
included in the consolidated income statement for the year,
except for where they arise on items taken directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case they are also recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks
the Group enters into forward currency contracts (see section Q
for the Group’s accounting policies in respect of derivative
financial instruments).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations (expressed in their functional currencies,
being the currency of the primary economic environment in
which each entity operates) are translated at the exchange rates
on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expense in the period in
which the operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

G REVENUE AND CONTRACT COSTS

Revenue represents income derived from contracts for the
provision of food and support services by the Group to
customers in exchange for consideration in the normal course of
business. The Group’s revenue is comprised of revenues under
its contracts with clients. Clients engage the Group to provide
food and support services at their locations. Depending on the
type of client and service, we are paid either by our client and/or
directly by the consumers to whom we have been provided
access by our client, such as the client’s employees, visitors,
pupils, patients and spectators.

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

The Company recognises revenue when its performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are satisfied
as control of the goods and services is transferred to the client
and/or consumers. In certain cases, clients engage us to provide
food and support services in a single multi service contract. We
recognise revenue for each separate performance obligation in
respect of food and support services as these are provided.
There is little judgement involved in determining if a
performance obligation has been satisfied.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

At contract inception, the contract is assessed to identify each
promise to transfer either a distinct good or service or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and
have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. Goods and
services are distinct and accounted for as separate performance
obligations in the contract if the customer can benefit from them
either on their own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer and they are separately
identifiable in the contract. Performance obligations are usually
clearly identified within contracts and revenue is recognised for
each separate performance obligation. Generally, where the
Group has the obligation to its clients to make available the
provision of food service for a predetermined period, its
performance obligation represents a series of services delivered
over time. There are also contracts under which the Group sells
products directly to consumers and these performance
obligations represent a transfer of a good at a point in time.

TRANSACTION PRICE

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods and services to the customer, excluding value
added tax and similar sales taxes. For example, the transaction
price may be based on a price per meal, which may vary with
volume, or could be based on costs incurred plus an agreed
management fee.

The Group makes a variety of ongoing payments to clients,
mainly commissions, concession rentals and reimbursement of
utility costs. These are assessed for treatment as consideration
paid to customers and where they are not in exchange for a
distinct good or service they are recognised as a reduction of the
transaction price. In addition, the Group may make a cash
payment to a client typically at the start of a contract which is
not an investment in service assets and does not generate or
enhance the Group’s resources. Such payments are reported as
prepayments and, as they are considered not to be in exchange
for a distinct good or service, they are charged to the income
statement as a deduction to revenue recognised over the
contract term rather than as an operating cost.

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied
as control of the goods and services is transferred to the
customer. For each performance obligation within a contract,
the Group determines whether it is satisfied over time or ata
pointin time.

The Group has determined that most of its performance
obligations are satisfied over time as the client simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group as
the food service and/or support service are rendered at the client
site. In these circumstances, revenue is recognised at the
amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where that
amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the Group’s performance completed to date. Where the Group

is contracted to sell directly to consumers, for example in a
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retail café concession, the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time, namely when the products are sold to
the consumer.

The nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows for performance obligations within a contract that are
satisfied over time and at a point in time are considered to be
similar and they are affected by the same economic factors.

COSTS TO OBTAIN A CONTRACT

Costs incurred during the bidding period, prior to a contract
being awarded, are expensed to the income statement. Costs
incurred in securing the contract after preferred bidder status
has been obtained are generally expensed as incurred, unless
they fulfil the conditions for capitalisation as an asset.

The incremental costs to obtain a contract with a customer,
such as commissions to the salesforce, are capitalised if it is
expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a
contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether
the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the
period. Only commissions directly attributable to an individual
contract award are capitalised, while commissions payable due
to multiple contract wins or due to a portfolio of client contracts
are expensed as incurred as they cannot be directly attributable
to an identified contract.

COSTS TO FULFIL A CONTRACT

Costs incurred in the fulfilment of the Group’s obligations to the
client under the contract are recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet and include contributions towards service assets,
such as kitchen and restaurant fit out costs and equipment,
which are capitalised as contract fulfilment assets. Contract
fulfilment costs covered within the scope of another accounting
standard, such as property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, are not capitalised as contract fulfilment assets but are
treated according to other standards.

UTILISATION, DERECOGNITION AND IMPAIRMENT OF
CONTRACT FULFILMENT ASSETS AND CAPITALISED
COSTS TO OBTAIN A CONTRACT

Contract fulfilment assets are amortised on a straight line basis
over the shorter of the life of the client contract and the useful
economic life of the assets. The amortisation charge is included
within operating costs. Costs incurred to obtain a contract are
unwound over the life of the client contract as an expense.

Capitalised costs are derecognised either when disposed of or
when no further economic benefits are expected to flow from
their use or disposal.

Whenever impairment indicators exist, the Group determines
the recoverability of the contract fulfiiment assets and
capitalised costs to obtain a contract by comparing their
carrying amount to the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive less the costs that relate to
providing services under the relevant contract.



H REBATES AND OTHER AMOUNTS RECEIVED FROM
SUPPLIERS

Rebates and other amounts received from suppliers include
agreed discounts from suppliers’ list prices, value and volume
related rebates.

Income from value and volume related rebates is recognised
based on actual purchases in the period as a proportion of total
purchases made or forecast to be made over the rebate period.

Rebates received in respect of plant and equipment are
deducted from the costs capitalised and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in line with depreciation.

Agreed discounts relating to inventories are credited to
the income statement within cost of sales as the goods
are consumed.

Rebates relating to items purchased, but still held at the
balance sheet date, are deducted from the carrying value of
these items so that the cost of inventories is recorded net of
applicable rebates.

| BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

J OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is stated after the share of profit after tax of joint
ventures and associates, and before finance costs.

K EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately in the
consolidated financial statements where it is necessary to do so
to provide further understanding of the financial performance of
the Group. They are material items of income or expense that
have been shown separately due to the significance of their
nature or amount.

L TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement except where
it relates to items taken directly to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or
equity as appropriate.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the period, using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted in respect of that period by the balance
sheet date. Tax benefits are recognised if it is probable that
these will be accepted by the relevant tax authorities.
Subsequently, they are reviewed each year to assess whether
provisions against full recognition of the benefits are necessary.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in joint arrangements, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
jurisdiction and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

M INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary,
associate or joint arrangement at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment
testing. A CGU is identified at the lowest aggregation of assets
that generate largely independent cash inflows, and that which
is looked at by management for monitoring and managing the
business and relates to the total business for a country. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment is
immediately recognised in the consolidated income statement
and an impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
subsequently reversed.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

On disposal, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to
IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts
subject to being tested for impairment at that date. Goodwill
written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not
been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subsequent gain or loss on disposal.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost or,
if acquired as part of a business combination, are capitalised at
fair value as at the date of the acquisition. Group investment in
rights to generate significant consumer revenue under client
contracts is recognised at cost as other intangible assets.
Amortisation is charged on a straight line basis over the
expected useful lives of the assets. Internally generated
intangible assets are not capitalised. Intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment annually.

The following rates applied for the Group:

e client contract related intangible assets: the life
of the contract

e computer software: 20% to 33% per annum
The typical life of contract related intangibles is 2 to 20 years.

Client contracts related intangible assets arising on acquisition
of a business are recognised at fair value and amortised over
the life of the contract, including the renewal period where
appropriate. Underlying operating profit and underlying
earnings per share exclude the amortisation of contract related
intangible assets arising on acquisition of a business as it is not
considered to be relevant to the underlying trading performance
of the Group.

N PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when there
are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property, plant and
equipment assets are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment in value.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the
anticipated useful lives of the assets.

The following rates applied for the Group:

e freehold buildings and long term leasehold property:
2% per annum

e short term leasehold property: the life of the lease

e plant and machinery: 8% to 33% per annum

e fixtures and fittings: 8% to 33% per annum

When assets are sold, the difference between sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assets is dealt with in the
consolidated income statement.
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O ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if the carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable,
management is committed to a sale plan, the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is
expected to be completed within one year from the date of
classification. Goodwill is allocated to the held for sale business
on a relative fair value basis where this business forms part of a
larger CGU. Investments in joint ventures and associates that
have been classified as held for sale are no longer accounted for
using the equity method. These assets are measured at the
lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.

P INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using either the weighted average price
or the first in, first out method as appropriate to the
circumstances. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Q FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
liabilities, including derivative financial instruments,
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
period end exchange rates. Financial assets are classified as
either fair value through profit and loss, fair value through other
comprehensive income, or amortised cost. Classification and
subsequent remeasurement depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial asset and its cash flow
characteristics. Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost.

INVESTMENTS
Other investments comprising debt and equity instruments are
recognised at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

Debt instruments are classified at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in
the income statement. When the debt instrument is
derecognised, cumulative amounts in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement.

Equity investments have been irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, and are not subsequently
reclassified to the Group income statement, including

on derecognition.



Impairment losses are not recognised separately from other
changes in fair value. Dividends are recognised in the Group
income statement when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

Other investments that are not equity investments, whose cash
flows are not solely principal and interest or are not held in order
to collect contractual cash flows, are classified and measured at
fair value through profit and loss. Investments are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
direct issue costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method, unless included
in a fair value hedge.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge the risks
associated with changes in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the contract date, and are remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s
policies approved by the Board of Directors that provide written
principles on the use of financial derivatives consistent with the
Group's risk management strategy. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is determined by reference to market values for
similar instruments.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as
either fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or cash flow hedges where they
hedge the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a forecasted transaction; or net investment
hedges where they hedge the exposure to foreign currency
arising from a net investment in foreign operations.

Fair value hedges. In relation to fair value hedges which meet
the conditions for hedge accounting, any gain or loss from
remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. Any gain or
loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is
adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged item and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Where the
adjustment is to an unrecognised firm commitment, an asset or
liability is recognised on the balance sheet. When the hedged
transaction occurs, that asset or liability is recognised in the
initial measurement of the acquisition cost and carrying amount
of the asset or liability. Where the adjustment is to the carrying
amount of a hedged interest bearing financial instrument, the
adjustment is amortised to the net profit and loss such that it is
fully amortised by maturity.

When fair value hedge accounting is discontinued, any
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item for the
designated risk for interest bearing financial instruments is
amortised to profit or loss, with amortisation commencing no
later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted.

Cash flow hedges. The Group’s policy is to convert a proportion
of its floating rate debt to fixed rates, using floating to fixed
interest rate swaps. The Group may designate these as cash flow
hedges of interest rate risk whenever the hedge accounting
conditions are met. There are no hedging relationships currently
designated as cash flow hedges.

Net investment hedges. The Group uses foreign currency
denominated debt, forward currency contracts and cross
currency swaps to partially hedge against the change in the
sterling value of its foreign currency denominated net assets due
to movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group designates
these as a hedge of its net investments in foreign operations and
recognises the gains or losses on the retranslation of the
borrowings in other comprehensive income. If the Group uses
derivatives as the hedging instrument, the effective portion of
the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income, with
any ineffective portion being recognised immediately in the
income statement. Exchange differences arising from a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a Group foreign
operation, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely in
the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a net
investment in a foreign operation and are recognised directly in
equity in the translation reserve.

Gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income
are recycled through the consolidated income statement on
disposal of the foreign operation.

For derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value are taken directly to the consolidated income
statement in the period.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. At that point in time, any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept in
equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the
consolidated income statement in the period.

R LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated income statement.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to income
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. Any
incentives to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

S PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured at the directors’ best estimate of the cost of settling
these liabilities and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

T EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PENSION OBLIGATIONS
The Group operates two types of pension plans:

e Defined contribution plans where the Group makes
contributions to a member’s pension plan but has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid

e Defined benefit plans which provide pension payments upon
retirement to members as defined by the plan rules
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For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
separately administered pension plans. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions payable by the Group in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged to the consolidated
income statement when they are due. Payments made to state
managed schemes are treated as payments to defined
contribution schemes where the Group’s obligations under the
schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
pension scheme.

For defined benefit plans, the calculation of the defined benefit
obligation is performed at least once a year by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The
consolidated balance sheet reflects a net asset or net liability for
each defined benefit pension plan. The liability recognised is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation discounted using
the yields on high quality corporate bonds less the fair value of
plan assets (at bid price), if any. If the fair value of the plan
assets exceeds the defined benefit obligation, a pension surplus
is only recognised if the Group considers that it has an
unconditional right to a refund.

For the UK defined benefit plan, the Group considers that it has
an unconditional right to a refund of a surplus, assuming the
gradual settlement of the plan liabilities over time until all
members have left the plan. The trustees cannot unconditionally
wind up the plan or use the surplus to enhance member benefits
without employer consent. The Group’s judgement is that these
trustee rights do not prevent the Group from recognising an
unconditional right to a refund and therefore a surplus.

Net interest income (if a plan is in surplus) or interest expense (if
a plan is in deficit) is calculated using yields on high quality
corporate bonds and recognised in the consolidated income
statement. A current service cost is also recognised which
represents the expected present value of the defined benefit
pension entitlement earned by members in the period.

Remeasurements, which include gains and losses as a result of
changes in actuarial assumptions, the effect of the limit on the
plan surplus (if any) and returns on plan assets (other than
amounts included in net interest) are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.



OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Some Group companies provide other post employment
benefits. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over
the period of employment using a similar basis to that used for
defined benefit pension schemes. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees. In accordance with the requirements of

IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’, the Group has applied IFRS 2 to
all equity-settled share options granted after 7 November 2002
that had vested before 1 January 2005.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured using either the binomial distribution or
Black-Scholes pricing models as is most appropriate for each
scheme. The expected life used in the models has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

HOLIDAY PAY

Paid holidays and similar entitlements are regarded as an
employee benefit and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as the benefits are earned. An accrual is made at the
balance sheet date to reflect the fair value of holidays earned
but not taken.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ — impact of the adoption

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is
included below. IFRS 15 has been adopted retrospectively and prior year comparatives have been restated. The following tables
show the impact of these changes on each of the Group’s primary statement line items affected. Where practical, line items which
are not impacted by the restatement have been aggregated within the relevant sub-totals. The impact of the new standard is also

explained in more detail within the footnotes that follow the tables.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (EXTRACT)

Year ended
30 September Year ended
2018 30 September
As previously 2018
reported IFRS 15 Restated
Notes £m £m £m
Combined sales of Group and share of equity accounted joint ventures (i), (iv) 23,239 (92) 23,147
Less: share of sales of equity accounted joint ventures (275) — (275)
Revenue (i), (iv) 22,964 (92) 22,872
Operating costs (), (i), (iv) (21,324) 95 (21,229)
Operating profit before joint ventures and associates 1,640 3 1,643
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates 50 — 50
Operating profit 1,690 3 1,693
Underlying operating profit 1,741 3 1,744
Net loss on sale and closure of businesses (58) - (58)
Finance costs and other financing items (112) - (112)
Profit before tax 1,520 3 1,523
Income tax expense (i) (387) 2 (385)
Profit for the year 1,133 5 1,138
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity shareholders of the Company 1,125 5 1,130
Non-controlling interests 8 — 8
Profit for the year 1,133 5 1,138
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (PENCE) 71.0p 0.3p 71.3p
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (PENCE) 71.0p 0.3p 71.3p
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXTRACT)
Year ended
30 September Year ended
2018 30 September
As previously 2018
reported IFRS 15 Restated
£m £m £m

Profit for the year 1,133 5 1,138
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (17) — (17)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,116 5 1,121
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Equity shareholders of the Company 1,108 5 1,113
Non-controlling interests 8 — 8
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,116 5 1,121
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1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (EXTRACT)

1 October 30 September
2017 1 October 2018 30 September
As previously 2017  Aspreviously 2018
reported IFRS 15 Restated reported IFRS 15 Restated
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other intangible assets (iii), (iv) 1,537 (701) 836 1,903 (798) 1,105
Contract fulfilment assets and
contract costs (i), i) - 738 738 — 838 838
Other non-current assets 5,911 — 5,911 6,191 - 6,191
Non-current assets 7,448 37 7,485 8,094 40 8,134
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables (iv) 2,701 (5) 2,696 2,857 (5) 2,852
Other current assets 830 — 830 1,661 — 1,661
Current assets 3,631 (5) 3,526 4,518 (5) 4,513
Total assets 10,979 32 11,011 12,612 35 12,647
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (i) (48) (10) (58) (49) ) (57)
Other non-current liabilities (4,534) — (4,534) (4,315) — (4,315)
Non-current liabilities (4,582) (10) (4,592) (4,364) 8) (4,372)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (4,277) — (4,277) (5,608) - (5,608)
Total liabilities (8,859) (10) (8,869) (9,972) 8) (9,980)
Net assets 2,120 22 2,142 2,640 27 2,667
EQUITY
Retained earnings (2,875) 22 (2,853) (2,246) 27 (2,219)
Other reserves 4,995 — 4,995 4,886 — 4,886
Total equity 2,120 22 2,142 2,640 27 2,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AND CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (EXTRACT)

30 September
2018 30 September
As previously 2018
reported IFRS 15 Restated
Notes £m £m £m
Operating profit before joint ventures and associates (ii) 1,640 3 1,643
Amortisation of intangible assets (iii) 233 (164) 69
Amortisation of contract fulfilment assets (iii) - 164 164
Amortisation of contract prepayments (iv) - 21 21
Unwind of costs to obtain contracts (i) - 13 13
Investment in contract prepayments (iv) - (27) (27)
Increase in costs to obtain contracts (i) - (16) (16)
Operating cash flows from movement in working capital (iv) 147 (21) 126
Other cash generated from operations 277 — 277
Cash generated from operations 2,297 (27) 2,270
Other cash flows from operating activities (424) — (424)
Net cash from operating activities 1,873 (27) 1,846
Purchase of intangible assets (iii) (425) 261 (164)
Purchase of contract fulfilment assets (iii) - (261) (261)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (iv) (386) 27 (359)
Other cash flows from investing activities (325) - (325)
Net cash from investing activities (1,136) 27 (1,109)
Net cash from financing activities (135) — (135)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 602 — 602
CONSOLIDATED FREE CASH FLOW (EXTRACT)
30 September
2018 30 September
As previously 2018
reported IFRS 15 Restated
Notes £m £m £m
Net cash from operating activities (iv) 1,873 (27) 1,846
Purchase of intangible assets (i) (425) 261 (164)
Purchase of contract fulfilment assets (iii) - (261) (261)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (iv) (386) 27 (359)
Other 79 - 79
Free cash flow 1,141 — 1,141
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1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
As a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ from 1 October 2018, the following adjustments were
made to restate the amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement and balance sheet of previous periods:

Adjustments for the year ended

30 September 2018
Capitalisation
Consideration of costs to
payable to obtaina Contract Year ended
customer contract  prepayments 30 September
(i) (i) (iv) 2018
£m £m £m £m
Revenue (71) - (21) (92)
Operating costs 71 3 21 95
Operating profit - 3 - 3
Income tax expense — 2 - 2
Profit for the year — 5 — 5
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Adjustments to the balance sheet at Adjustments to the balance sheet at
1 October 2017 30 September 2018
Capitalisation Capitalisation
of costs to Contract of costs to Contract
obtaina fulfilment Contract obtain a fulfilment Contract
contract assets prepayments 1 October contract assets prepayments 30 September
(i) (iii) (iv) 2017 (ii) (iii) (iv) 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Other intangible assets - (706) 5 (701) - (803) 5 (798)
Contract fulfilment assets
and contract costs 32 706 - 738 35 803 - 838
Trade and other receivables
—current - - () (5) - - (5) (5)
Deferred tax liabilities (10) — — (10) (8) — — (8)
Net assets 22 — — 22 27 — — 27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Consideration payable to a customer

The Group makes a variety of payments to clients, mainly commissions, concession rentals and reimbursement of utility costs.
The adjustments under IFRS 15 for consideration payable to a customer primarily relate to reclassifications of some of these
payments from operating costs to a deduction from revenue. The Group has conducted a detailed assessment of payments to
clients to establish where these are not in exchange for a distinct good or service and therefore should be reported as a deduction
from revenue.

This change results in a reduction to revenue and no change to operating profit. The consolidated income statement for the year
ended 30 September 2018 was restated to recognise a reduction in revenue of £71 million. This amount was previously reported as
operating costs.

(ii) Capitalisation of costs to obtain a contract

Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, the Group’s policy was to expense commissions paid to the salesforce on winning or retaining client
contracts as incurred. Under IFRS 15, there is a requirement to recognise as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer if the Group expects to recover them. These costs are then unwound over the life of the contract to which they relate
on a straight line basis. Only commissions directly attributable to individual contract award are capitalised, while commissions
payable due to multiple contract wins or due to a portfolio of client contracts will continue to be expensed as incurred as they cannot
be directly attributable to an identified contract.

From a balance sheet perspective, this change has resulted in an adjustment of £32 million at the opening balance sheet date as at
1 October 2017 to recognise the net book value of the costs to obtain a contract. The opening balance sheet as at 1 October 2017
has also been adjusted to recognise the associated deferred tax impact of £10 million. The consolidated balance sheet as at

30 September 2018 was also restated to recognise the additional net book value of the costs to obtain a contract of £3 million.

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 September 2018 was restated to recognise a net decrease in operating
costs of £3 million due to the de-recognition of commissions paid to the salesforce now capitalised net of the charge recorded for the
year in relation to these assets (£16 million and £13 million respectively for the year ended 30 September 2018).

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 September 2018 was also restated to recognise a reduction in the
deferred tax liability of £2 million, giving a rise to an income statement deferred tax credit of the same amount.

(iii) Contract fulfilment assets

The Group has historically classified certain client investments as contract intangible assets as a result of having to rely on, or
analogise to, requirements that were not developed specifically for contracts with customers. As a result of the implementation of
IFRS 15, all client investments previously classified as intangible assets that relate to contributions towards assets that the Group
uses in the performance of its obligations in its contracts with clients have now been reclassified within contract fulfilment assets and
contract costs. This new classification better represents the underlying nature of these assets as they are used in the fulfilment of the
Group’s performance obligations to its clients and improves the revenue generated from our client contracts. These investments
represent contributions towards service assets such as catering equipment rather than unrestricted payments, which are treated as
contract prepayments.

As a result, a balance sheet reclassification from intangible assets to contract fulfilment assets of £706 million was made at the
opening balance sheet date as at 1 October 2017. The consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2018 was also restated to
recognise the additional reclassification to contract fulfilment assets in the period of £97 million, which includes an increase in the
net book value of contract fulfilment assets of £76 million net of the impact of a foreign currency translation gain of £21 million.

(iv) Contract prepayments

The Group may give signing-on bonuses and cash payments to its clients which the client can use at its own discretion. Prior to
IFRS 15, such payments were considered contract prepayments and reported as other receivables, which then were charged to
operating costs over the period in which the Group was expected to benefit from those contracts.

Under IFRS 15, these payments are assessed for treatment as ‘consideration payable to a customer’ and where they are not in
exchange for a distinct good or service, they continue to be recorded as a contract prepayment, however they are charged to the
consolidated income statement as a deduction to revenue recognised over the contract term rather than an operating cost. As a
result, the consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 September 2018 was restated to recognise a reduction in revenue
of £21 million.
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1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group has conducted a detailed review of its contract prepayments resulting in a net reclassification of £5 million of
payments to clients from contract prepayments to intangible assets at the opening balance sheet date as at 1 October 2017 and
as at 30 September 2018.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, these client prepayments are reclassified from investing activities to cash flow
from operations.

(v) Other adjustments and disclosure requirements
The Group has assessed whether other adjustments were required as a result of the transition to IFRS 15 and concluded that the
standard did not have a significant impact on the timing and recognition of revenue.

The Group is a food service and support services provider and generates revenue by providing these services. Revenue is recognised
when the service is performed or when the goods (i.e. food, drinks or meals) are sold. Revenue recognised often corresponds to the
amount invoiced or to be invoiced for services delivered in the year, with the associated cost of delivery recognised as incurred.
There are no significant judgements associated with this approach.

The Group disaggregates revenue recognised from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The Group also discloses information to show the
relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue information discloses for each reportable segment. Refer
to note 2 for the disclosure on disaggregated revenue.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments — impact of the adoption

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ on 1 October 2018. The amendments to IFRS 9 mainly relate to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. The accounting policies for financial instruments following the adoption of
IFRS 9 are consistent with the Group’s pre-existing policy under IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’, with
the key impacts set out below:

Classification of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’ for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities; however, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. As a result, other investment amounts previously classified as available for sale and
recognised at fair value are now classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) or as fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). The carrying values of these assets approximated to fair value and therefore there is no impact from this
reclassification.

Impairment of financial assets

With respect to provisions for impairment of trade receivables, IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected
credit loss” model. From 1 October 2018, the Group measures provisions for impairment of trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. In determining credit risk, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on
the Group’s historical experience, and forward looking information. The Group considers the model and the assumptions used in
calculating these expected credit losses as sources of estimation uncertainty.

As a result, the carrying values of trade receivables and contract assets are now reduced by the estimated future credit losses at the
date of initial recognition and going forward where previously credit losses were not recognised on such assets until there was an
indicator of impairment, such as a payment default. The application of IFRS 9 at 1 October 2018 results in a £15 million adjustment
to retained earnings reflective of an additional provision for impairment of trade receivables of £19 million net of a deferred tax asset
of £4 million.

Hedging
The Group elected to continue to apply the hedge accounting guidance in IAS 39.

On the date of initial application, 1 October 2018, the Group assessed which business models apply to the financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The main effects resulting from this reclassification are detailed in the table below with the impact on the carrying amounts relating
solely to the recognition of loss allowances:

Original classification

New classification

Notes  and measurement under IAS 39 and measurement under IFRS 9
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other investments — equity
investments 14 Available for sale — fair value FVOCI
Other investments — debt instruments 14 Available for sale — fair value FVOCI
Other investments — corporate owned
life insurance policies 14 Available for sale — fair value FVPL

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Derivative financial instruments used
for hedging

Other derivative financial instruments
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments used
for hedging

Other derivative financial instruments
Trade payables

Bank loans and overdrafts

Loan notes!

Finance lease liabilities

Bonds!

15
17

19
19

19
19
20
18
18
18
18

Loans and receivables — amortised cost
Loans and receivables — amortised cost

Derivatives in a hedge relationship —
fair value

Held for trading — fair value

Derivatives in a hedge relationship —
fair value

Held for trading — fair value

Other liabilities — amortised cost
Other liabilities — amortised cost
Other liabilities — amortised cost
Other liabilities — amortised cost
Other liabilities — amortised cost

Financial assets — amortised cost
Financial assets — amortised cost

Hedging instrument — fair value
FVPL

Hedging instrument — fair value

FVPL

Other financial liabilities — amortised cost
Other financial liabilities — amortised cost
Other financial liabilities — amortised cost
Other financial liabilities — amortised cost
Other financial liabilities — amortised cost

1. Where a financial instrument is the hedged item in a fair value hedge, the amortised cost is adjusted due to changes in the hedged risk with the change being
recorded in the consolidated income statement.

160 Compass Group PLC Annual Report 2019



2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
The management of the Group’s operations, excluding Central activities, is organised within three segments: North America, Europe
and our Rest of World markets. The following table presents Group revenues disaggregated by geographical segment and sector:

Geographical segments

North America Europe  Rest of World Total
REVENUE! £m £m £m £m
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2019
Business & Industry 5,077 3,077 1,517 9,671
Education 3,495 776 253 4,524
Healthcare & Seniors 4,422 923 501 5,846
Sports & Leisure 2,454 588 284 3,326
Defence, Offshore & Remote 246 490 1,049 1,785
Combined sales of Group and share of equity accounted joint ventures3# 15,694 5,854 3,604 25,152
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018°
Business & Industry 4,251 3,254 1,542 9,047
Education 3,092 778 241 4,111
Healthcare & Seniors 3,997 904 528 5,429
Sports & Leisure 2,160 426 287 2,873
Defence, Offshore & Remote 218 400 1,069 1,687
Combined sales of Group and share of equity accounted joint ventures?3 13,718 5,762 3,667 23,147

1. Thereis no inter-segmental trading.

2. This is the underlying revenue measure considered by the chief operating decision maker.

3. Underlying revenue from external customers arising in the UK, the Group’s country of domicile, was £2,143 million (2018: £2,179 million). Underlying
revenue from external customers arising in the US region was £14,747 million (2018: £12,875 million). Underlying revenue from external customers arising
in all foreign countries from which the Group derives revenue was £23,009 million (2018: £20,968 million).

4. Includes revenue of £154 million of joint ventures classified as held for sale.

5. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional
information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 30 September 2019

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Geographical segments

North America Europe  Rest of World acct’ievri]ttireasI Total
OPERATING PROFIT £m £m £m £m £m
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2019
Underlying operating profit before joint ventures
and associates 1,289 368 249 (80) 1,826
Add: Share of profit before tax of joint ventures! 1 — 36 — 37
Regional underlying operating profit? 1,290 368 285 (80) 1,863
Add: Share of profit of associates! 10 8 1 — 19
Group underlying operating profit? 1,300 376 286 (80) 1,882
Less: Acquisition related costs (32) (16) (3) (3) (54)
Less: One-off pension charge - (12) - - (12)
Less: Cost action programme charge - (141) (45) (4) (190)
Less: Share of profit of joint ventures and associates held
for sale — — (25) — (25)
Total operating profit 1,268 207 213 (87) 1,601
Net loss on sale and closure of businesses (7)
Finance income 12
Finance costs (122)
Other financing items (15)
Profit before tax 1,469
Income tax expense (351)
Profit for the year 1,118

Geographical segments Central

North America Europe  Rest of World activities Total
OPERATING PROFIT £m £m £m £m £m
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 20183
Underlying operating profit before joint ventures
and associates 1,121 395 246 (70) 1,692
Add: Share of profit before tax of joint ventures 2 — 30 — 32
Regional underlying operating profit? 1,123 395 276 (70) 1,724
Add: Share of profit of associates 14 6 — — 20
Group underlying operating profit2 1,137 401 276 (70) 1,744
Less: Acquisition related costs (36) 9 (4) - (49)
Less: Tax on share of profit of joint ventures - — (2) — (2)
Total operating profit 1,101 392 270 (70) 1,693
Net loss on sale and closure of businesses (58)
Finance income 6
Finance costs (120)
Other financing items 2
Profit before tax 1,523
Income tax expense (385)
Profit for the year 1,138

1. Includes share of profit of joint ventures and associates classified as held for sale.
2. Underlying operating profit is the profit measure considered by the chief operating decision maker.
3. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional

information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.

From 1 October 2019 the Group’s geographical segments of Europe and Rest of World will be reclassified to reflect a change in the
way those segments are managed by the chief operating decision maker: Turkey will form part of the Europe segment. Revenue of
£306 million and regional underlying profit of £21 million will be reclassified from Rest of World to Europe for the year ended

30 September 2019.
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2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Geographical segments Unallocated
North Rest of Central Current and

America Europe World activities deferred tax Net debt Total
BALANCE SHEET £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2019
Total assets 7,192 3,494 1,295 560 164 605 13,310
Total liabilities (3,282) (1,478) (740) (210) (361) (3,877) (9,948)
Net assets/(liabilities) 3,910 2,016 555 350 (197) (3,272) 3,362
Total assets include:
Interests in joint ventures and associates 126 929 1 - — - 226
Non-current assets? 5,253 2,496 647 500 76 207 9,179
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 20182
Total assets 6,131 3,535 1,387 394 114 1,086 12,647
Total liabilities (2,936)  (1,398) (678) (215) (284)  (4,469)  (9,980)
Net assets/(liabilities) 3,195 2,137 709 179 (170)  (3,383) 2,667
Total assets include:
Interests in associates and joint ventures 93 99 71 — — — 263
Non-current assets! 4,372 2,518 747 369 45 83 8,134

1. Non-current assets located in the UK, the Group’s country of domicile, were £1,767 million (2018: £1,793 million). Non-current assets located in the USA
were £4,889 million (2018: £4,095 million). Non-current assets located in all foreign countries in which the Group holds assets were £7,412 million (2018:
£6,341 million).

2. Prior year comparatives have been restated as a result of the Group’s retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Additional
information about the impact of IFRS 15 is included in note 1.
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